
9 June 2014 Agenda 
Page 1 of 5 

 

 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Regular Meeting 
Monday 9 June 2014, 6:00 p.m. 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
 

 
Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 

 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Jr.  
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 

 
Councilmember Brenda Peace-Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Fearldine A. Simmons 
Councilmember George M. Daye 
 

City Officials 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 

 
III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
IV. OPENING REMARKS 

 
In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance 
as well as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values 
regarding Ethical Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2.  The Mayor now inquires as to 
whether any Council Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with 
respect to matters before the City Council.  If any Council Members knows of a conflict of 
interest, or appearance of conflict, please state so at this time. 
 

                                                 
1 Core Value 4:  Ethical Behavior:  We value the public trust and will perform our duties and 
responsibilities with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 
 
2 Core Value 10:  Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance 
and operations of the City. 
 



9 June 2014 Agenda 
Page 2 of 5 

 

V. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
a) 12 May 2014 Regular Meeting [See Notebook Tab 1] 
b) 19 May 2014 Special Called Meeting – Budget Presentation  
c) 20 May 2014 Budget Work Session #1 
d) 22 May 2014 Budget Work Session #2 

 
VII. PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS 

 
a) Introduction of City Engineer Clark Thomas 

  
VIII. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
a) Conduct Budget Public Hearing on FY14-15 Budget 
 

● Public Hearing 
  
 b) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 14-34, Adoption of FY14-15 Budget, and 

Resolution 14-42, Adoption of May 2014 Classification and Pay Study.  (CAF 14-62-
A)  [See Notebook Tab 2] 

 
● Ordinance 14-34 
● Resolution 14-42 

  
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on non-Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to 
address the Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the 
beginning of the meeting.  The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized 
by the Mayor, come forward to the podium, state your name, address and if you are a city 
resident.  Please review the Citizen Comment Guidelines that are provided below.3 

                                                 
3 Citizen Comment Guidelines 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters of concern to 
them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to three minutes 
should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the public hearing 
comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, if in order, be 
scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are to be directed to 
the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the public comment 
section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



9 June 2014 Agenda 
Page 3 of 5 

 

 
X. OLD BUSINESS 

 
 a) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-31, Rejecting the Offer by Prestigious 

Housing, Inc., to Purchase the Old First National Bank Building located at 213 S. 
Garnett Street. (CAF 14-54)  [See Notebook Tab 3] 

 
  ● Resolution 14-31 
  
XI. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a) Consideration of Approval of: 1) Resolution 14-17-A, Authorizing the Execution of 

Change Order #4 for the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Project to Devere 
Construction Company, Inc. in the Amount of $41,224.61, and 2) Ordinance 14-26-A 
FY14 Budget Amendment #37, Amending the CIP Sewer Fund for Change Order #4 
to the Water Reclamation Facility Renovation Project. (CAF 14-06-A)  [See Notebook 
Tab 4] 

 
  ● Resolution 14-17-A 
  ● Ordinance 14-26-A 
 

b) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-11-A, Authorizing the Execution of 
Change Order #1 in Conjunction with the David Avenue Storm Sewer Replacement 
Project in the Amount of $4,000 with M. T. Murphy, Inc.  (CAF 14-17-A)  [See 
Notebook Tab 5] 

 
  ● Resolution 14-11-A 
 

c) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-45, Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an 
Agreement with ECS Carolinas, LLP to Perform Construction Materials Testing 
Services Relative to the Sandy Creek Pump Station Improvements Project.  (CAF 14-
71)  [See Notebook Tab 6] 

 
  ● Resolution 14-45 
  

d) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-19-A, Authorizing Additional Areas for 
Water Main and Services Replacement to the 2” Water Main and Services 
Replacement Project Subject to Approval from DWSRF and Availability of 
Remaining Funds.  (CAF 14-26-A)  [See Notebook Tab 7] 

 
  ● Resolution 14-19-A 
 
 e) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 14-17, Providing for Four Additional 

Handicap Parking Spaces on Sunday Near the First Baptist Church. (CAF 14-67)  
[See Notebook Tab 8] 

 
  ● Ordinance 14-17 



9 June 2014 Agenda 
Page 4 of 5 

 

 
 f) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-43, Appointments to the Henderson 

Community Appearance Commission, Henderson-Vance Human Relations 
Commission, Henderson Redevelopment Commission and the Henderson Planning 
Board.  (CAF 14-68)  [See Notebook Tab 9] 

 
  ● Resolution 14-43 
 
XII. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda have either been previously discussed by 
City Council during a previous meeting and/or are considered in the ordinary course of 
business by the City Council and will be enacted-on by one motion and a roll call vote in 
the form listed.  If discussion is desired by either the Council or the Audience, the item in 
question will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately after the 
revised consent agenda has been approved.  
 
a) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-44, Issuing Sewer Credit for Outside 

Watering of Lawns, Plants and Vegetation for the 1 June 2014 through 31 October 
2014 Billing Statements.  (CAF 14-70) [See Notebook Tab 10] 

 
  ● Resolution 14-44 
 
 b) Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the 

Month of April 2014. (CAF 14-66) [See Notebook Tab 11] 
   
XIII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on non-Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to 
address the Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the 
beginning of the meeting.  The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized 
by the Mayor, come forward to the podium, state your name, address and if you are a city 
resident.  Please review the Citizen Comment Guidelines that are provided below.4 

                                                 
4 Citizen Comment Guidelines 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters 
of concern to them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City 
Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to 
three minutes should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the 
public hearing comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, 
if in order, be scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are 
to be directed to the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; 
and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the 
public comment section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



9 June 2014 Agenda 
Page 5 of 5 

 

 
XIV. REPORTS 

 
a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem (No Report) 
b) City Manager (No Report) 
c) City Attorney (No Report) 
d) City Clerk  

i. Meeting and Events Calendar [See Notebook Tab 12] 
ii. E-911 May Report 

 
XV. CLOSED SESSION 

 
a) Pursuant to G.S.§143-318.11 (a)(3) regarding Attorney/Client Privilege 
 

XVI. ADJOURNMENT   



 

 
Minute Book 43 

12 May 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 1 of 11 

 City Council Minutes - DRAFT 
Regular Meeting 

12 May 2014 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe,  D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, 
Fearldine A. Simmons, and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager A. Ray Griffin, City Attorney John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Clerk Esther J. 
McCrackin, Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Police Chief Marcus Barrow, Fire Chief 
Danny Wilkerson, Assistant Fire Chief Cordell, Battalion Chief Moss, Battalion Chief Twisdale, 
Fire Fighter Boyd, Recreation and Parks Director Alan Gill, Youth Services Director Donna 
Stearns, Kerr Lake Regional Water Director Christy Lipscomb, Human Resources Director 
Cathy Brown and Code Compliance Director Corey Williams. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 12 May 2014 Regular Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order by Mayor  
O’Geary at  6:03 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 
134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Council Member Simmons led those present in a prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
OPENING COMMENTS 
 
Mayor O’Geary welcomed the staff and citizens by saying it is always good to see individuals in 
attendance. 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

12 May 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 2 of 11 

ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda.  Council Member Rainey 
moved to accept the Agenda as presented.  Motion seconded by Council Member Peace-Jenkins 
and unanimously approved. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes.  Council Member 
Peace-Jenkins moved the approval of the 28 April Short Regular minutes and the 28 April Work 
Session minutes, as presented.  Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey and unanimously 
approved. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to speak to 
Council on agenda matters.   
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Keeping the Offer to Purchase the Old SNB Building on the Table; Approving a Procedure 
for Purchasing City Owned Property and an Offer to Purchase City Owned Property 
Agreement and Remanding the Offer to Purchase Back to the Land Planning & 
Development Committee for Further Discussion. (Reference:  CAF 14-64; Resolution 14-41) 
 
City Manager Griffin said the Land Planning Committee has reviewed the procedures in this 
three-part item which are: 1) allowing the bid to purchase to remain on the table pending 
Councils review this evening; 2) approving the proposed policy/agreement and 3) taking the 
tabled bid back to the Land Planning Committee vis-à-vis the new approved policy.  Mr. Griffin 
then asked City Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr. to review the policy before Council this evening.  
 
Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr. said the policy and offer form specifically include conditions regarding 
taxes being paid in full on all other properties owned by the potential buyer.  The documents also 
specify the buyers’ expenses regarding closing costs. The potential buyer will be responsible for 
the cost of advertising of the initial bid but the City will be responsible for advertising any upset 
bids.   
 
Council Member Rainey asked if the City is in a position to not sell the property.  Attorney 
Zollicoffer, Jr. responded the City is able to refuse to accept a bid but it cannot discriminate on 
race, etc. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked if this replaces anything in existence and if the policy/offer form  
need to be approved this evening.  The Attorney responded nothing is currently in place. 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

12 May 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 3 of 11 

 
 
Council Member Kearney expressed concern regarding the buyer fees.  Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr. 
said it customary for there to be buyer fees and other municipalities are passing on these costs to 
the buyer.  He added the policy and procedure are similar to what Vance County has in place.  
Mr. Kearney also asked about the warranty on properties.  The Attorney responded the properties 
are sold “as is.” 
 
Council Member Rainey asked how long the bid can remain on the table.  The Attorney 
responded 90 days. 
 
There was no further discussion.  Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Coffey moved the approval of Resolution 14-41, Keeping the Offer to Purchase 
the Old SNB Building on the Table; Approving a Procedure for Purchasing City Owned 
Property and an Offer to Purchase City Owned Property Agreement and Remanding the Offer to 
Purchase Back to the Land Planning & Development Committee for Further Discussion. Motion 
seconded by Council Member Rainey, and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Kearney, 
Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons, and Daye.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  
None.  ABSENT:  None.  (See Resolution Book 4, p 29) 
 
The City Manager then asked the Mayor to call for a voice vote to remand the tabled bid back to 
the Land Planning Committee for further consideration in light of the approval of this resolution. 
 
A motion was made by Council Member Daeke to remand the tabled bid back to the Land 
Planning Committee for further consideration in light of the approval of Resolution 14-41.  
Council Member Daye seconded the motion and Mayor O’Geary asked for all those in favor to 
say aye.  He then asked for those who are not in favor to voice their disagreement.  The vote was 
unanimous to remand the tabled bid back to the Land Planning Committee for further 
consideration. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Authorizing an Application for U.S. Department of Justice’s 2014-2015 BJA Justice 
Assistance Grant Program.  (Reference: CAF 14-61; Resolution 14-39) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Police Chief Barrow to come forward.  Chief Barrow said this is a 
grant which offers a 60/40 split between the Henderson Police department and Vance County’s 
Sherriff’s department. The City’s $10,161 portion will be used to purchase/replace three (3) in-
care mobile camera audio/video records.   
 
Council Member Simmons asked why the split was 60/40.  Chief Barrow responded the City is 
the main holder of the grant and that is the way the grant works. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked if the $10,161 will cover the cost of the cameras.  Chief Barrow 
responded yes. 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

12 May 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 4 of 11 

 
There were no further questions and Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Kearney moved the approval of Resolution 14-39, Authorizing an Application 
for U.S. Department of Justice’s 2014-2015 BJA Justice Assistance Grant Program.  Motion 
seconded by Council Member Daye and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Coffey, 
Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons, Daye and Kearney. NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  
None.  ABSENT:  None.  (See Resolution Book 4, p 25) 
 
Award of FY 14 Audit Contract Between the City of Henderson and William L. Stark and 
Company to Conduct the Annual Audit for Fiscal Year 2013-2014.  (Reference: CAF 14-58; 
Resolution 14-38) 
 
City Manager Griffin explained this is consistent with the third year of a three year proposal with 
this auditing firm.  The fee for auditing FY13-14 is s $43,650 which is slightly higher than prior 
years. Mr. Griffin added the Local Government Commission requires the completion of the audit 
by the end of October and this firm has agreed to complete the audit by 31 October 2014.  A 
Request for Proposal (RFP) will be needed for a new three-year period.  He said this firm has 
done an excellent job and it is recommended that Council approve this contract.     
 
Council Member Daeke asked why the increase.  Mr. Griffin responded auditor’s fees increase 
for the City just as they to for any other client.  Council Member Coffey felt $43, 650 was a lot 
of money.  Mr. Griffin responded the auditors have to go through every line item and review 
over $35M in assets. 
 
(Clerk’s Note:  City Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr. asked that the wording used in #25 of the Contract 
to Audit Accounts for the City of Henderson, be used in all future contracts -- just change the 
word “Áuditor” to the appropriate contract information.) 
 
There were no other questions.  Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Resolution 14-38, Award of FY 14 Audit 
Contract Between the City of Henderson and William L. Stark and Company to Conduct the 
Annual Audit for Fiscal Year 2013-2014.. Motion seconded by Council Member Peace-Jenkins 
and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons, 
Daye, Kearney and Coffey.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None.  (See Resolution 
Book 4, p 23) 
 
Authorizing Execution of Agreement with the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation (NCDOT) Relative to the Chavasse Avenue Widening Project (WBS 
Element: 38404)  (Reference: CAF 14-29; Resolution 14-16) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier to update Council on this 
matter.  Mr. Frazier reminded Council this was discussed at the last Work Session.  This project 
began in 2007 but was delayed by the State because of the High Speed Rail project.  The project 
has now been revived and as requested, Mr. Jim Crawford, who serves on the State DOT 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

12 May 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 5 of 11 

committee, has been contacted both verbally and in writing regarding State assistance with its 
request that the City pick up any unanticipated costs.  Mr. Frazier added the State is willing to 
allow Council to review the bids received by the DOT prior to moving forward with the project. 
 
City Manager Griffin said he received a call from Mr. Crawford late Friday afternoon.  Mr. 
Crawford said there might be a ‘little bit” of funding available for sidewalk construction.  Mr. 
Griffin then asked Mr. Frazier if a resolution needed to passed this evening or if Council could 
review the bids first.  Mr. Frazier said he was not sure but did not think waiting would be a 
problem. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if the right-of-way appraisal has been received and if it has been 
submitted to the property owner.  Mr. Frazier said he expects it within the next 7-10 days and 
that a copy will be provided to the property owner. 
 
City Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr. said he is very concerned about the liability clause in the Locally 
Administered Project – State Contingency Agreement (especially the underlined portion).  
Although this is a State road and State project, the DOT wants the City to agree to: 
 

“indemnify and hold the Department and the State of North Carolina, their 
respective officers, directors, principals, employees, agents, successors, and 
assigns from and against any and all claims for damage and/or liability in 
connection with the right of way acquired for Project activities performed 
pursuant to this Agreement including construction of the Project.  The 
Department shall not be responsible for any damages claims, which may be 
initiated by third parties. 

 
Council Member Daeke asked if this wording has been used in other project agreements.  Mr. 
Frazier said he did not remember.   
 
Council Members Coffey and Kearney expressed concern regarding the lack of liability 
responsibility by the State. 
 
Council Member Simmons asked what happens if the State won’t change its stance.  Mr. Griffin 
said this could be a major risk management issue.  The project was delayed by the State, not the 
City --- it’s a State project and but it expects the City to pick up the costs for anything over 
$700,000.  Mr. Griffin said the City does not have enough dollars to cover the costs of street 
work within the City and asked why the City should be expected to pay for State roads when it 
cannot even pave its own local streets. 
 
Council Member Inscoe suggested this item be tabled for further discussion with Mr. Crawford.   
 
Motion was made by Council Member Inscoe that this issue be TABLED until Mr. Crawford is 
contacted and verification is made as to whether this is the State’s standard contractual language.  
Motion was seconded by Council Member Rainey and APPROVED by the following vote:  
YES:  Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons, Daye, Kearney, Coffey and Inscoe.  NO:  None.  
ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None. 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

12 May 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 6 of 11 

Allowing Vance County Relay for Life to Place a Banner Across the Charles Street 
Overpass.  (Reference: CAF 14-63; Resolution 14-40) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Code Compliance Director/Interim Planning Director Corey 
Williams to come forward.  Mr. Griffin thanked Mr. Williams for stepping up to the plate and 
appreciated his willingness to take on additional duties until a Planning Director is hired. 
 
Mr. Williams said he was approached by the Relay for Life representative, Mr. James Baines, 
about placing a banner across the Charles Street Overpass.  According to City Code, this is not 
allowed unless approved by Council.  He said Mr. Baines is present to answer any questions by 
Council.  Mr. Williams added the banner will be in place until 30 June 2014 which allows Relay 
for Life a week to remove the banner after the conclusion of the event. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked about liability insurance and said the banner would need to be 
very securely fastened to the overpass. 
 
Council Member Rainey asked if permission has been obtained from CSX, who owns the 
overpass.  Mr. Baines said not yet. 
 
With no further questions, Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Resolution 14-40, Allowing Vance County Relay 
for Life to Place a Banner Across the Charles Street Overpass.  Motion seconded by Council 
Member Coffey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES:  Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, 
Simmons, Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe and Rainey. NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  
ABSENT:  None.  (See Resolution Book 4, p 27) 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
The City Clerk read the Consent Agenda, summarized as follows: 
 
Demolition of 712 Champion Street. (Reference: CAF 14-40, Ordinance 14-10)  Proper 
enforcement procedures have been followed in accordance with Section 21A of the NCGS 
160A-429,443 and 445.  Taxes are due for 2012 and 2013 in the amount of $669.54.  (See 
Ordinance Book 9, p 83) 
 
Demolition of 407 Pettigrew Street. (Reference: CAF 14-46, Ordinance 14-12)  Proper 
enforcement procedures have been followed in accordance with Section 21A of the NCGS 
160A-429,443 and 445.  Taxes are due from 2009 through 2013 in the amount of $2,451.80.  
(See Ordinance Book 9, p 87) 
 
Amending the CIP Sewer Fund (FY14 Budget Amendment #36) to Reflect Revised 
Approval of Project Bid Information on the Sandy Creek Pump Station Improvement 
Project Received from NCDENR on 14 March 2014. (Reference:  CAF 14-60, Ordinance 14-
32) This is a housekeeping matter that reflects the new estimated loan amount to be $1,696,874 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

12 May 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 7 of 11 

with a principal forgiveness of $848,437 for the Sandy Creek Pump Station Improvement 
project.  (See Ordinance Book 9, p 127) 
 
To Amend the CIP Sewer Fund (FY 13-14 Budget Amendment #34) and to Amend and 
Close Out the 2013 Governor’s Crime Commission Mobile Data Terminal Grant (FY13-14 
Budget Amendment #35).  (Reference CAF 14-59, Ordinance 14-30 and Ordinance 14-31)  
Budget Amendment #34 corrects Budget Amendment #22 as the engineering design portion of 
the CIP Sewer Fund was incorrectly decreased by $68,000.  Budget Amendment #35 amends the 
project budget for funds not spent and closes out the project. (See Resolution Book 4, p 11) 
 
Promissory Note for High Speed Pump at Kerr Lake Regional Water Plant State Project -  
#H-LRX-F-11, 1692.  (Reference:  CM 14-17)  This loan (see Attachment A) was accepted by 
Council on 23 July 2012 and serves as a matter of record and status of the project. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if anyone wished to remove an item from the Consent Agenda. There 
were no requests.  Mayor O’Geary then asked for a motion to approve the consent Agenda  
 
Council Member Inscoe moved the approval of the Consent Agenda as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Council Member Rainey, and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Daeke, 
Simmons, Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey and Peace-Jenkins.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  
None.  ABSENT: None. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
City Clerk McCrackin advised no citizen wished to address Council.  
 
REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem – Mayor Pro-Tem Rainey said there was a terminally ill citizen 
living on Beechwood Drive, and over the weekend there was a sewer problem.  He 
thanked Mr. Frazier, Mr. Griffin and the staff for their prompt response. 
 

b) City Manager  - Mr. Griffin echoed Mr. Rainey’s comments by saying Mr. Frazier and 
the Public Service responders did a top notch job on Beechwood Drive. He added the 
problem was called by the failure of a 30 plus year old pump which will have to be 
updated.  This pump replacement is not in the current budget so they are looking to see 
what adjustments can be made to find the funds to purchase the new pump motors. 
 
Mr. Griffin said the Finance Director is unable to attend this meeting but has compiled a 
Nine Month FY2014 Financial Report.  He said Ms. Brafford will be happy to respond to 
any questions Council may have and will include any information Council would like to 
see in the future. 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

12 May 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 8 of 11 

 
c) City Attorney (No Report) 

 
d) City Clerk - Ms. McCrackin reminded Council of St. Baldrick’s Day May 31st and 

reminded Council that there is a Special Called Meeting scheduled for Monday, 19 May 
2014 at 6:00 p.m.to receive the City Manager’s proposed FY15 budget. 

 
Council Member Kearney commended Mr. Griffin and Recreation and Parks Director Alan Gill 
for responding to a piece of broken equipment at King Kids Park.  Mr. Kearney said he 
anticipates the spring rider will be replaced in the near future. 
 
Mr. Kearney asked the City Manager to contact the Chamber President, Mr. John Barnes to 
discuss Mr. Barnes supposed concerns regarding the recently passed sign ordinance.  Mr. Griffin 
said he would contact Mr. Barnes. 
 
Mr. Griffin asked Alan Gill to stand so he could be recognized as this is his last City Council 
meeting before his retirement at the end of this month.  Mr. Griffin said Mr. Gill has been with 
the City for over 30 years and thanked him for all he has accomplished.  Alan’s last day is May 
30 and wished Alan well as he “spends his time fishing”. 
 
Mayor O’Geary then called for a five (5) minute recess to allow Ms. Becky Veazey from The 
MAPS Group to prepare for the Work Session presentation.  The meeting recessed at 6:50 p.m. 
and reconvened at 6:55 p.m. 
 
WORK SESSION 
 
Adopting and Implementation Plan of the 2014 Henderson Classification and Pay Study 
with Personnel Policy, May 2014. (Reference: CAF 14-65; Resolution 14-42) 
 
City Manager Griffin began by saying Council is well aware that the City is lagging behind in 
job wage/salary and now finds itself about 23% below market value.  He said through the League 
of Municipalities,  Ms. Becky Veazey of The MAPS Group has worked with the City staff to 
provide the City with an up-to-date Position Classification and Personnel Policy (Classification 
and Pay Study) and a five-year implementation plan which will allow the City to be more 
competitive over the coming years. 
 
Mr. Griffin then introduced Ms. Veazey who is no stranger to Council as she has worked for 
several years with Council on its Annual Strategic Planning process. 
 
Ms. Veazey greeted Council and began by explaining the process and methodology that took 
place in compiling this 4-part plan.  The process began with meetings with the City Manager and 
Human Resources Director.  Then meetings were set to explain the entire process to all the 
current staff.  At that time questionnaires were distributed to each staff member and after a set 
time, were returned.  Interviews were conducted with employees, supervisors and management 
to clarify duties and responsibilities.  Then Ms. Veazey and her team set about compiling the 
information to create the following components of the plan: 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

12 May 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 9 of 11 

 
1) Classification specifications were written for each classification and a market survey was 
conducted with area local governments and private sector employees to identify pay rates.  Ms. 
Veazey emphasized that classification has everything to do with the job and nothing to do with 
the person performing the job.  She also said some job titles (classifications) needed to be re-
titled as existing titles were outdated or no longer fit the job.  She used Meter Readers as an 
example of a classification.  Meter Readers basically do the same thing; however, some readers, 
such as a new hire, may only know how to read a meter while other readers who have been doing 
the same job for twenty years are able to do more detailed work such as repairing broken pipes.  
This brought her to the compensation portion of the plan. 
 
2)  Compensation is recommended by classification which is set into a specific pay grade.  
Within each pay grade there is a salary range with a low, mid and high point.  Using the same 
example as above, the salary of the new meter reader would be lower than that of the twenty-year 
employee.    Once an employee reaches the maximum of the pay grade they would remain there 
until they are promoted to a new pay grade or a salary adjustment is approved by Council for the 
entire grade. 
  
3)  A Personnel Policy is part of the proposed plan.  The policy reflects regulatory and legislative 
changes and removes the majority of the City’s existing procedures from the current policy 
manual. 
 
4) Benefits – This plan provides comparative benefits information and recommendations.  Some 
of the suggested changes include an equitable leave accrual for all employees regardless of the 
number of scheduled hours averaged per week; providing supervisory training, developing a 
succession plan for each department, longevity pay changes, along with changes to vacation 
accrual. 
 
Throughout the presentation, Ms. Veazey responded to various questions such as what cities 
were used for comparisons, how fair employee evaluations would be conducted, how the 
different classifications were determined in a particular job grade.  She explained the cities used 
are listed in the manual which she distributed (a copy of which is filed in the City Clerks Vault).  
As far as performance evaluations, Mr. Griffin said the next step would be to have Ms. Veazey 
return to train supervisors on how to conduct an evaluation with proper checks and balances so 
no individual is treated as “the favorite.”  She urged Council to review the Plan and will return 
during a budget work session to respond to questions.   
 
Ms. Veazey said if the City continues to lag behind, it will eventually become impossible for the 
City to hire any quality employees.  She added the loss of an employee, costs the City 
approximately 2/3 of the annual salary for that position.  She also said when you are in a position 
of only being able to hire less qualified employees, the supervisors spend all their time training 
and are unable to properly supervise the entire department.  
 
A few of the comments made by Council were the City cannot continue to put band aids on the 
problem --- Council Member Inscoe commented the lack of economic development within both 
the City and County; Council Member Coffey mentioned the expense to train employees;  



 

 
Minute Book 43 

12 May 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 10 of 11 

Council Member Rainey commented that a raise cannot be given if there are no funds available.  
Council Member Kearney mentioned from his work experience sometimes employees see a 
salary reduction and Council Member Daeke asked about how competitive municipalities were 
selected and mention flaws in providing cost of living (COLA) increases. 
 
Lastly, Ms. Veazey thanked Council for its attention and again reiterated that she would be 
happy to respond (either by phone or in person) to any questions Council may have after 
reviewing the material.    Mr. Griffin advised one of the upcoming budget work sessions will be 
dedicated to reviewing the pay plan recommendations and asked if Ms. Veazey could plan to 
attend that specific work session. 
 
Mayor O’Geary now asked if Council was prepared to adjourn. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Daeke moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 8:33 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
D. Michael Rainey  
Mayor Pro-Tem     ATTEST: 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

12 May 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 11 of 11 

 
Attachment A 

 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

19 May 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes  
Page 1 of 5 

 
 

 City Council Minutes 
Special Called Meeting 

19 May 2014 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe,  D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, 
Fearldine A. Simmons and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
Council Member Fearldine A. Simmons 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Clerk Esther J. 
McCrackin, Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Finance Director Katherine C. Brafford,  
Recreation & Parks Director Alan Gill, Interim Recreation & Parks Director Steve Osborne, 
Youth Services Director Donna Stearns, Henderson, Code Compliance Director Corey Williams, 
Fire Chief Danny Wilkerson, Police Chief Marcus Barrow and Human Resources Director Cathy 
Brown.  
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 19 May 2014 Special Called Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order by 
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   



 

 
Minute Book 43 

19 May 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes  
Page 2 of 5 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Presentation of Proposed FY 2013-2014 Budget 
 
Mayor O’Geary immediately turned the meeting over to the City Manager.   
 
City Manager Griffin presented a brief PowerPoint presentation to summarize the FY14-15 
budget.  Mr. Griffin began by saying this year has not been as good as last year or the year 
before.  He said North Carolina is the tale of two states --- the Golden Crescent cities that are 
doing better and those in the rural part of the state that continue to struggle.   City Manager 
Griffin said he is pleased to work with the City Council, Department Directors and employees.   
He said the Council’s job is difficult because the final budget has to meet the needs of the 
community and also meet the State requirements and the needs of the City. 
 
Mr. Griffin shared the budget is seriously constrained due to various causes and said there is no 
room for error in either the revenues or expenditures.  He reviewed the process to compile this 
budget saying it began back in August. Tweaks were made through discussions with staff and 
after looking at the revenue streams in February, this proposed budget was worked on into the 
early part of May to make sure Council has the best information possible.  He said even though 
the proposed budget is less than the current year, it includes  5% increases in the Water Rate and 
Regional Water Rate, and a 3% Sewer Rate increase.  As far as personnel issues, the proposed 
budget includes reducing the work force by two (2) full-time and four (4) part time positions; 
unfreezing two (2) full-time positions; and implementing Phase 1 of the Classification and Pay 
Plan.  No cost of living increase is included with the FY14-15 proposed budget.  Mr. Griffin 
reminded Council that according to the Pay Plan, City employees are paid, on average, 
approximately 22% less than comparable municipalities. 

 
Mr. Griffin shared good news by saying health insurance costs will decrease  by 10% due to the 
wellness program, the good work of Mr. Philip Burnette, the City’s Health Plan Administrator 
and employees/retirees working to reduce costs. 
 
Council Member Rainey asked how long Mr. Burnette has worked for the City and if this is 
better than what the League of Municipalities offers.  Mr. Griffin thought it was 2007 and said 
the long term relationship has paid off.  Mr. Griffin added the City’s costs are less than what the 
League offers. 
 
General Fund 
 
Next, Mr. Griffin reviewed the components which make up both the expenditures and revenues 
for the General Fund, Regional Water Fund, Water Fund and Sewer Fund.  He reviewed the 
three primary revenue sources for the General Fund (property tax, sales tax and sanitation fees) 
and shared 47% of the revenue goes toward public safety (Fire/Police and E-911).  The property 
tax does not fully cover the costs associated with public safety.  He added since the proposed 
operating expenses are so limited, Council will find the streets and storm drainage improvements 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

19 May 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes  
Page 3 of 5 

underfunded, employee compensation lagging and vehicle/equipment replacement, especially in 
Public Services, minimal.  No tax rate increase is recommended in the FY14-15 budget.   
 
Mr. Griffin said the Maria Parham property tax appeal regarding the valuation assigned by the 
County has not yet been resolved by the State and depending on the result it could have a 
negative impact on the total levy.  However, the tax/tag program is working in the City’s favor 
with approximately $200,000 in unanticipated revenue.  He added the Finance Director is 
working with the County to separate out the vehicle decal/property tax data. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked what the hospital is currently paying.  Mr. Griffin asked the 
Finance Director to check with the County and said he would report back to Council. 
 
Council Member Inscoe commented the property tax trend will change with the reevaluation of 
property in the coming year.  Mr. Griffin said the rate is adjusted to be revenue neutral saying the 
new levy is calculated against the revenue received in the most current budget to determine the 
adjusted tax rate. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked what percentage of the total tax comes from motor vehicles.  
Mr. Griffin said he would look at the FY13 Audit and report back. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked if there was a limit on the city vehicle fee and if it is included. 
Mr. Griffin said the Finance Director is breaking out the current $10.00 fee per vehicle from the 
tag fee.  Mr. Griffin said he would find out the limit for the city vehicle fee and report back. 
 
Mr. Griffin summarized the General Fund by saying it is very constrained and there is very little 
room for adjustments.  He added he did authorize two vehicle lease purchases for the Fire 
Department because they have two vehicles which are no longer in service.  The Police 
Department has vehicles with 80,000 to 100,000 miles on them that need to be replaced.  He said 
the City has not had an active street resurfacing program since 2008 and the streets show it. 
 
Regional Water Fund  
 
The Regional Water Fund has experienced a decrease in water sales which is anticipated to 
continue in FY14-15.  The proposed 5% increase will help mitigate revenue losses from reduced 
consumption and to keep capital reserve contributions at near-projected levels. The water plant 
electricity is managed with the power company’s “time of use” program which is estimated to 
save approximately $60,000 a year.  
 
 
Water Fund 
 
The Water Fund receives 97% of its revenues from the sale of water to the City’s retail 
customers along with Kittrell, Vance County, Franklin County and Granville County, which is 
not yet on-line.  A 5% increase is recommended for water rates and to unfreeze the Public 
Services Director position.  This fund maintains the water lines for Regional Water plus the  



 

 
Minute Book 43 

19 May 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes  
Page 4 of 5 

 
 
City’s distribution lines.  He said the City’s inside rate is the most competitive of all users but the 
outside water rate is competitive to Warren, Franklin and Vance and similar to Oxford.  Mr. 
Griffin said 41% of the budget goes to pay for water purchased from the Regional Water.   
 
Council Member Daeke asked for a reminder regarding the Rate Stabilization Reserve.  Mr. 
Griffin said this was established about three (3) years ago with the funds received from Granville 
and Vance County for water reservation fees to reserve for any additional costs with the water 
plant upgrade.  This reserve will keep the City from passing on the costs to customers.  If the 
dollars are not needed for this, the dollars are set aside for other capital projects such as installing 
water lines to the neighborhoods on old US 158. 
 
Mr. Griffin said the need for a Public Services Director is great and has included 50% of the 
salary in the Water Fund.  He said the 5% water rate increase is necessary to avoid creating a 
long-term structural deficit. 
 
 
Mr. Griffin said he could not emphasize enough the need for a Public Services Director.  
Although he said he was not trying to scare Council, in reality, if anything should happen to the 
Assistant City Manager, the City has no structure to move people into other positions and there is 
no one that can step into a director position at the current time.  
 
Sewer Fund 
 
Mr. Griffin said 97% of revenues come from user fees.  A 3% rate increase is recommended.  
The increase is primarily for the Public Services Director position.  He said the City is very 
competitive with in city sewer rates but definitely not competitive with out of city rates.  The 
plant renovation continues along with the Sandy Creek project.  
 
City Manager Griffin thanked Council for its time and patience.  He said he would be happy to 
answer questions.  There were no questions. 
 
Mr. Griffin said when the budget schedule was set, it did not include time to read the budget 
information before the first work session.  He said if Council would like to meet tomorrow 
evening (20 May), that would be fine or if it would like to postpone the first meeting until 
Thursday.  The Mayor asked for Council’s input.  Council Member Coffey said she would rather 
begin Tuesday evening.  Council Member Kearney said he would like a chance to look at the 
information and asked if Wednesday night was out of the question.  Several Council members 
said they have commitments on Wednesday evening.  Council Member Inscoe said Tuesday is 
fine with him.  Council Member Rainey said he has a commitment Tuesday evening but should 
be able to arrive about 7:00 p.m.  Council Member Peace-Jenkins said Tuesday is fine with her.  
Council Member Daeke said he would be unable to attend Tuesday evening as he has to work.  
Council Member Daye said Tuesday is fine with him.  The Mayor then asked the Clerk for the 
result.  After clarifying with Council Member Kearney that he is willing to meet, it was decided 
to meet Tuesday, 20 May  at 6:00 p.m. by the following:  YES:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, 
Rainey, Peace-Jenkins and Daye.  NO:  Daeke.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  Simmons. 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

19 May 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes  
Page 5 of 5 

 
 
City Manager Griffin said he would prepare one-page summary sheets for the meeting tomorrow 
evening.  He then asked staff to distribute the budget books and explained the book is compiled 
as in past years and suggested Council review Funds 64, 46, 78 for Regional Water; Funds 30, 70  
79 and 43 for Water; and Funds 31, 70, 79, and 44 for Sewer.  He said the 40’s accounts are 
capital accounts like the sewer plant renovation.    Mr. Griffin also suggested Council read the 
Budget Message and the Fund summaries to be discussed tomorrow evening.   
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if the pumps that recently failed are included in this budget.  Mr. 
Griffin responded no.  The pumps need to be replaced immediately and the expense will come 
out of FY13-14 budget.  If the Fund Balance is needed to make this purchase it will be brought to 
Council for approval. 
 
City Manager Griffin said he will be happy to answer any questions before the next meeting,  so 
please do not hesitate to call him. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked for a list of City owned properties that might be available for 
sale.  Mr. Griffin asked Code Compliance Director Corey Williams to compile a list that also 
shows if the property is jointly held with the County. 
 
Mayor O’Geary then asked if there were any further questions. There were none so the Mayor 
asked if Council was prepared to adjourn. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Daeke moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey, 
and was unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned 6:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor  
 
      ATTEST: 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin  
      City Clerk 
  
 

 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

20 May 2014 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes 
Page 1 of 6 

 
 
 

City Council Minutes 
Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #1 - DRAFT 

20 May 2014 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
Council Members Garry Daeke, Michael Rainey and Fearldine Simmons 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, Assistant City Manager, Frank Frazier, City Clerk Esther J. 
McCrackin, Finance Director Katherine Brafford, and Kerr Lake Regional Water Director 
Christy Lipscomb. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 20 May 2014 Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #1 was called to order by 
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:01 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
OPENING REMARKS 
 
Mayor O’Geary welcomed everyone to this first budget work session and turned the meeting 
over to the City Manager to begin. 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

20 May 2014 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes 
Page 2 of 6 

 
 
Car Park Issues 
 
City Manager Griffin said there were four requests from last evening as follows: 
 
1. Limit on Car Tag Fee – Mr. Griffin will speak to the City Attorney about this and will 

report back at the next meeting 
2. City Owned Vacant Property List – A list of City owned property and City/County 

owned property was distributed for review.  Code Compliance Director Williams will be 
at the Thursday, 22 May meeting to respond to questions. 

3. Vehicle Tax vs Total Tax – Mr. Griffin provided Council with page 99 of the FY13 Audit 
which shows an 85.35% collection of the Registered Motor Vehicles versus 94.30% of 
property tax collection.   

4. Maria Parham Real Estate Taxes- Finance Director Kathy Brafford was out of town for a 
CDBG meeting today so she was unable to contact the County regarding this but she will 
have information for Council at the next meeting. 

 
The discussion then turned to Regional Water. 
 
Kerr Lake Regional Water (KLRW)   
 
Fund 64 – City Manager Griffin summarized the key budget issues.  He said approximately 97% 
of the revenue comes from selling water to Henderson, Oxford and Warren County.  Electricity 
and chemicals compose 21% of the budget and continue to be unpredictable in cost.  Mr. Griffin 
said the downward trend of water sales began in FY12 and it seems it will continue in FY15.  He 
said even with the suggested rate increase, Regional Water’s budget is $4,319,000 less than the 
FY14 approved budget of $4,430,000.  Mr. Griffin said he has included in the FY 15 budget the 
re-plumbing of the hypochlorite bulk tank, triennial clear-well inspections which are required 
and critical concrete repairs/patching.  He also said it is important to continue building the 
Capital Reserve for the 20MGD Water Plant Expansion, Corps of Engineers (COE) Reserve, and 
general needs.   
 
Mr. Griffin said the KLRW budget is extremely tight.  The recommendation is for a 5% increase.  
If Council desires to make changes, Mr. Griffin suggested using Capital Reserve funds which in 
the long term may have negative impacts. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked about the year-end figure for FY14.  Mr. Griffin said Kerr  Lake 
Regional Water Director Christy Lipscomb keeps a very tight handle on her department.  Ms. 
Lipscomb said she expects to come in slightly under budget.  She added this has been a better 
year for the use of chemicals as there has been a lot of rain --- in drought years more chemicals 
are needed to provide quality water.   
 
Council Member Coffey asked if there is anything that would help improve this downward trend 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

20 May 2014 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes 
Page 3 of 6 

for water sales.  Mr. Griffin responded mainly growth.  He added Warren County felt some of its 
decrease is due to water conservation devises installed by its largest user, the prison.  He also 
said the weather contributes as people tend not to have to water gardens, wash cars, etc. as often. 
 
Council Member Inscoe, as Chair of the Regional Water Board, added several comments to the 
discussion.  He said last year nothing was contributed to the capital expenditure, the plant is 
approximately 40 years old and there is a “perfect storm” brewing with expenditures up and 
usage down.  He personally would like to see the increase reduced from 5% to 4% with the 
difference (1%) taken from Capital Reserves.  This would automatically reduce the Water 
increase to 4% also.  He added it takes money to operate and reserves will be important in the 
coming year(s). 
 
Council Member Kearney asked about the 1 to 1 ratio between Regional Water and Water.  Mr. 
Griffin said is more like .6% Regional and 1% Water.   
 
Council Member Inscoe brought out the importance of keeping reserves for the IBT (Inter-Basin 
Transfer).   
 
Council Member Coffey asked if the water usage trend is being experienced by all the partners.  
Mr. Griffin said he has not broken it down by partners.  KLRW Director Lipscomb said other 
areas are experiencing the same downward trend. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked if the new radio read meters are contributing.  Mr. Griffin said if 
anything, the old meters tend to read more slowly but the new meters are providing more 
accurate readings. 
 
Council Member Inscoe suggested taking the balance out of the City Water Capital Reserve 
transfer so the increase for Water would be 3 ½ cents. 
 
Fund 78 – Mr. Griffin moved attention to this fund saying it is solely funded by the KLRW plant 
water sales.  He said the FY15 budget calls for $795,000 to be contributed to the debt 
reduction/rate stabilization plan.  As mentioned earlier, this fund was established to reserve funds 
for  a) the Corps of Engineers Reserve (COE Reserve); b) the 20MGD Water Plant Expansion 
projects; and c) General Regional Reserve. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked why the breakout and Mr. Griffin responded to keep the accounts 
separate and clean for auditing purposes.  
 
There was no further discussion about the Regional Water Plant. 
 
Water Fund 
 
Fund 30- Mr. Griffin began summarizing the key budget issues by saying the City’s revenue is 
down with water sales down.  He said 78% of the revenue for Water Fund comes from retail and 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

20 May 2014 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes 
Page 4 of 6 

wholesale government customers with 41% coming from Franklin County.  Another 14%  of 
revenue comes from the Granville and Vance counties water reservation fees.  He reminded 
Council that the Water Department maintains all the water lines within the City and for Regional 
Water.   
 
This portion of the budget is also extremely tight but includes limited funds for maintenance and 
repairs within the water distribution system, replacement of more water meters to radio read 
meters, the radio read software license/maintenance and outsourcing of bill preparation and 
mailing.  Mr. Griffin said 50% of the costs to hire a Public Services Director are also included.  
The City Manager recommends a 5% increase.  If Council desires to make changes, Mr. Griffin 
suggested using Capital Reserve funds and reducing the rate stabilization contribution.   
 
Since Council has already suggested reducing the increase to 3.5%, Mr. Griffin asked if there 
were any questions. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked if the Public Services Director position would still be included.  
Mr. Griffin responded yes.  Council Member Kearney asked if it is anticipated the Public Service 
Director would be hired at the high end of the grade.  Mr. Griffin said yes and added it may well 
take three (3) months to fill the position.  Ms. Coffey asked if the pay scale is in line with the 
findings in the recently completed Pay Study.  Mr. Griffin said yes.  From past experience Mr. 
Griffin felt it would be impossible to find a qualified director at the current City job scale.  
Council Member Inscoe asked if the individual hired would require training.  Mr. Griffin said the 
only training will be in understanding the City system which Council Member Kearney correctly 
called orientation. 
 
Before moving on to the Sewer Fund, Mr. Griffin pointed out that the Water Capital Reserve is 
growing but has not reached Council’s goal.  
 
Sewer Fund - City Manager Griffin said citizens fund 91% of the Sewer Fund.  The key 
expenses are similar to the Regional Water plant with volatile issues with chemicals and 
electricity; the lease purchase for a truck and the replacement of various expensive pieces of 
laboratory equipment; bio-solid disposal, sewer maintenance/repair and street patching for utility 
cuts.  He reminded Council that Powell Bill funds cannot be used for street patching for utility 
repair. 
 
As with the Regional Water, Henderson Water Reclamation Facility participates in Duke 
Energy’s Time of Use Rate program which has saved between $55,000 and $65,000 per year. 
 
The City Manager recommends a 3% rate increase.  If Council desires to make changes, Mr. 
Griffin suggested reducing the capital reserve and rate stabilization contributions.  
 
Council Member Coffey expressed concern that the $21,800 for maintenance work was so low.  
Mr. Griffin agreed.  
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

20 May 2014 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes 
Page 5 of 6 

Council Member Kearney suggested Council be proactive in thinking about the recent Coal Ash 
spill and how it or something similar could affect the water supply.  Mr. Griffin said KLRW 
Director Lipscomb is keeping a close eye on the situation and suggested a work session to 
discuss this in more detail. 
 
Guidance for Staff: 
 
In summary, City Manager Griffin asked if it Council’s wish to reduce the Regional Water rate 
increase to 4%; Water to 3.5% and keep the Sewer increase at  3%.   
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for consensus of Council which was as follows:  YES:  Kearney, Coffey, 
Inscoe, Peace-Jenkins and Daye.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  Rainey, Daeke and 
Simmons. 
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Council Member Rainey had a prior commitment and planned to join this 
meeting about 7:00 p.m.  Council Member Daeke was working and unable to attend.) 
 
City Manager Griffin said the Thursday, 22 May meeting will focus on the General Fund and 
more specifically Public Safety.  He suggested Council review Fund 10 (General Fund) and Fund 
11 (Powell Bill) along with Fund 72 Capital Reserve and Fund 41 (CIP) in preparation for the 
meeting. 
 
Council Member Inscoe made several observations about this budget and said there are three 
vehicles included for lease purchase.  He asked that natural gas conversion be considered which 
should save the City dollars and suggested extended warrantees as several of the existing police 
vehicles have 100,000 miles on them.  Mr. Griffin said pricing has already been considered for  
extended warrantees.  He added he plans to reinstate collision insurance which was dropped  for 
some unknown reason on City vehicles of a certain mileage. 
 
Mr. Inscoe said he is happy with this budget as it includes no ad valorem tax, no dollars are 
being taken from the Fund Balance, the first year of the pay classification plan is being funded, 
the Public Services Director is being unfrozen.  He also pointed out that the Full Time employees 
have been reduced over the past years by 22.  City Manager Griffin said it is actually more like 
45-50 if you go back to 2000. 
 
Council Member Kearney felt the City is in good shape with FY15. 
 
Lastly, Mr. Griffin said there has been a definite tightening of the belt with major reductions in 
supplies and travel spending: the tax/tag requirement allowed the City to not dip into the Fund 
Balance and the reduction in health insurance costs contributed significantly to the budget. 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

20 May 2014 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes 
Page 6 of 6 

Council Member Coffey said she feels better about the FY15 budget than she did the FY14.  She 
added although staffing has been reduced, the work is still being completed at the expected level.  
Mr. Griffin said everyone is working hard but sometimes keeping up with the work is harder 
with less employees.  
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there was anything further or if Council was prepared to adjourn. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member 
Coffey and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 7: 05 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
 
 
     ATTEST: 
 
 
     _____________________________ 
     Esther J. McCrackin 
     City Clerk 
  



 

 
Minute Book 43 

22 May 2014 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes 
Page 1 of 7 

 
 
 

City Council Minutes 
Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #2 - DRAFT 

22 May 2014 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, 
Fearldine A. Simmons and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, Assistant City Manager, Frank Frazier, City Clerk Esther J. 
McCrackin, Finance Director Katherine Brafford, Youth Services Director Donna Stearns, 
Recreation and Parks Director Alan Gill, Athletic Director Steve Osborne, Fire Chief Danny 
Wilkerson, Police Chief Marcus Barrow, Human Resources Director Cathy Brown, and Code 
Compliance Director Corey Williams. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 22 May 2014 Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #2 was called to order by 
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
OPENING REMARKS 
 
Mayor O’Geary immediately turned the meeting over to the City Manager Griffin.   



 

 
Minute Book 43 

22 May 2014 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes 
Page 2 of 7 

City Manager Griffin thanked both staff and Council for their attentiveness and began with the 
Car Park items 
 
Car Park Issues 
 
The three (3) Car park items are: 
 
1. Maria Parham Real Estate Taxes- Finance Director Kathy Brafford said she spoke with 

the County Tax Collector and has compiled that information which was distributed.   She 
said the Hospital has hired an attorney and at this time, no date has been set for a hearing 
regarding its appeal of the County’s assessment.  She added, depending on the outcome, 
the City may be the recipient of additional funds or the City may be required to refund 
monies. 

2. Limit on Car Tag Fee – Research shows in 1988 the limit for the City of Henderson is 
$10.00 via the Local Act of the General Assembly; however, this amount may be 
amended by the General Assembly and Council may wish to consider a resolution in 
FY15 to increase this amount for the FY16 budget. 

3. Discussion regarding the Coal Ash Spill- Mr. Griffin said this has been added to the June 
Work Session. 

 
Council Member Inscoe asked how much income would be generated by adding $5.00 to the car 
tag fee.  Mr. Griffin said perhaps $50,000.  Mr. Inscoe said this will only create more of a burden 
on the citizens and emphasized that relief only comes with growth. 
 
Council Member Daeke said he would be interested to see if the collection of this fee increases 
as the fee is now paid with the tax/tag requirement.  Mr. Daeke suggested any additional income 
from increasing the tag fee should be used for street repairs. 
 
Council Member Coffey mentioned there seems to be more vehicles with illegal tags because of 
the tax/tag program and said perhaps the Police Department will be giving out more tickets to 
generate income. 
 
There were no other comments so City Manager Griffin directed Council’s attention to a one 
page chart summarizing all the major revenue sources and expenditure centers within the 
General Fund.   
 
General Fund 
 
Revenues - Beginning with the revenues, City Manager Griffin said one-half of the City’s 
revenue comes from property tax (38%) and sanitation fees (12%).  Although the General Fund 
is severely stressed, he is not suggesting any increase in the tax rate, or sanitation fee increases 
for FY15.  He said $29.00 is very high for sanitation and would not like to see if go any higher.    



 

 
Minute Book 43 

22 May 2014 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes 
Page 3 of 7 

Sales tax as intergovernmental funds, the Powell Bill and Federal Asset Forfeiture funds all 
depend on State and Federal requirements, along with the economy and weather.  Mr. Griffin 
gave an example of a cold winter makes for higher heating bills, thus the utility franchise 
receives more funds which in turn increase the City’s revenue or another example was as crime 
drops, the City receives less Asset Forfeiture funds --- therefore, it is difficult to predict revenue 
from these sources which make up 27% of the General Fund.  As a reminder, Mr. Griffin said the 
Powell Bill is very restricted in areas of usage as are Asset Forfeiture funds. 
 
Council Member Rainey asked how the forfeiture funds are distributed in the case of a pursuit 
from one county to another.  Police Chief Barrow said there is a cost sharing of approximately 
55/50 between counties if it is requested.  However, he said for a continuous pursuit most 
counties do not request cost sharing unless it assisted in specific areas such as the use of a canine 
unit. 
 
City Manager Griffin said a very small portion (5%) of revenue comes from contracts and 
agreements such as the County’s contribution for Recreation.  This revenue increases only if the 
City spends more on Recreation. Other income is generated from zoning and planning fees, fire 
inspections and recreation fees. 
 
Mr. Griffin said the local economy is stagnant and if it does not improve, local revenues, sales 
tax, Powell Bill and Utility franchise distributions will not increase.  Other issues of concern are 
the FY16 revaluation of property and the unknown property appraisal status with Maria Parham 
Medical Center.  He said the revenue will need to be watched closely throughout FY15. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked if there was a General Fund Contingency.  Mr. Griffin said no. 
 
Expenditures – City Manager Griffin then moved on to the expenditure side of the General 
Fund.  Although Council can create its own categories, Mr. Griffin has broken the expenditures 
into several sections --- the first being the Mandatory expenditures or the Debt Service. 
 
Debt Service (6%) - includes bonds, certificates of deposit (CDs), leases and loans (5.76%).   
State law requires debt service to be paid first.  The only options Council has here is to limit 
issuing new debt. 
 
Governance & Administration (13%) – This category includes Council, Legal, Administration, 
Human Resources, Finance, Information Technology along with contracts to Vance County for 
tax collection and election services.  It also includes retiree health insurance, phase one of the 
Pay Class Plan and bad debt reserve.  
 
Core Services (61%) – City Manager Griffin consider core services as Public Safety (Police, 
Fire, E-911 and Asset Forfeiture) and Public Services’ Divisions.  He said the Waste Industries, 
Inc. contract is increasing by 5%.  There are insufficient resources for resurfacing streets, 
repairing sidewalks, replacing vehicles and/or equipment, etc. properly. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

22 May 2014 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes 
Page 4 of 7 

Essential Services (10%) – Mr. Griffin included Zoning & Planning, Code Compliance and the 
essential services within Public Services.  He said the budget for this grouping includes only the 
basics and pointed out that again there is nothing extra over the FY14 budget.  There are no 
additional funds for demolitions, repair of public buildings or restoration of frozen positions. 
 
Discretionary Services (11%) – City Manager Griffin said all services provided by the City are 
important but in looking at expenditures, Discretionary Services are just at a different level.  This 
category includes Recreation, Youth Services, Old City Owned Buildings and Main Street.  The 
FY15 budget has held Recreation, Youth Services, Aycock Center, the Library and Airport all at 
FY14 funding levels.  Reduction in funding of local agencies such as Crime Stoppers, Roanoke 
River Basin Association and the Arts Council is recommended.  Mr. Griffin said a letter from the 
Boys & Girls Club was received on Monday requesting $1,000. Since the budget is already 
compiled, he suggested a verbal request be made during the Public Hearing on 9 June. 
 
The recommendation to de-authorize the Main Street Program was a difficult decision but the 
staff reduction of one will provide $53,000 for other uses within the General Fund.  It is also 
recommended to remove the currently vacant position of civilian Police Office Assistant and 
four (4) part-time school crossing guards.  As has been done in the past, the City will work to 
relocate any displaced person into another City position. 
 
Follow-Up Comments - On the positive side, the proposed budget includes funding for the first 
phase of the Pay Class Study, unfreezing two positions:  Public Services Director and Assistant 
Finance Director, and the purchase of 3 police cars, and two fire vehicles. 
 
Overall, Mr. Griffin said the General Fund has no contingency for major capital expenditures, 
unforeseen problems, nor does it include funds for economic incentives.  It also does not address 
staffing issues.   Mr. Griffin emphasized Council’s need to understand if there are any major 
problems such as the aging of the storm drains or the recent pump failures, there is nothing extra 
to fall back on within this budget.  He also asked Council to consider having a discussion in the 
coming months regarding the two old buildings (SNB and Perry Museum) that the City currently 
owns.   
 
City Manager Griffin then said he would be happy to answer any questions from Council. 
 
Main Street Program - Council Member Kearney expressed concern regarding economic 
development.  He felt the Main Street program is needed for growth and noted 14 new 
businesses in downtown.  He wondered how many businesses have been lost during the 
corresponding timeframe.  City Manager Griffin appreciated Mr. Kearney’s concern but said 
with no operating dollars and only one person in the department the creation of viable and/or 
effective programs is impossible.   
 
Council Member Coffey said she would like to know how many businesses have closed in the 
downtown area.  Mr. Griffin said he did not have a number but would find out and will report 
back.   



 

 
Minute Book 43 

22 May 2014 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes 
Page 5 of 7 

 
Council Member Inscoe felt merchants are indifferent and suggested they step up and adopt a 
planter or something like that to improve the image.  Council Member Coffey added proper 
signage needs to be addressed as some businesses have their name written in marker on the 
windows. 
 
Council Member Kearney mentioned a positive brand is needed for the City. 
 
Council Member Rainey asked if a list of expectations/goals, time frames were ever put in place 
for the Main Street position.  Mr. Griffin said the staff person in the Main Street position has the 
qualifications to deal with small businesses and fund raising; however, there is no funding to pay 
for costs associated with such activities.  Council Member Rainey also asked if this position, 
which is tied to the DDC, is in competition with the Henderson-Vance Chamber of Commerce.  
Mr. Griffin said the Chamber and the DDC work very well together and did not see this as a 
problem. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked if any fundraising had been attempted.  Mr. Griffin said 
fundraising was tried by the previous staff person with no meaningful results. 
 
Council Member Inscoe reminded Council that this position once resided in the Chamber office 
and was brought back to City Hall as a cost cutting measure. 
 
Council Member Daeke turned the discussion to the other positions being eliminated and the 
unfreezing of the Assistant Finance Director and Public Services Director, both of which he felt 
were necessary.  Mr. Griffin asked permission for Police Chief Barrow to address Council on the 
elimination of that department’s four (4) positions.  Chief Barrow said he has polled other like 
size CALEA police forces and found none of them house school crossing guards.  He said we 
have moved away from the era of children walking to school.  He said he also did a study within 
the City and found the majority of students either are driven to school or are walked to and from 
school by an adult.   Mr. Griffin asked how the County handles this situation.  Chief Barrow said 
the County uses school employees as crossing guards.   
 
Council Member Daeke asked if the workload of the administrative position in the Police 
Department could be absorbed by others.  Chief Barrow said he is confident the work can be 
completed in a timely manner by the existing staff. 
 
Mr. Griffin said Chief Barrow suggested eliminating these positions when staff was asked to 
reduce budget requests back to the FY14 levels. 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins asked how grants will be affected if Main Street is decertified.  
Mr. Griffin said without the certification, certain grants could not be applied for and added the 
only grant he was aware of in recent history was for the REEF project.  Council Member Daeke  



 

 
Minute Book 43 

22 May 2014 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes 
Page 6 of 7 

said he was unaware of any grants in probably the last ten years and Council Member Inscoe 
added with the present economic downturn, the chance of any new grants in the near future 
would be negligible. 
 
Other Items - Council Member Kearney than asked about the request from the Boys and Girls 
Club.  He would like the City Manager to find funds for the club, even if a portion needed to 
come from his stipend as Council member.  Council Member Coffey felt $1,000 could be found 
and Council Member Daeke and Daye said they would be willing to just donate $100 to the club. 
 
Council Member Rainey asked if Council would consider $1,000 for 211 (United Way 
information number).  Council Member Daeke asked for utilization information before this 
request is considered. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked about the status of the pilot program regarding replacing street 
lights with LEDs.  Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier said there have been no complaints 
about the pilot program lights on Dabney and Cypress.  He added he spoke to the Duke Energy 
representative recently and was told more help is being added as Duke Energy has received 
requests from many cities.  Mr. Frazier was charged with continuing to work closely with Duke 
Energy as this is a priority.  Mr. Griffin agreed but said it could take time. 
 
Council Member Inscoe then said with no ad valorem tax increase, no sanitation fee increase, no 
fund balance reduction and reductions in the proposed Regional Water, Water and Sewer 
increase he felt no further discussion was needed until the Public Hearing. 
 
Mayor O’Geary called for the consensus of Council that the FY15 proposed budget as adjusted 
in the work session now go to the 9 June Public Hearing.  The consensus was:  YES:  Kearney, 
Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons and Daye. NO: None. ABSTAIN:  
None.  ABSENT.  None. 
 
Guidance for Staff: 
 
City Manager Griffin asked for confirmation regarding finding funding for the Boys and Girls 
Club.  It was the consensus to find $800 for the Boys and Girls Club as follows:  YES:  Kearney, 
Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke and Daye.  NO:  Simmons (would like to see 
$1,000 instead of $800).  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT.  None. 
 
City Manager Griffin then asked for verification that Council sees no need for further discussion 
until after the 9 June Public Hearing.  The consensus was YES:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, 
Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons and Daye.  NO;  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  
None. 
 
The City Manager reminded Council that once the Public Hearing is held, Council has the option 
to adopt the FY15 budget at any time before 30 June.  It can be adopted following the Public 
Hearing, at a Work Session, if needed, or any other time.  With Council’s permission Mr. Griffin 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

22 May 2014 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes 
Page 7 of 7 

directed the City Clerk to change the public notices as necessary, to reflect the cancellation of all 
work sessions between now and 9 June, which is the date of the Public Hearing. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there was anything further or if Council was prepared to adjourn. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Coffey moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daye 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 
  



CAF 14-54-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: CAF 14-54: 12 May 2014 Council Meeting:   
28 April 2014 Work Session 

Page 1 of 7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
27 May 2014 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  14-54-A  

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-31, Rejecting the Offer by Prestigious 
Housing, Inc., to Purchase the Old First National Bank Building Located at 213 S. 
Garnett Street  
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 8:  Provide Financial Resourcing 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 14-31, Rejecting the Offer by Prestigious Housing, Inc., to Purchase the 

Old First National Bank Building Located at 213 S. Garnett Street 
 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
On 10 January 2011 Council voted via Resolution 11-16 to give complete ownership of the Old 
Armory Building to Vance County and assume sole ownership of the Old Savings and Loan Bank 
Building located at 213 S. Garnett Street in hopes it would help in the possible sale of both 
properties.  On 10 September 2012 via Resolution 12-05, Council declared the old SNB Bank 
Building (Old First National Bank Building) surplus property and authorized the solicitation of 
proposals and sale of said building.  On 14 April 2014 an offer was received from the Prestigious 
Housing, Inc. in the amount of $7,500. 
 
The Land Planning & Development Committee met on 23 April 2014 to discuss said offer.  
Following a brief discussion regarding the cost avoidance in having to bring the building up to 
minimum standards, the Committee unanimously agreed to recommend to City Council to accept 
the offer as the opening bid for the property.   
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 9 June 14 Regular Meeting 

 



CAF 14-54-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: CAF 14-54: 12 May 2014 Council Meeting:   
28 April 2014 Work Session 

Page 2 of 7 
 

This offer was presented to Council on 28 April 2014.  However, additional information was 
received just prior to the meeting and Council Member Inscoe asked that this item be tabled until 
the Land Planning could meet to consider the additional information which pertained specifically to 
the owing of back taxes. 
 
On 7 May 2014, the Land Planning & Development Committee met with City Attorney John 
Zollicoffer, Jr. who proposed the attached Procedure to Purchase City Owned Property, along with 
an Offer to Purchase Agreement.  The Agreement specifically includes conditions regarding taxes 
being paid in full on all other properties owned by the potential buyer.  The Committee discussed 
the procedure and a motion was unanimously approved to bring the procedure before Council for 
consideration.  The motion also included keeping the Prestigious Housing, Inc. bid on the table to 
be reconsidered by the Land Planning Committee after this meeting and for the Committee to bring 
its recommendation back to Council at the 9 June 2014 meeting regarding the bid. 
 
On 12 May 2014, Council approved via Resolution 14-41 a Procedure for Purchasing City Owned 
Property and an Offer to Purchase City Owned Property Agreement which provides for, among 
other things, the right to reject a bid unless the ad valorem property taxes are paid in full by the 
buyer and any business entity the buyer may have ownership interest.  Part of the resolution was to 
remand the offer back to the Land Planning Committee for further consideration of the bid offer 
after consideration of this Resolution. 
 
The Land Planning Committee met on 22 May 2014.  It was the unanimous decision to reject the 
bid offer as Kenneth G. Stevenson, the owner of Prestigious Housing, Inc., is the owner of at least 
six (6) other businesses that owes a significant amount in back taxes. 
 
Although the City would like to see this building restored, it is recommended that at this time, 
Council reject the bid of $7,500 by Prestigious Housing, Inc. 
 
 Enclosures: 
  

1. Resolution 14-31    
2. 22 May 2014 Land Planning & Development Committee Meeting Minutes 
3. 23 April 2014 Land Planning & Development Committee Meeting Minutes 
4. Resolution 12-05 
5. Resolution 11-16 



CAF 14-54-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: CAF 14-54: 12 May 2014 Council Meeting:   
28 April 2014 Work Session 

Page 3 of 7 
 

RESOLUTION 14-31 
 

A RESOLUTION INDICATING THE CITY COUNCIL’S PROPOSAL  
TO REJECT A NEGOTIATED OFFER FOR THE OLD FIRST 

NATIONAL BANK BUILDING ON GARNETT STREET  
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson owns the old First National Bank building located on Garnett 

Street: and 
 
WHEREAS, Prestigious Housing, Inc. has offered to purchase the old First National Bank building 

on Garnett Street for the sum of $7,500.00 and has deposited with the City of Henderson the 
sum of $375.00 representing a good faith deposit; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Land Planning Committee met on 22 May 2014 to consider said bid in light of the 

Offer to Purchase City Owned Property Agreement approved by City Council on 19 May 
2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, Prestigious Housing, Inc. owes the City of Henderson over $141,000 in back taxes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Henderson rejects the 

offer by Prestigious Housing, Inc. to purchase the Old SNB Building in accordance with the 
following: 

 
1) In accordance with NCGS 160A-269, City Council reserves the right at any time to reject 

any and all offers: and 
 

2) In accordance with the Offer to Purchase City Owned Property Agreement, Section 2(c), 
Other Conditions which states all ad valorem property taxes have been paid in full.  

 
The foregoing Resolution 14-31, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
***** on this the *** day of **** 2014:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

 
___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book_, pp. **, CAF 14-54 



CAF 14-54-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: CAF 14-54: 12 May 2014 Council Meeting:   
28 April 2014 Work Session 

Page 4 of 7 
 

R E S O L U T I O N    12-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL 
DECLARING THE OLD SNB BANK BUILDING ON GARNETT STREET AS 

SURPLUS PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING THE SOLICITATION OF 
PROPOSALS FROM REALTORS TO MARKET AND SELL SAID 

BUILDING 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
January 2012, and during said retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and 
Goals and 12 Core Values; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of the Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 3: 

Economic Development; Action Plan 3-5: Redevelop Downtown; and 
 
WHEREAS, the old SNB Bank building is owned by the City of Henderson and plans to utilize for 

a proposed rail passenger station has not materialized; the building is vacant and in a 
deteriorated condition; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Land Planning Committee has recommended to City Council to declare the 

property surplus and to have said property professionally marketed and ultimately sold, 
including any public-private partnerships that may be advantageous to both the City and 
prospective developer. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Henderson City Council that it does hereby declare 

the old SNB Bank Building located at 213 South Garnett Street to be surplus and available 
for disposition and/or sale as deemed appropriate by the City Council; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Manager is authorized to solicit proposals from 

realtors and brokers to market and sell the property, with said marketing and sale to be 
flexible to consider viable public-private partnerships that the Council may find 
advantageous to both the City and prospective developer, said sale to be subject to the 
general statutes relative to sales by cities. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Henderson will share any net profits from the sale 

of the building and property with the County of Vance in accordance with agreement 
already in place between the City and County that provided for the transfer of the County’s 
ownership interest in the property to the City via Resolution 11-16 approved by City 
Council on 10 January 2011. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 14-54-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: CAF 14-54: 12 May 2014 Council Meeting:   
28 April 2014 Work Session 

Page 5 of 7 
 

The foregoing Resolution 12-05, introduced by Council Member Inscoe and seconded by Council 
Member Rainey on this the 10th day of September 2012, and having been submitted to a roll call 
vote, was APPROVED by the following votes: YES: Daeke, Brown, Daye, Kearney, Coffey, 
Inscoe, Rainey and Peace-Jenkins. NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT.  None. 
 
             
     __________________________________   
     James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
_____________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
(Reference:  Minute Book 42, p.583; CAF 12-18; Resolution 11-16) 
   
 



CAF 14-54-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: CAF 14-54: 12 May 2014 Council Meeting:   
28 April 2014 Work Session 

Page 6 of 7 
 

RESOLUTION 11—16 
 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE DISPOSITION OF CERTAIN 
JOINTLY HELD PROPERTIES BY THE CITY AND COUNTY OTHERWISE 

IDENTIFIED AS THE  
ARMORY BUILDING LOCATED ON DABNEY DRIVE AND THE  

OLD SNB BANK BUILDING LOCATED ON SOUTH GARNETT STREET 
 

WHEREAS,  the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
January 2010, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and 
Goals; and 

WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one KSO as follows:  KSO 4: To Improve the Condition of 
the Housing Stock, Action Plan 4-2, Redevelopment; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Henderson (City) and County of Vance (County) have previously 
discussed the possibility of disposing of both of the previously mentioned properties; and 

WHEREAS, there does not appear to be any grant funding available to provide for the renovation of 
the Armory building; and  

WHEREAS,  it is in the best interest of the City and County to dispose of said properties before 
either become more deteriorated. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Henderson City Council that it does hereby 
authorize the following: 

1. The City Manager to negotiate with the County Manager to prepare proper instruments for 
the disposition of the Armory and old SNB buildings; and 

2. The City of Henderson would accept the County’s share of old SNB building on South 
Garnett Street and would deed its share of the Armory facility to the County; and 

3. Said transfer of interests in property is predicated upon and conditioned by the equal 
division of any net proceeds from the eventual sale of said properties, either individually or 
collectively, between the City and County. 

 

 

 



CAF 14-54-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: CAF 14-54: 12 May 2014 Council Meeting:   
28 April 2014 Work Session 

Page 7 of 7 
 

The foregoing Resolution 11—16, upon motion of Council Member Rainey and second by Council 
Member Peace-Jenkins, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes 
and was APPROVED on this the 10th day of January 2011:  YES:  Peace-Jenkins, Davis, Daye, and 
Rainey.  NO:   Daeke.  ABSTAIN:   None.  ABSENT:  Coffey, Evans, and Inscoe.  
   

 

 

      _____________________________ 
      James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________   
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 

________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 

Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. 6. 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 40 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

28 May 2014 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 14-06-A 

Consideration of Approval of: 1) Resolution 14-17-A, Authorizing the Execution of 
Change Order #4 for the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Project to Devere 
Construction Company, Inc. in the Amount of $41,224.61, and 2) Ordinance 14-26-
A FY14 Budget Amendment #37, Amending the CIP Sewer Fund for Change Order 
#4 to the Water Reclamation Facility Renovation Project 
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
 KSO 5: Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 

Systems. 
 
Recommendation:   
 

Approval of: 
 

 1) Resolution 14-17-A, Authorizing the Execution of Change Order #4 for the Henderson 
Water Reclamation Facility Project to Devere Construction Company, Inc. in the Amount of 
$41,224.61. 

 2) Ordinance 14-26-A, FY14 Budget Amendment #37, Amending the CIP Sewer Fund for 
Change Order #4 to the Water Reclamation Facility Renovation Project 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
On 10 Dec 2010, the City Council approved acceptance of a State Revolving Loan, via 
Resolution 12-98, in the amount of $16,615,000 for improvements to the Henderson Water 
Reclamation Facility providing funding for major improvements to the plant which will simplify 
treatment processes as well as reduce operational costs. 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 9 June 14 Short Reg. Meeting 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 40 

 

Change Order #1 in the amount of $55,709 was approved by the City Council on 23 September 
2013, via Resolution 13-09-A, leaving a contingency balance of $601,431. 
 
Change Order #2 was approved in the amount of $24,204.76 on 27 January 2014 leaving a 
contingency balance of $577,226. 
 
Change Order #3 was approved in the amount of $78,079.367 on 28 April 2014 via Resolution 
14-17, leaving a contingency balance of $499,146. 
 
A correction to the contingency line item for a previous budget amendment was approved in the 
amount of $50,500 on 12 May 2014 via Ordinance 14-30, Budget Amendment #34, leaving a 
contingency balance of $448,646. 
 
The items listed below are proposed changes/additions that were discovered during the 
construction process that were not in the original bid, but necessary due to code changes, utility 
conflicts and items needed to properly operate the new plant.  City staff and McGill Associates 
recommend approval of this change order and the State has approved them as eligible for 
funding. 

 
Graph Provided by McGill Associates 

 

# DESCRIPTION PRICE DAYS

1 Modifications to Electrical Service 10,558.49$    3

2 Additional Oxidation Ditch PLC 30,666.12$    0

Total 41,224.61$    3

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER FOUR

 
 

 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Resolution 14-17-A 
2. Ordinance 14-26-A 
3. Resolution 14-17 
4. Ordinance 14-30 
5. Resolution 13-09-A 
6. Resolution 12-98 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 40 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   14-17-A 
 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF CHANGE ORDER #4 TO DEVERE CONSTRUCTION 
COMPANY FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO THE HENDERSON WATER RECLAMATION 

FACILITY PROJECT 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in February 
2014, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of the Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 5: Provide 

Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure - To provide reliable, dependable and environmentally 
compliant infrastructure systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council accepted loan funding for this purpose from the NC Department of 

Environment and Natural Resources, Infrastructure Finance Section; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Consulting Engineer and City staff recommend approval of Change Order #4, as 

outlined in the description provided by McGill Associates, to Devere Construction Company, Inc. 
being more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution, subject to approval of the 
Infrastructure Finance Section. 

 
WHEREAS, there is $448,646 remaining in the contingency fund, which could be used for these costs 

pending City Council approval; and 
 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY APPROVE the execution of Change Order #4 of the Henderson Water Reclamation 
Facility Improvement Project to Devere Construction Company, Inc. in the amount of 
$41,224.61, , subject to approval by the State; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is authorized to sign all agreements and documents 

necessary to effect said Agreement. 
 
The foregoing Resolution 14-17-A, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council Member 
**, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was ***** on this the 
*** day of **** 2014:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 41, pp. **. 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 40 

 

 

Resolution 14-17-A 
Attachment A 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 40 

 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 12 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 13 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 14 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 15 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 16 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 17 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 18 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 19 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 20 of 40 

 

O R D I N A N C E   14-26-A 
 
 

FY 2013—2014 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 37 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE CIP SEWER FUND  

FOR ADDITIONAL CHANGE-ORDERS TO THE  
WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY RENOVATION PROJECT 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson on 27 June 2013 adopted the FY13-14 

Annual Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the Sewer Fund, said fund referred to as 44: CIP Sewer Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved, and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 
 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 21 of 40 

 

FUNDS:
PROJECT: Water Reclamation Facility Renovation

Approved Current
11-Apr-11 Budget Amendment Revised

State CWMTF Grant 44-847-458161 -$                   600,000$              -$                         600,000$                 
44-847-458221 -$                   16,115,000$         -$                         16,115,000$            
44-847-458222 -$                   1,000,000$           -$                         1,000,000$              
44-847-461070 -$                   779,110$              -$                         779,110$                 

Trans fr: 71 CR Utilities 44-847-461071 70,000$             -$                      -$                         -$                        
Trans fr: 79 Rate Stabilization 44-847-461079 -$                   103,360$              -$                         103,360$                 

 -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        

Total 70,000$             18,597,470$         -$                         18,597,470$            
18,597,470$            

Approved Current
11-Apr-11 Budget Amendment Revised

44-847-461001 -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        
44-847-510200 2,000$               5,000$                  -$                         5,000$                     

Engineering Preliminary Engineering Report 44-847-510301 68,000$             68,000$                -$                         68,000$                   

44-847-223003 -$                   843,125$              -$                         843,125$                 

44-847-223004 -$                   32,105$                -$                         32,105$                   

44-847-223005 -$                   39,380$                -$                         39,380$                   

44-847-223006 -$                   115,810$              -$                         115,810$                 

44-847-461002 -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        

44-847-223010 -$                   500,000$              -$                         500,000$                 
44-847-499099 -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        
44-847-507100 -$                   27,000$                -$                         27,000$                   
44-847-510400 -$                   15,676,994$         41,225$                    15,718,219$            

44-847-670001 -$                   367,300$              -$                         367,300$                 
Transfer to Capital Reserve Utilities 44-847-561070 -$                   379,110$              -$                         379,110$                 

44-847-999010 -$                   448,646$              (41,225)$                  407,421$                 
44-847-999020 -$                   95,000$                -$                         95,000$                   

Total 70,000$             18,597,470$         -$                         18,597,470$            
18,597,470$            

Variance -$                         

Approved PER work and established project ordinance: $70,000

12 May 14: CAF 14-59; Ord 14-30; BA#34 To amend the project budget for corrections to FY 2013 BA #22 and to appropriate an additional amount 
for Admin/Legal Fees.  The budget for Engineering Design was incorrectly eliminated when preparing BA 
#22 - this will restore that budget line.

27 Jan 14: CAF 14-13; Res 14-07; Ord 14-08; BA#24 To amend the project budget for change order #2 to the construction contract with Devere Construction 
Company.  These changes were brought before Council during the work session on January 13, 2014.  
The costs associated with this change order total $24,205.  These additional costs are being budgeted 
from the Contingency line item.

To amend the project budget for changes in post-bid estimates.  The transfer side of Fund 79 was part of 
BA#10; therefore that side of the transaction is not being duplicated here.  The project originally called for 
a transfer in from CR Utilities (Fund 70).  After notification of the $600,000 CWMTF Grant was received, 
the project budget was amended to revert those funds back to CR Utilities ($379,110).  After all bids and 
costs were received, it has been determined that $400,000of those funds are needed to complete the 
funding of this project, with the remaining $103,360 to come from the Rate Stabilization Fund

14 Jan 13: CAF 13-12; Res 13-09; Ord 13-08; BA#22

To amend the project budget for changes in post-bid estimates.  ECS Carolinas, LLP performed the 
subsurface exploration and geotechnical engineering work and it is being recommended by McGill 
Associates that they perform the Construction Materials Testing Services.  The estimated cost to perform 
this work is $115,810 and the current budget is $100,000.  The additional cost is being budgeted from the 
Contingency line item.

24 June 13: CAF 13-74; Res 13-51; Ord 13-37; BA#40

To amend the project budget for changes or proposed modifications to the engineering contract being 
recommended by McGill Associates.  These changes include adding alternate #5 to the original contract 
price.  The cost of alternate #5 in the original bid was $33,000 and the contractor has agreed to honor the 
same price at this time.  In addition to the cost for alternate #5, other costs as outlined in the letter are for 
unsuitable soils, telescoping valve adjustments and door closures, bringing the total amount of the 
proposed change order to $55,709.  The additional cost is being budgeted from the Contingency line 
item.

23 Sept 13: CAF 13-12-A; Res 13-09-A; Ord 13-08-A; BA#13

24 Mar 14: CAF 14-06; Res 14-17; Ord 14-26; BA#30 To amend the project budget for change order #3 to the construction contract with Devere Construction 
Company.  These changes are being brought before Council during the work session on March 24, 2014.  
The costs associated with this change order total $85,468.  These additional costs are being budgeted 
from the Contingency line item.

26 Nov 12: CAF 12-115; Res 12-73; Ord 12-66; BA#12; MB42,p Notification of approval of CWMTF grant: $600,000. Transfer funds previously transferred in from Capital 
Reserve Utilities back to that fund.

11 Apr 11: CAF 11-70; Res 11-44, Ord 11-29; MB42, p.

14 Nov 11: CAF 11-B-134; Res 11-111; Ord 11-62; MB42, p.

10 Oct 11: CAF 11-134; MB42, p.
26 Oct 11: CAF 11-A-134; Res 11-103; MB42, p.

Mini-Brooks discussion
Approved Mini-Brooks exemption

25 June 12: CAF 12-75; Ord 12-42; BA# 53; MB42,p 492 Amend for decrease in estimated closing fees for grant and loan administration (23,190)
Phase 3 is construction and is estimated at $14,075,000

award of contract to McGill for engineering/deisgn phase and establishing total project budget

Phase 1 was Preliminary Engineering & legal/admin: $70,000

Phase 3

Admin, Permitting and Legal Fees-design phase

Closing Fee-grant and loan administration

Engineering  Permitting Adminstration

Land Acquisition

28 Nov 11: CAF 11-C-134, Ord 11-62, MB42, p

CG&L = Construction Grants & Loans from State of NC, DENR

First budget amendment to Project Ordinance: $1,033,900

Engineering Geotechnical

Engineering Bidding & Aw ard Phase

Phase 2 is design engineering, permitting, bidding and project contract award: $1,044,610

12 Dec 11:  CAF 11-D-134, Ord 11-62, MB42, p

Ordinance 14-26-A

State Revolving Loan

 

Authorized application for grant/loan14 Feb 11: CAF 11-38; Res 11-12; MB 42, p.
Notes:Reference:

Construction Costs

Contingency

EXPENDITURES

Legal/Administrative

Phase 1
Admin, Permitting and Legal Fees

Phase 2

9 June 14: CAF 14-06-A; Res 14-17-A; Ord 14-26-A; BA#37 To amend the project budget for change order #4 to the construction contract with Devere Construction 
Company.  These changes are being brought before Council during the regular meeting on June 9, 2014.  
The costs associated with this change order total $41,225.  These additional costs are being budgeted 
from the Contingency line item.

44: CIP SEWER

Contingencies & Other

Engineering Design

Captial Outlay Reserve--not yet aw arded

FY 13-14 Budget Amendment #37

Budget Amendment #10 to this Capital/Grant Project

Engineering Contingency

Project Budget Created on 11 Apr 11

Construction Admin & Inspection

REVENUES

State RFL Grant
Trans fr: 70 CR Utilities

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 22 of 40 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 14-26-A, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was **** on this the 9th day of June 2014:  YES:  . NO:  .   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             

 
___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p.**; CAF 14-06-A 
  
 
 
 
 
__________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA - CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 14-26-A adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on ________________ 2014. This Ordinance is 
recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p.***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ****. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager  



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 23 of 40 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   14-17 
 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF CHANGE ORDER #3 TO DEVERE CONSTRUCTION 
COMPANY FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO THE HENDERSON WATER RECLAMATION 

FACILITY PROJECT 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January 
2013, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of the Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 5: Provide 

Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure - To provide reliable, dependable and environmentally 
compliant infrastructure systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council accepted loan funding for this purpose from the NC Department of 

Environment and Natural Resources, Infrastructure Finance Section; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is $576,225 remaining in the contingency fund, which could be used for these costs 

pending City Council approval; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Consulting Engineer and City staff recommend approval of Change Order #3, as 

outlined in the description provided by McGill Associates, (See Attachment A) to Devere 
Construction Company, Inc., subject to approval of the Infrastructure Finance Section. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY APPROVE the execution of Change Order #3 of the Henderson Water Reclamation 
Facility Improvement Project to Devere Construction Company, Inc. in the amount of 
$78,079.37, subject to approval by the State; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is authorized to sign all agreements and documents 

necessary to effect said Agreement. 
 
The foregoing Resolution 14-17, upon motion of Council Member Rainey and second by Council 
Member Daeke, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
APPROVED on this the 28th day of April 2014:  YES: Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons, 
Kearney and Coffey.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: Daye. 

 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 41, pp. **. 

CAF 14-06-A 
Attachment #3 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 24 of 40 

 

 

# DESCRIPTION PRICE DAYS

1 Return Activiated Sludge Flow Meter and Manhole 24,121.99$    2

2 Headworks Structural Changes 5,964.15$      2

3 Administration Building Restroom Exhaust Chagnes 417.77$          0

4 Utility Conflicts at Influent Pump Station 11,955.83$    1

5 Sheetrock Framing at Maintenance Building 1,567.13$      0

6 Clarifier #1 Effluent Adjustment 3,380.09$      1

7 Utility Conflicts at Clarifier Effluent/Filter Bypass Line 12,197.81$    3

8 Spray Foam Insulation in Administration Building Ceiling 8,441.81$      3

9 Admin. Building Sewer Adjustments 24,726.28$    5

10 Credit for changing DI to PVC on Non Potable Water (3,334.73)$     0

11 Credit for deletion of Electrical Manholes (11,358.76)$  0

12 January Weather Days 4

13 February Weather Days 4

14 March Weather Days 5

Total 78,079.37$    30

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER THREE

 

Resolution 14-17 
Attachment A 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 25 of 40 

 

O R D I N A N C E   14-30 
 

FY 2013—2014 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 34 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE CIP SEWER FUND  
TO CORRECT A PRIOR AMENDMENT AND 

TO APPROPRIATE ADDITIONAL FEES FOR LEGAL/ADMIN  
WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY RENOVATION PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson on 27 June 2013 adopted the FY13-14 

Annual Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the Sewer Fund, said fund referred to as 44: CIP Sewer Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved, and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 
 

CAF 14-06-A 
Attachment #4 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 26 of 40 

 

FUNDS:
PROJECT: Water Reclamation Facility Renovation

Approved Current
11-Apr-11 Budget Amendment Revised

State CWMTF Grant 44-847-458161 -$                   600,000$              -$                         600,000$                 
44-847-458221 -$                   16,115,000$         -$                         16,115,000$            
44-847-458222 -$                   1,000,000$           -$                         1,000,000$              
44-847-461070 -$                   779,110$              -$                         779,110$                 

Trans fr: 71 CR Utilities 44-847-461071 70,000$             -$                      -$                         -$                        
Trans fr: 79 Rate Stabilization 44-847-461079 -$                   103,360$              -$                         103,360$                 

 -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        

Total 70,000$             18,597,470$         -$                         18,597,470$            
18,597,470$            

Approved Current
11-Apr-11 Budget Amendment Revised

44-847-461001 -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        
44-847-510200 2,000$               2,500$                  2,500$                      5,000$                     

Engineering Preliminary Engineering Report 44-847-510301 68,000$             68,000$                -$                         68,000$                   

44-847-223003 -$                   775,125$              68,000$                    843,125$                 

44-847-223004 -$                   32,105$                -$                         32,105$                   

44-847-223005 -$                   39,380$                -$                         39,380$                   

44-847-223006 -$                   115,810$              -$                         115,810$                 

44-847-461002 -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        

44-847-223010 -$                   500,000$              -$                         500,000$                 
44-847-499099 -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        
44-847-507100 -$                   27,000$                -$                         27,000$                   
44-847-510400 -$                   15,684,384$         -$                         15,684,384$            

44-847-670001 -$                   367,300$              -$                         367,300$                 
Transfer to Capital Reserve Utilities 44-847-561070 -$                   379,110$              -$                         379,110$                 

44-847-999010 -$                   491,756$              (50,500)$                  441,256$                 
44-847-999020 -$                   115,000$              (20,000)$                  95,000$                   

Total 70,000$             18,597,470$         -$                         18,597,470$            
18,597,470$            

Variance -$                         

Approved PER work and established project ordinance: $70,000

12 May 14: CAF 14-59; Ord 14-30; BA#34 To amend the project budget for corrections to FY 2013 BA #22 and to appropriate an additional amount 
for Admin/Legal Fees.  The budget for Engineering Design was incorrectly eliminated when preparing BA 
#22 - this will restore that budget line.

27 Jan 14: CAF 14-13; Res 14-07; Ord 14-08; BA#24 To amend the project budget for change order #2 to the construction contract with Devere Construction 
Company.  These changes were brought before Council during the work session on January 13, 2014.  
The costs associated with this change order total $24,205.  These additional costs are being budgeted 
from the Contingency line item.

To amend the project budget for changes in post-bid estimates.  The transfer side of Fund 79 was part of 
BA#10; therefore that side of the transaction is not being duplicated here.  The project originally called for 
a transfer in from CR Utilities (Fund 70).  After notification of the $600,000 CWMTF Grant was received, 
the project budget was amended to revert those funds back to CR Utilities ($379,110).  After all bids and 
costs were received, it has been determined that $400,000of those funds are needed to complete the 
funding of this project, with the remaining $103,360 to come from the Rate Stabilization Fund

14 Jan 13: CAF 13-12; Res 13-09; Ord 13-08; BA#22

To amend the project budget for changes in post-bid estimates.  ECS Carolinas, LLP performed the 
subsurface exploration and geotechnical engineering work and it is being recommended by McGill 
Associates that they perform the Construction Materials Testing Services.  The estimated cost to perform 
this work is $115,810 and the current budget is $100,000.  The additional cost is being budgeted from the 
Contingency line item.

24 June 13: CAF 13-74; Res 13-51; Ord 13-37; BA#40

To amend the project budget for changes or proposed modifications to the engineering contract being 
recommended by McGill Associates.  These changes include adding alternate #5 to the original contract 
price.  The cost of alternate #5 in the original bid was $33,000 and the contractor has agreed to honor the 
same price at this time.  In addition to the cost for alternate #5, other costs as outlined in the letter are for 
unsuitable soils, telescoping valve adjustments and door closures, bringing the total amount of the 
proposed change order to $55,709.  The additional cost is being budgeted from the Contingency line 
item.

23 Sept 13: CAF 13-12-A; Res 13-09-A; Ord 13-08-A; BA#13

24 Mar 14: CAF 14-06; Res 14-17; Ord 14-26; BA#30 To amend the project budget for change order #3 to the construction contract with Devere Construction 
Company.  These changes are being brought before Council during the work session on March 24, 2014.  
The costs associated with this change order total $85,468.  These additional costs are being budgeted 
from the Contingency line item.

26 Nov 12: CAF 12-115; Res 12-73; Ord 12-66; BA#12; MB42,p Notification of approval of CWMTF grant: $600,000. Transfer funds previously transferred in from Capital 
Reserve Utilities back to that fund.

11 Apr 11: CAF 11-70; Res 11-44, Ord 11-29; MB42, p.

14 Nov 11: CAF 11-B-134; Res 11-111; Ord 11-62; MB42, p.

10 Oct 11: CAF 11-134; MB42, p.
26 Oct 11: CAF 11-A-134; Res 11-103; MB42, p.

Mini-Brooks discussion
Approved Mini-Brooks exemption

25 June 12: CAF 12-75; Ord 12-42; BA# 53; MB42,p 492 Amend for decrease in estimated closing fees for grant and loan administration (23,190)
Phase 3 is construction and is estimated at $14,075,000

award of contract to McGill for engineering/deisgn phase and establishing total project budget

Phase 1 was Preliminary Engineering & legal/admin: $70,000

EXPENDITURES

Legal/Administrative

Phase 1
Admin, Permitting and Legal Fees

Phase 2

Phase 3

Admin, Permitting and Legal Fees-design phase

Closing Fee-grant and loan administration

Engineering  Permitting Adminstration

Land Acquisition

28 Nov 11: CAF 11-C-134, Ord 11-62, MB42, p

CG&L = Construction Grants & Loans from State of NC, DENR

First budget amendment to Project Ordinance: $1,033,900

Engineering Geotechnical

Engineering Bidding & Aw ard Phase

Phase 2 is design engineering, permitting, bidding and project contract award: $1,044,610

12 Dec 11:  CAF 11-D-134, Ord 11-62, MB42, p

Ordinance 14-30

State Revolving Loan

 

Authorized application for grant/loan14 Feb 11: CAF 11-38; Res 11-12; MB 42, p.
Notes:Reference:

Construction Costs

Contingency

44: CIP SEWER

Contingencies & Other

Engineering Design

Captial Outlay Reserve--not yet aw arded

FY 13-14 Budget Amendment #34

Budget Amendment #9 to this Capital/Grant Project

Engineering Contingency

Project Budget Created on 11 Apr 11

Construction Admin & Inspection

REVENUES

State RFL Grant
Trans fr: 70 CR Utilities

 
 

 
 
 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 27 of 40 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 14-30, upon motion of Council Member Inscoe and second by Council 
Member Rainey, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes 
and was APPROVED on this the 12th day of May 2014:  YES: Daeke, Simmons, Daye, 
Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey and Peace-Jenkins.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: 
None.        ___________________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 43, p 221; CAF 14-59 
 
 
 
__________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA - CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 14-30  adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 12 May 2014. This Ordinance is recorded in 
Ordinance Book 9, p 123. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this 13th day of May 2014. 
 
 
_________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 

Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager  
 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 28 of 40 

 

  
R E S O L U T I O N   13-09-A 

 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF CHANGE ORDER #1 TO DEVERE 

CONSTRUCTION COMPANY FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO THE HENDERSON 
WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January 

2013, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of the Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 5: Provide 

Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure - To provide reliable, dependable and environmentally 
compliant infrastructure systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has accepted loan funding for this purpose from the NC Department of 

Environment and Natural Resources, Infrastructure Finance Section; and 
 
WHEREAS, several alternates were not awarded with the original contract and staff is recommending 

several additions to the original project; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is $657,140 remaining in the contingency fund, which could be used for these costs 

pending City Council approval; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Consulting Engineer and City staff recommend approval of Change Order #1, as 

outlined in the letter provided by McGill Associates, to Devere Construction Company, Inc., 
subject to approval of the Infrastructure Finance Section. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY APPROVE the execution of Change Order #1 of the Henderson Water Reclamation 
Facility Improvement Project to Devere Construction Company, Inc. in the amount of $55,709; 
said change order being more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution;  and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is authorized to sign all agreements and documents 

necessary to effect said Agreement. 
 
The foregoing Resolution 13-09-A, upon motion of Council Member Brown and second by Council 
Member Daeke, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
APPROVED on this the 23rd day of September 2013: YES: Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, 
Brown, Daye and Coffey.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: Kearney. 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 43, p. 37 

CAF 14-06-A 
Attachment #5 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 29 of 40 

 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 30 of 40 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 31 of 40 

 

RESOLUTION  12-98 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF A LOAN OFFER FROM THE CLEAN WATER STATE 
REVOLVING LOAN FUND (CWSRF) FOR IMPROVEMENTS AT THE HENDERSON 

WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY (HWRF) 

 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2012 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows: KSO 

5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems; and KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital 
Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Clean Water Revolving Loan and Grant Act of 1987 has 

authorized the making of loans and grants to aid eligible units of government in financing 
the cost of construction of wastewater treatment works, wastewater collections systems, 
and water supply systems, water conservation projects; and 

 
WHEREAS, City Council approved Resolution 11-12 on 14 February 2011, authorizing the 

submission of an application to the CWSRF for funding relative to the improvements at 
the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources has offered 

a CWMTF Loan in the amount of $16,615,000  with $1,000,000 in principal forgiveness 
for the improvements to the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson intends to construct said project in accordance with the 

approved plans and specifications. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL: 
 
That the City of Henderson does hereby accept the CWSRF Loan in the amount 
      of $16,615,00 to aid in financing of the HWRF improvements. 
 

That  the City of Henderson will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project 
on completion of construction thereof. 

 
That  Mayor James D. O’Geary, the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby 

authorized to execute the Loan Offer, being more fully articulated in Attachment A of 
this Resolution. 

 
That  the Mayor James D O’Geary and his successors so titled, is hereby authorized and 

directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in 
connection with such application or the project:  to make the assurances as contained 
above; and to execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the 
application. 

 

CAF 14-06-A 
Attachment #6



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 32 of 40 

 

That the City of Henderson has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all 
Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project 
and to Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 12-98, introduced by Council Member Inscoe and seconded by 
Council Member Daye on this the 10th day of December 2012, and having been submitted to a 
roll call vote, was APPROVED by the following votes: YES: Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, 
Brown, Daye, Coffey and Inscoe.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.   ABSENT: Kearney. 
 
 
             
     _________________________________   
    James D. O’Geary, Mayor    
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
____________________________________   
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
(Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. 672; CAF 12-149) 
 
 
_________________________   
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing is a true and exact copy of Resolution 12-98, adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on  10 December 2012 (See Minute Book 42, p. 
672)  This Resolution is recorded in Resolution  Book # 3, pp. 91. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this 11th day of  December 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 33 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 34 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 35 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 36 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 37 of 40 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 38 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 39 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-06-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 40 of 40 

 

 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 19 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

4 June 2014 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  14-17-A 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-11-A, Authorizing the Execution of 
Change Order #1 in Conjunction with the David Avenue Stormsewer Replacement 
Project in the Amount of $4,000 with M. T. Murphy, Inc.  

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 5: Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 

Systems. 
 KSO 8:    Provide Sufficient Funding for Municipal Services. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 14-11, Authorizing the Execution of Change Order #1 in 

Conjunction with the David Avenue Stormsewer Replacement Project in the Amount of 
$4,000 with M. T. Murphy, Inc. 

 
 

Executive Summary 
 
The contract for the David Avenue Stormsewer replacement project was approved by the City 
Council on 24 February 2014 via Resolution 14-11. The project consisted of replacing the 
existing failed pipe for approximately 160 feet, addition of a new junction box to connect the 
remaining portion of the storm sewer line to the newly installed pipe, remove existing concrete 
driveway, compact soils and replacing existing concrete driveway as needed.   
 
The project is near completion; however, it was discovered that there is a small portion of 15” 
concrete pipe that is in need of replacement also.  The cost to perform this work is $4,000. 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

           
 
 
 
Agenda Item:         ___________ 
 
Council Meeting: 9 June 14 Regular Meeting  



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 19 

 

The original contract price was $31,422; therefore, the total contract price would now be 
$35,422.  There is an additional $1,578 of available funds in the storm drain improvement 
account (10-570-503307) so the net amount of internal transfer needed would be $2,422, which 
would come from the resurfacing account (10-570-503308) as stated in the resolution. 
 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution  14-11-A 
2. Resolution 14-11 

 
 

 
 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 19 

 

RESOLUTION  14-11-A 

 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF CHANGE ORDER #1 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $4,000 IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE DAVID AVENUE 
STORM SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT TO M.T. MURPHY, INC.  

 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2014 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows: KSO 

5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems; and KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital 
Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City staff has found significant problems with the existing storm sewer pipe 

along David Avenue; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is an existing storm sewer easement recorded in Deed Book 466 Page 636; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, after receiving five bids for the project, M.T. Murphy, Inc. being the lowest, 

responsible bidder was awarded the project in the amount of $31,422, via Resolution 14-
11 on 24 February 2014; and  

 
WHEREAS, a 15” storm sewer main was found to be in disrepair during the completion of the 

initial work; and 
 
WHEREAS, the contractor has given a price of $4,000 to complete the additional work; and 
 
WHEREAS, there are available funds in the amount of $1,578 in the storm drain improvement 

account, (10-570-503307) and the additional funds of $2,422 are available for transfer 
from the resurfacing account (10-570-503308) as approved in Resolution 14-11; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT 

IT DOES HEREBY APPROVE the execution of Change Order #1 in conjunction with 
the David Avenue Stormsewer Replacement Project to M.T. Murphy, Inc. in the amount 
of $4,000, being more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY AUTHORIZE the Mayor and/or City Manager to sign all agreements and 
documents necessary to effect said agreement. 

 
 
 
 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 19 

 

The foregoing Resolution 14-11-A introduced by Council Member ** and seconded by Council 
Member ** on this the       day of            2014, and having been submitted to a roll call vote, was 
*** by the following votes: YES:  .  NO:  .  ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:  . 
       __________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor    
ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
____________________________________   
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
(Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. **.) 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 19 

 

Resolution 14-11-A 
Attachment A 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 19 

 

RESOLUTION  14-11 
 

AWARDING CONTRACT FOR DAVID AVENUE STORM SEWER REPLACEMENT 
PROJECT TO M.T. MURPHY, INC.  

IN THE AMOUNT OF $31,422 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 
2013 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS,  two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows: KSO 5: To 

Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure Systems; and KSO 
8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet 
the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City staff has found significant problems with the existing storm sewer pipe along David 

Avenue; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is an existing storm sewer easement recorded in Deed Book 466 Page 636; and 
 
WHEREAS, informal bids have been solicited for the performance of this work in accordance with North 

Carolina General Statues [G.S. 143-131] Informal Bidding Procedure; and 
 
WHEREAS, five bids were received for the project, with M.T. Murphy, Inc. being the lowest, responsible 

bidder; and  
 
WHEREAS, partial funding is available for storm drain improvements with the remaining funds to be 

transferred from Street resurfacing. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY APPROVE awarding of the David Avenue Stormsewer Replacement Project to M.T. 
Murphy, Inc. in the total contract amount of $31,422, being more fully articulated in Attachment 
A to this Resolution; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY AUTHORIZE the Mayor and/or City Manager to sign all agreements and 
documents necessary to effect said agreement. 

CAF 14-11-A 
Attachment #2 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 19 

 

The foregoing Resolution 14-11 introduced by Council Member Kearney and seconded by Council 
Member Peace-Jenkins on this the 24th day of  February 2014, and having been submitted to a roll call 
vote, was APPROVED by the following votes: YES: Daeke, Daye, Kearney, Inscoe and Peace-Jenkins.  
NO: None. ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: Coffey and Simmons. 
 
 
 
                     __________________________________  
      D. Michael Rainey, Mayor Pro-Tem    
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
____________________________________   
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
(Reference:  Minute Book 43, p.130.) 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 19 

 

 

Resolution 14-11 
Attachment A 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 19 

 

 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 19 

 

 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 19 

 

 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 12 of 19 

 

 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 13 of 19 

 

 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 14 of 19 

 

 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 15 of 19 

 

 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 16 of 19 

 

 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 17 of 19 

 

 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 18 of 19 

 

 



CAF 14-17-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 19 of 19 

 

 



 

CAF 14-71: 9 June 14 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 12 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

2 June 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF:  14-71 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-45, Authorizing the Mayor to Execute 
an Agreement with ECS Carolinas, LLP to Perform Construction Materials Testing 
Services Relative to the Sandy Creek Pump Station Improvements Project. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 5: Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 

Systems. 
 

  KSO   8: Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to  
     Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities. 

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-45, Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an 

Agreement with ECS Carolinas, LLP to Perform Construction Materials Testing Services 
Relative to the Sandy Creek Pump Station Improvements Project. 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
ECS Carolinas, LLP performed the subsurface exploration and geotechnical engineering work, 
which was used by McGill Associates to complete the design of the improvements to the 
Henderson Water Reclamation Facility and to also perform the construction materials testing 
during construction. It is recommended that they perform the Construction Materials Testing 
Services for the Sandy Creek Project.  McGill Associates has reviewed the proposal along with 
the City staff and recommends approval of the contract.  The estimated cost to perform this work 
is $7,350.  There is sufficient funding within the Legal, Testing, Administration line items of 
$22,000 to cover the costs of the testing. 
  

1.  Resolution 14-45 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 9 June 14 Regular Meeting 



 

CAF 14-71: 9 June 14 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 12 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   14-45 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENT WITH ECS CAROLINAS, LLP TO PERFORM CONSTRUCTION 
MATERIALS TESTING SERVICES RELATIVE TO PLANNING AND DESIGN 

FOR IMPROVEMENTS AT THE SANDY CREEK PUMP STATION 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2014 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this Resolution as follows:  

KSO 8: To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay 
Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and KSO 5:  To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmental Compliant 
Infrastructure Systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council authorized submission of an application on 14 February 2011 via 

Resolution 11-12, requesting State loan and/or grant assistance from the State Revolving 
Fund Grant/Loan; and 

 
WHEREAS, ECS is successfully performing the work at the Henderson Water Reclamation 

Facility and the subservice exploration and geotechnical work was successfully 
completed; and ECS is familiar with the existing area, it is recommended that ECS 
Carolina, LLP be contracted to perform the Construction Materials Testing Services. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Henderson, North 

Carolina, that it does hereby authorize the execution of an agreement for Construction 
Materials Testing Services with ECS Carolinas, LLP and being more fully articulated in 
Attachment “A” to this Resolution. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is hereby authorized to sign the Agreement and 

other applicable documents as necessary to proceed with this work. 
 
The foregoing Resolution 14-45, upon motion of Council Member ________________ and 
second by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call vote 
received the following votes and was ______________ on this the ___ day of __________ 2014:  
YES:      . NO:      .   ABSTAIN:       .     ABSENT:  . 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, pp. **. 



 

CAF 14-71: 9 June 14 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 12 

 

 

Resolution 14-45 
Attachment A 



 

CAF 14-71: 9 June 14 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 12 

 

 



 

CAF 14-71: 9 June 14 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 12 

 

 



 

CAF 14-71: 9 June 14 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 12 

 

 



 

CAF 14-71: 9 June 14 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 12 

 

 



 

CAF 14-71: 9 June 14 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 12 

 

 



 

CAF 14-71: 9 June 14 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 12 

 

 



 

CAF 14-71: 9 June 14 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 12 

 

 



 

CAF 14-71: 9 June 14 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 12 

 

 



 

CAF 14-71: 9 June 14 Council Meeting 
Page 12 of 12 

 

 



CAF 14-26-A: 9 June 2014 Work Session 
Page 1 of 6 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

29 May 2014 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  14-26-A 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-19-A, Authorizing Additional Areas for Water 
Main and Services Replacement to the 2” Water Main and Services Replacement Project 
Subject to Approval from DWSRF and Availability of Remaining Funds. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 5 – Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure Systems. 
 KSO 8   – Provide Sufficient Funding for Municipal Services. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Approval of: 
 

 Resolution 14-19, Authorizing additional areas for water main and services replacement to be 
added to the 2” water mains and services replacement project subject to approval from DWSRF 
and availability of remaining funds. 
 

Executive Summary 
 
The project is approximately 95% complete with water main replacement and a majority of the 
changeover has been completed.  The total project cost to date is $987,867.00, which is 57% of the total 
project cost.   
 
The following streets were approved to be added to the project via Resolution 14-19 on 24 February 2014. 
 

Zollicoffer Avenue: 1,860 LF $149,000 
Cedarwood Drive: 1,175 LF $94,000 
Crestwood Drive: 1,400 LF $112,000 
Lynn Avenue:  380 LF $30,400 

 14 meters $22,100  
Total:  $407,500  

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

           
 
 
 
Agenda Item:         ___________ 
 
Council Meeting: 9 June14 Regular Meeting 



CAF 14-26-A: 9 June 2014 Work Session 
Page 2 of 6 

  

Engineering has been completed and ready to be submitted to the State for review and approval.  Based 
on current projections, the City may be able to add several additional streets beyond the previous list.  In 
order to be prepared if the funds remain available, staff is requesting approval of the following streets to 
be added: 
 
Orchard Road  2” Main Replacement $10,000 
Railroad Street 6” Main – 1300 LF  $104,000 
Vicksboro Road   Service Changeover $ 19,200 
Eaton Street  Service Changeover $ 24,000 
Walnut Street  350 LF $ 28,000 
Mulberry Street 690 LF $ 55,200 
Montgomery Street 370 LF $ 29,600 
Total $270,000 
 
The prices shown above are estimates and will be modified once final design is completed.  The project 
areas need to be approved by DWSRF and DENR to meet the original statement of need, which is 
replacing and decommissioning 2” and smaller lines throughout the City.  In addition, the final design 
will need to be approved by DENR and incorporated into the main project.  The streets listed above will 
eliminate areas with numerous water main repairs, which will help with reduced patching, etc.   
 
The City Staff has currently started preliminary designs for the above streets in anticipation of replacing 
the water mains. It is the staff’s recommendation that the additional streets are added to the project 
contingent on DENR and DWSRF approval and the project base contract price to the contractor be 
updated. 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 14-19-A 
2. Resolution 14-19 



CAF 14-26-A: 9 June 2014 Work Session 
Page 3 of 6 

  

RESOLUTION 14-19-A 
 

AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL AREAS FOR WATERMAIN AND SERVICES 
REPLACEMENT TO BE ADDED TO THE 2” WATER MAIN AND SERVICE 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL FROM DWSRF AND 

AVAILABILITY OF REMAINING FUNDS 

 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2014 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows: KSO 

5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems; and KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital 
Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996 and the NC Water 

Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants 
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction of drinking water 
system improvements, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City received an offer and accepted the loan for a water system project (project 

number WIF-1694) and in the amount of $1,726,000 per Resolution 12-62; and 
 
WHEREAS the City Council approved to accept an additional loan amount to increase the 

overall project cost from $1,726,000 to $1,898,571; and 
 
WHEREAS, DWSRF has approved the additional loan amount totaling $1,898,571 for the 2-

Inch Watermain & Services Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the current contractor, H.G. Reynolds Inc., is steadily working on the project with 

the potential for substantial savings to the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City wants to utilize 100% of the loan amount or close thereof; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City staff has reviewed additional areas that meet the original project scope for 

water main and service replacements that includes the following: Orchard Road; Railroad 
Street; Vicksboro Road; Eaton Street; Walnut Street; Mulberry Street; Montgomery 
Street.   

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT 

IT HEREBY: 
 

1. Approves adding Orchard Road, Railroad Street, Vicksboro Road, Eaton Street, 
Walnut Street, Mulberry Street and Montgomery Street subject to DWSRF approval 
and availability of remaining project funds; and 

 
 
2. Approves to proceed with the design work for the above listed streets, including 

obtaining permits and other approvals, through DENR and DWSRF. 



CAF 14-26-A: 9 June 2014 Work Session 
Page 4 of 6 

  

3. The Mayor is authorized to sign all agreements and documents necessary to effect 
said Agreement. 
 

The foregoing Resolution 14-19-A introduced by Council Member ** and seconded by Council 
Member ** on this the * day of *, and having been submitted to a roll call vote, was *** by the 
following votes: YES:  .  NO:  .  ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:  . 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor    
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
____________________________________   
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
(Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. **.) 
 
_________________________   
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing is a true and exact copy of Resolution 14-19-A, adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on  * 2014 (See Minute Book 43, p. **.).  This 
Resolution is recorded in Resolution Book # 4, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 2014. 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



CAF 14-26-A: 9 June 2014 Work Session 
Page 5 of 6 

  

RESOLUTION 14-19 
 

AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL AREAS FOR WATERMAIN AND SERVICES 
REPLACEMENT TO BE ADDED TO THE 2” WATER MAINS AND SERVICES 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL FROM DWSRF AND 

AVAILABILITY OF REMAINING FUNDS 

 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2014 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows: KSO 

5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems; and KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital 
Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996 and the NC Water 

Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants 
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction of drinking water 
system improvements, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City received an offer and accepted the loan for a water system project (project 

number WIF-1694) and in the amount of $1,726,000 per Resolution 12-62; and 
 
WHEREAS the City Council approved to accept an additional loan amount to increase the 

overall project cost from $1,726,000 to $1,898,571; and 
 
WHEREAS, DWSRF has approved the additional loan amount totaling $1,898,571 for the 2-

Inch Watermain & Services Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the current contractor, H.G. Reynolds Inc., is steadily working on the project with 

the potential for substantial savings to the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City wants to utilize 100% of the loan amount or close thereof; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City staff has reviewed additional areas that meet the original project scope for  

watermain and service replacements that includes Zollicoffer Avenue, Crestwood 
Drive, Cedarwood Drive and Lynn Avenue. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT 

IT HEREBY: 
 

4. Approves adding the streets Zollicoffer Avenue, Crestwood Drive, Cedarwood 
Drive and Lynn Avenue to the 2-Inch Watermain & Services Replacement 
Project, subject to DWSRF approval and availability of remaining project funds, 
and 
 

5. Approves to proceed with the design work for the above listed streets, including 
obtaining permits and other approvals, through DENR and DWSRF. 

 

CAF 14-26-A 
Attachment #2 



CAF 14-26-A: 9 June 2014 Work Session 
Page 6 of 6 

  

6. The Mayor is authorized to sign all agreements and documents necessary to effect 
said Agreement. 

 
 

The foregoing Resolution 14-19 introduced by Council Member Peace-Jenkins and seconded by 
Council Member Daye on this the 24th day of February 2014, and having been submitted to a roll 
call vote, was APPROVED by the following votes: YES: Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Daye, Kearney 
and Inscoe.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT:  Coffey and Simmons. 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor    
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
____________________________________   
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
(Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. **.) 
 
_________________________   
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing is a true and exact copy of Resolution 14-19, adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on  * 2014 (See Minute Book 42, p. **.).  This 
Resolution is recorded in Resolution Book # 3, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 2014. 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 

 

 



CAF 14-67: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

28 May 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF: 14-67, Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 14-17, Providing for Four  
 Additional Handicap Parking Spaces on Sunday Near the First Baptist Church  

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 Core Value 2: Citizen/Customer Friendly:  We value our citizens and customers and will 

work with them in a courteous, professional manner.   We value their participation and input 
and owe them an answer to their questions in a timely manner. 
 

 
Recommendation: 
 

Approval of Ordinance 14-17, Relative to Handicap Parking on Wyche Street and Winder 
Street. 

 
 
Executive Summary 

 
The City of Henderson received a request from the First Baptist Church for four additional 
handicap spaces on Wyche Street and Winder Street.  The proposed handicap spaces are for 
Sunday only.  Four handicap parking spaces were approved previously in 2011. 
 
The cost for the additional handicap signs and poles is approximately $40 each not counting the 
labor involved in the placement of said poles and signs. 
 
Enclosures: 
 
 1. Ordinance 14-17  
 2.  Map of Wyche Street and Winder Street Intersection  

 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 9 June 14  Regular Meeting  



CAF 14-67: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 4 

 

ORDINANCE 14-17  
 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR FOUR ADDITIONAL HANDICAPPED  
PARKING SPACES ON SUNDAY NEAR THE FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH  

 
The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 

 
Section 1.  That the following be added to the Schedule of Streets set forth in Section 7-86 
(relating to loading/handicapped, etc. parking):   
 

“Wyche Street, on the west side, beginning at a point twenty-two (22) feet south of the 
southern curb line of Winder Street and running in a southerly direction for a distance of 
one hundred thirty two (132) feet (on Sundays, to be used for parking for handicapped 
only). 
 
Winder Street, on the south side, beginning at a point eighty seven (87) feet west of the 
western curb line of Wyche Street and running in a westerly direction for a distance of 
forty four (44) feet (on Sundays, to be used for parking handicapped only) 

 
Section 2.  That the following be deleted from the Schedule of Streets set forth in Section 7-86: 
 

Wyche Street, on the west side, beginning at a point twenty-two (22) feet south of the 
southern curb line of Winder Street and running in a southerly direction for a distance of 
eighty-eight (88) feet (on Sundays, to be used for parking for handicapped only). 

 
Section 3.  The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage. 
 

The foregoing Ordinance 14-17 upon motion of Council member ____________ and 
seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call 
vote and received the following votes and was ************** on this the **th  day of 
February, 2011:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 

 
       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 4**, p. **. 
 



CAF 14-67: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 4 

 

_______________________________________ 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 14-17, An 
Ordinance Providing For Four Additional Handicapped Parking Spaces On Sunday Near The 
First Baptist Church, adopted by the Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on **  ** 20** 
(See Minute Book 4*, p. **.).  This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book # 9, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 20**. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 14-67: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
 

CAF 14-67 
Attachment #2 



CAF 14-68: 9 June 2014 Regular  
Page 1 of 13 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

_________________________ 
4 June 2014 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  14-68 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-43, Appointments to the Henderson 
Community Appearance Commission, Henderson-Vance Human Relations 
Commission, Henderson Redevelopment Commission and the Henderson Planning 
Board 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 

Recommendation: 
 

 Approval of Resolution 14-43, Appointments to the Henderson Community Appearance 
Commission, Henderson-Vance Human Relations Commission, Henderson 
Redevelopment Commission and the Henderson Planning Board. 

 
Executive Summary 
 
The Boards and Commissions’ Committee (B&CC) met on 22 May 2014 and 4 June 2014 to 
review applications and recommends the following appointments: 
 
Henderson Community Appearance Commission 
 
Mr. David Carroll – Appoint to fill a vacant unexpired 2014 term and for a full three-year term 
expiring 30 June 2017. 
 
Ms. Patricia Newman – Re-appoint to an additional full three-year term expiring 30 June 2017. 
 
Henderson-Vance Human Relations Commission 
 
Jason Spriggs – Appoint to fill a vacant seat with a full two-year term expiring 30 June 2016. 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item:    ____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  9 June 14 Reg. Meeting 
 



CAF 14-68: 9 June 2014 Regular  
Page 2 of 13 

 

Henderson Planning Board 
 
Mr. Keith Coffey – Appoint to fill a vacant Alternate seat with a full two-year term expiring 30 
June 2016. 
 
Henderson Redevelopment Commission 
 
Mr. Keith Coffey – Appoint to fill a vacant seat with a full two-year term expiring 30 June 2016. 
 
Enclosures: 
 1. Resolution 14-43 
 2. 22 May 2014 Minutes 
 3. 4 June 2014 Draft Minutes 
 4. Applications   



CAF 14-68: 9 June 2014 Regular  
Page 3 of 13 

 

RESOLUTION 14-43 
 

A RESOLUTION MAKING APPOINTMENTS TO THE  
HENDERSON COMMUNITY APPEARANCE COMMISSION, HENDERSON-VANCE 

HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION, HENDERSON REDEVELOPMENT 
COMMISSION AND THE HENDERSON PLANNING BOARD 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) has created several boards and commissions 

as a means to include citizen input to and participation within the governance process; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council periodically appoints individuals to serve on said boards and 

commissions; and 
 
WHEREAS, there are vacancies on the Henderson Community Appearance Commission, 

Henderson-Vance Human Relations Commission, Henderson Redevelopment 
Commission and the Planning Board; and 

 
WHEREAS, applications have been received and reviewed by the Council’s Boards and 

Commissions’ Committee for available positions. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY appoint the following individuals: 
 

1. Mr. David Carroll, a city resident living at 1639 Willow Lane, to serve on the Henderson-
Community Appearance Commission as a full member completing the unexpired vacant 
2014 term and to serve a three-year term as a full member expiring on 30 June 2017; and 

2. Ms. Patricia Newman, a city resident living at 925 South Chestnut Street, completing her 
term as a full member of the Henderson-Community Appearance Commission on 30 June 
2014, to serve a three-year term on the Henderson-Community Appearance Commission 
expiring 30 June 2017; and 

3. Mr. Keith Coffey, a city resident living at 339 West Young Avenue, to serve on the 
Henderson Redevelopment Commission as a full member filling a vacant term expiring 
on 30 June 2016; and 

4. Mr. Jason Spriggs, a city resident living at 213 Booth Avenue, to serve on the Henderson-
Vance Human Relations Commission as a full member filling a vacant term expiring on 
30 June 2016; and 

5. Mr. Keith Coffey, a city resident living at 339 West Young Avenue, to serve as a 
Alternate on the Henderson Planning Board with a full term expiring 30 June 2016. 



CAF 14-68: 9 June 2014 Regular  
Page 4 of 13 

 

The foregoing Resolution 14-43, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote during a regularly scheduled and open 
meeting, received the following votes and was APPROVED on this the ***  day of *** 2014:  
YES:.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT:. 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
_______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 43, p **; CAF 14-68 
  



CAF 14-68: 9 June 2014 Regular  
Page 5 of 13 

 

Boards and Commissions Committee 
Meeting Minutes  

May 22, 2014 
 

 
Council Members Present:  Garry Daeke, and Brenda Peace-Jenkins  
 
Staff Present:  Mayor O’Geary, City Manager Ray Griffin and City Clerk Esther McCrackin 
 
Chairperson Garry Daeke called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
The first order of business was to consider two applications; the first being David Carroll for the 
Appearance Commission. 
 
Mr. Daeke said he had a long discussion with Mr. Carroll who is energetic and wants to get 
involved.  Motion was made by Ms. Peace-Jenkins to recommend Mr. David Carroll to the 
Appearance Commission to complete the term expiring June 30, 2014 of Violet Shay and to fill a 
three-year term expiring in 2017.  This recommendation was seconded by Mr. Daeke and 
unanimously approved. 
 
The next application for consideration is Keith Coffey who is willing to serve on the Planning 
Board and/or the Redevelopment Commission. 
 
There was a short discussion about the Redevelopment Commission which has not been active 
recently.  The Boards & Commissions Committee recognized the importance of keeping the 
Redevelopment Commission in place for future projects and felt it would be best to keep as 
many seats filled as possible.  Mr. Daeke recommended appointment of Mr. Coffey to the 
Redevelopment Commission for a three year term expiring June 30, 2016.  Ms. Peace-Jenkins 
seconded the motion which was then unanimously approved. 
 
Mr. Coffey’s desire to serve on the Planning Board is seen as a benefit to the Planning Board.  
There was discussion regarding what could be perceived as a conflict of interest since Ms. 
Coffey serves on Council and recommended Planning Board issues are brought before Council.  
The Boards & Commissions Committee asked Mr. Daeke, as Chairperson, to speak with Ms. 
Coffey regarding this concern.  Mr. Daeke said he would be happy to discuss this issue with Ms. 
Coffey. 
 
There was no further discussion and Chairperson Daeke asked for a motion to adjourn. 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins made a motion to adjourn.  Chairperson Daeke seconded the 
motion and the meeting adjourned at 5:55 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 

CAF 14-68 
Attachment #2



CAF 14-68: 9 June 2014 Regular  
Page 6 of 13 

 

Boards and Commissions Committee 
Meeting Minutes - DRAFT 

June 4, 2014 
 

 
Council Members Present:  Sara Coffey and Brenda Peace-Jenkins  
 
Staff Present:  Mayor O’Geary, and City Clerk Esther McCrackin 
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Chair Person Daeke was unable to attend due to a family emergency.  He asked 
that one of the Council Members chair this meeting.  Council Member Coffey asked Council 
Member Peace-Jenkins to Chair the meeting as Ms. Coffey’s spouse will be considered for a seat 
on the Planning Board) 
 
Chairperson Peace-Jenkins called the meeting to order at 4:10 p.m.  
 
Ms. Peace-Jenkins asked for the approval of the May 22 minutes.  Motion was made by Mayor 
O’Geary to accept the minutes as submitted.  Council Member Coffey seconded the motion 
which was unanimously approved. 
 
At this time Chairperson Peace-Jenkins turned the meeting over to City Clerk McCrackin. 
 
Ms. McCrackin said the next item was consideration of three applications: 
 
1. Keith Coffey for the Planning Board.  Ms. McCrackin said at the 22 May 2014 meeting there 

was a discussion regarding the possible perception that Council member Coffey’s vote as a 
council member might be swayed by her spouse being a Planning Board Member. The 
Boards and Commissions Committee Chair, Garry Daeke was asked to discuss this issue with 
Ms. Coffey.  Ms. Coffey assured the Boards and Commissions Committee that she would 
vote as a Council Member without any influence by Mr. Coffey. 

 
 Ms. McCrackin said she was unsure if the Committee understood the only terms/seats 

available on the Planning Board at this time are for Alternate positions and after a short 
discussion it is the recommendation of this Committee to appoint Mr. Keith Coffey to a 
vacant Alternate seat with a term expiring June 30, 2016. 

 
2. Jason Spriggs for the Human Relations Commission.  Ms. McCrackin said Mr. Spriggs 

submitted an application in March but there was some confusion as to whether he was a City 
resident as he stated on his application he “was appointed to the Raleigh Human Relations 
Commission this year…”  Ms. McCrackin verified that he was appointed to the Raleigh 
Human Relations Commission and spoke with Mr. Spriggs who said he would be resigning 
from the Raleigh commission as they had recently moved to Henderson. 

 
 As the Human Relations Commission has vacant terms available, it is the recommendation of 

this Commission to appoint Mr. Jason Spriggs to the Human Relations Commission to fill a 
vacant term expiring in 2014 and to serve for a full 2 year term expiring June 30, 2016. 

 

CAF 14-68 
Attachment #3 



CAF 14-68: 9 June 2014 Regular  
Page 7 of 13 

 

3. Patricia Newman for the Appearance Commission.  Ms. McCrackin said Ms. Newman 
currently serves on this Commission and has submitted an application for re-appointment.  
There was no discussion and the recommendation is to re-appoint Ms. Patricia Newman for a 
full three year term expiring June 30, 2017. 

 
Chair Person Peace-Jenkins called for a motion recommending appointment of the three above 
individuals to Council at its next meeting.  Motion was made by Mayor O’Geary to bring these 
three appointments before the full Council.  Ms. Coffey seconded the motion and the motion was 
approved by all present. 
 
Ms. McCrackin said she would draft a Resolution for consideration at the 9 June 2014 Council 
meeting. 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Chair Person Peace-Jenkins asked for a motion to adjourn.  Motion was made by Mayor O’Geary 
and seconded by Council Member Coffey and the meeting adjourned at 4:25 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
 



CAF 14-68: 9 June 2014 Regular  
Page 8 of 13 

 

 

CAF 14-68 
Attachment #4 



CAF 14-68: 9 June 2014 Regular  
Page 9 of 13 

 

 



CAF 14-68: 9 June 2014 Regular  
Page 10 of 13 

 

 



CAF 14-68: 9 June 2014 Regular  
Page 11 of 13 

 

 



CAF 14-68: 9 June 2014 Regular  
Page 12 of 13 

 

 



CAF 14-68: 9 June 2014 Regular  
Page 13 of 13 

 

 



CAF 14-70: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
29 May 2014 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  14-70  

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-44, Issuing Sewer Credit for Outside Watering 
of Lawns, Plants and Vegetation for the 1 June 2014 through 31 October 2014 Billing 
Statements. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approve Resolution 14-44, Issuing Sewer Credit for Outside Watering of Grass, Plants and 

Vegetation for the 1 June 2014 through 31 October 2014 Billing Statements. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
For the past several years the City Council has authorized the issuance of sewer credits due to 
outside watering of grass, plants, and vegetation.   
 
The City Council has offered this credit in an effort to reduce the cost to the customer for such 
watering.  If this policy is adopted, the City Council does have the discretion to discontinue the 
credit prior to October if it is in the City’s best interest to do so due to drought and/or 
implementation of water conservation measures. 
 
 
Enclosures  
 

1. Resolution 14-44 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  9 June 14 Regular Meeting 
 



CAF 14-70: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
14-44 

 
A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF SEWER CREDITS FOR 

OUTSIDE WATERING OF GRASS, PLANTS AND VEGETATION 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson has provided for a sewer credit to its customers for the 

period of June, July and August provided certain conditions are met, via adopting a 
“Sewer Credit Due to Outside Watering of Grass, Plants and Vegetation” on 9 June 2008;  
and 

 
WHEREAS, in the past this credit has been extended to include the months of September and 

October; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT 

IT DOES HEREBY APPROVE the Amended Policy, being more fully articulated in 
Attachment A to this Resolution, for Sewer Credit Due to Outside Watering of Grass, 
Plants and Vegetation to include the June, July, August, September and October 2014 
billing statements. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 14-44, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
APPROVED on this the ** day of *** 2014:  YES: .  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT: 
 
 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, pp. ** 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 14-70: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 

           
Sewer Credit Due to Outside Watering of  

Grass, Plants and Vegetation Policy 
 
Qualifications 
 

1.  A customer whose monthly water and sewer consumption is equal to or greater than 
1.5 times the average water and sewer consumption of the preceding six months may request an 
adjustment to their sewer charges.  In no instance shall a customer who has not been on the 
system for at least six months be eligible for an adjustment. 

 
2.  The general time frame for these credits is from the June billing statement through the 

October billing statement; however the City Council shall set the time frame each year prior to 
this period and it can be for less than or more than the stated period if circumstances due to water 
restrictions or any other unforeseen emergency situations that are occurring during these months 
arise and/or it is not in the City’s best interest to allow these adjustments.  The City Council also 
has the discretion to discontinue these “watering credits for sewer” at any time. 

 
3.  After City Council approval, the Finance Director or designee shall be authorized to 

adjust the customer’s monthly sewer bill as follows: 
 

a. The customer’s average monthly water and sewer consumption for the preceding 
six months shall be established and 1.5 times that average shall be used to 
determine whether or not the customer is eligible for a sewer credit.   

b. If 1.5 times the monthly average usage is less than the usage for the month in 
question, the customer is eligible for a sewer credit. 

c. The Director of Finance (or her designee) shall be authorized to reduce the 
customer’s monthly sewer charge in question by a maximum of seventy-five (75) 
percent of the difference between the six (6) months average sewer charge and the 
monthly sewer charge in question. 

d. The customer must request this adjustment from the collections office after 
receiving the bill in question and affirm that he/she has been irrigating grass, 
plants and vegetation but in no case shall a credit be issued for more than the 
previous two months.  Failure to request this adjustment within the allotted time 
period shall result in no adjustment. 

e. This policy shall not apply to individuals that use water to fill swimming pools or 
for pressure washing. 

f. This policy shall be effective for the June – October 2014 billing statements.  
 
 
 

Resolution 14-44 
Attachment A 



CAF 14-66:  9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

16 May 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF 14-66 

Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the 
Month of April 2014.  

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of tax releases and refunds from Vance County for the month of April 2014. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Vance County Tax office submitted the following tax releases and refunds to the Finance 
Department for the month of April 2014.  These releases and refunds are found to be in order and 
are being recommended for approval.  

 
 

 

April 2014 Tax Releases & Refunds
Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property
Releases
Manning, William & Beulah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2003 15.25                    
Marrow, Walter Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2003 15.25                    
Manning, William & Beulah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2004 16.00                    
Marrow, Walter Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2004 16.00                    
Manning, William & Beulah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2005 16.75                    
Marrow, Walter Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2005 16.75                    
Manning, William & Beulah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2006 16.75                    
Marrow, Walter Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2006 16.75                    
Manning, William & Beulah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2007 16.75                    
Marrow, Walter Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2007 16.75                    
Manning, William & Beulah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 16.95                    
Marrow, Walter Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 19.78                    

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252-430-5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  9 June 14 Reg. Meeting 
 



CAF 14-66:  9 June 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

April 2014 Tax Releases & Refunds
Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Manning, William & Beulah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 17.55                    
Marrow, Walter Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 20.48                    
Manning, William & Beulah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 17.55                    
Marrow, Walter Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 20.48                    
Martinez, Jose Personal Prop. Billed 2010 34.78                    
Champion, Alvin Personal Prop. Billed 2011 34.78                    
Manning, William & Beulah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 17.55                    
Marrow, Walter Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 20.48                    
Champion, Alvin Personal Prop. Billed 2012 34.78                    
Manning, William & Beulah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 17.55                    
Marrow, Walter Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 20.48                    
Adcox, Steven Ronald Lot Lien Billed 2013 220.00                  
Champion, Alvin Personal Prop. Billed 2013 36.86                    
Crue, Julio Personal Prop. Billed 2013 50.60                    
Feggins, Kristal J Lot Lien Billed 2013 220.00                  
Hawkins, Rose Lee Brow Abated in error-Dec 2013 2013 (420.93)                
Manning, William & Beulah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2013 18.60                    
Marrow, Walter Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2013 21.70                    
NCDOT State Assessed 2013 20,891.78             
Peoples, Jackie Wayne, Jr. Personal Prop. Billed 2013 9.92                      
Valdes, Evelin Personal Prop. Billed 2013 50.60                    
Total R&P Property Releases 21,555.32$           

Real & Personal Property
Refunds
Stokes, David Personal Prop. Billed 2012 34.78                    
Stokes, David Personal Prop. Billed 2013 36.86                    
Total R& P  Property Refunds 71.64$                  

Total R&P Prop. Rel. & Ref. 21,626.96$           

Vehicle Releases
Ayscue, Michael Kevin Correct Situs 2010 16.03$                  
Ayscue, Michael Kevin Correct Situs 2012 60.30$                  
Ayscue, Michael Kevin Correct Situs 2013 25.74$                  
Cash, William Allen Pro-Rate 2013 37.66$                  
Garcia, Perez Jose Luis Correct Situs 2013 148.82$                
Peace, Tracey Latrell Pro-Rate 2013 9.06$                    
Seward, Matthew William Pro-Rate 2013 12.59$                  
Sutton, Sandra Bullock Pro-Rate 2013 10.10$                  
Thompson, Robert Calvin Correct Situs 2013 23.46$                  

Total Vehicle Releases 343.76$                

Vehicle Refunds
Broadnax, Robert Wayne Pro-Rate 2013 0.52$                    
Gregg, Marjorie Williams Pro-Rate 2013 4.22$                    
Stark, William Luther Pro-Rate 2013 11.67$                  
Williams, Michael Anthony Pro-Rate 2013 2.33

Total Vehicle Refunds 18.74$                  
Tot. Veh. Rel. & Ref. 362.50$                

Total All Releases & Refunds 21,989.46$           



Meetings and Events Calendar 
All Regular City Council Meetings Held 2nd & 4th Monday at 6:00 P.M. 

Date Time Event Location 

June 9th 9:30 AM KLRWS Advisory Board Meeting City Hall Large Conference Room 

June 9th 6:00 PM 
City Council Regular Meeting 

(Budget Hearing) City Council Chambers 

June 10th  3:00 PM 
Henderson Appearance 

Commission Meeting City Council Chambers 

June 10th 6:00 PM  Budget Work Session #3 if needed City Council Chambers 

June 12th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & 
Recreation Commission Aycock Recreation Center 

June 12th  6:00 PM Budget Work Session #4 if needed City Council Chambers 

June 23rd 6:00 PM 
City Council Meeting 

Work Session to Follow City Council Chambers 

July 1st 3:30 
Henderson Zoning Board of 

Adjustments City Council Chambers 

July 4th City Hall 
Closed 

Happy  
July 4th CITY HALL CLOSED 

July 7th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

July 8th 3:00 PM 
Henderson Appearance 

Commission City Council Chambers 

July 12th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & 
Recreation Commission  Aycock Recreation Center 

July 14th 5:00 PM  Library Advisory Board Meeting Perry Memorial Library 

July 14th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

July 17th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

July 25th 10:00 AM 
Henderson-Vance E-911 Advisory 

Board Meeting E-911 Operations Center 

July 28th 6:00 PM 
City Council Meeting 

Work Session to Follow City Council Chambers 

Aug 4th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Aug 5th 3:30 PM 
Henderson Zoning Board of 

Adjustments City Council Chambers 

Aug 11th 9:30 AM KLRWS Advisory Board Meeting City Hall Large Conference Room 

Aug 11th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Aug 12th 3:00 PM 
Henderson Appearance 

Commission City Council Chambers 

 Last Updated 5 June 2014 





 HENDERSON-VANCE CO 911
Number Of Calls Report by Complaint

Jurisdiction: First Date:

Last Date:

HEN-VAN 04/21/2014

05/20/2014

NumberComplaint

911 HANG UP CALL 82911HU
ABANDONED OR JUNKED CARS 5ABAND
ABDOMINAL PAIN OR PROBLEMS 16ABDOM-EMD
ABANDONED VEHICLE 2ABNV
ACCIDENT PROPERTY DAMAGE 91ACC-PD
ACCIDENT PERSONAL INJURY 37ACC-PI
ALARM RESIDENCE OR BUSINESS 282ALARM
ALARM FALSE 93ALARMFALSE
ALARM MEDICAL 7ALARMMED
ALLERGIC REACTION / ENVENOMATIONS (BITE OR STING) 5ALLERG-EMD
ANIMAL BITE / ATTACK 8ANIMAL-EMD
ANIMAL COMPLAINT/VISCIOUS ANIMAL 70ANIM
ARMED SUSPECT (MAN WITH A GUN) 9ARMED SUSP
ASSIST OTHER AGENCY 19ASAG
ASSIST MOTORIST 51ASMO
ASSAULT OR SEXUAL ASSAULT - IN PROGRESS 5ASSAULIP-EMD
ASSAULT OR SEXUAL ASSAULT 40ASSAULT-EMD
BACK PAIN (NON-TRAUMATIC) 7BACKPAIN-EMD
BREAKING AND ENTERING TO A MOTOR VEHICLE 15BE MV
BONDING 3BON
BREATHING PROBLEMS 78BREATH-EMD
BURGULARY/B&E IN PROGRESS 13BURG-IP
BURGLARY 79BURGLARY
BURNS (SCALDS) OR EXPLOSIONS (EMD) 1BURNS-EMD
CARELESS AND RECKLESS DRIVER 68CAR
CARDIAC/RESPIRATORY ARREST OR DEATH 6CARDIAC-EMD
CHASE 7CHASE
CHEST PAIN 39CHESTPAI-EMD
CHILD ABUSE OR NEGLECT 1CHILD-ABU
CIVIL DISPUTE 79CIVDIS
COMMUNICATING THREATS 16COMTHR
CONTROLLED BURN 1CONTROLBURN
CONVULSIONS / SEIZURES 25CONVULS-EMD
DIABETIC PROBLEMS 15DIABETIC-EMD
DIRECTING TRAFFIC/TRAFFIC CONTROL NEEDED 3DIRTRF
DISORDERLY PERSON 111DISO
DOMESTICE DISPUTE - IN PROGRESS/W-WEAPONS 9DOMEIP/W
DOMESTIC PROBLEM 98DOM-PROB
DROWNING (NEAR DRWONING) / DIVING / SCUBA 1DROWNING-EMD
DRUG OR ALCOHOL COMPLAINT 33DRUGALC
DRUNK DRIVER 4DRUNKDRIV
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE ORDER 15DVO
EMERGENCY TRANSPORT 5EMERG TRANS
ESCORT 216ESCO
EVICTION CARRIED OUT 28EVICTION
FALLS (SUBJECT FALLEN) 55FALLS-EMD
FIGHT 24FIGHT
FIGHT IN PROGRESS/W-WEAPONS 1FIGHT-IP/W
FIRE ALARM 37FIRE AL
BRUSH/GRASS FIRE 18FIRE BRU
DUMPSTER FIRE 1FIRE DUMP
ELECTRICAL FIRE 9FIRE ELEC

1Page of 305/27/2014 10:55:13



 HENDERSON-VANCE CO 911
Number Of Calls Report by Complaint

Jurisdiction: First Date:

Last Date:

HEN-VAN 04/21/2014

05/20/2014

NumberComplaint

GREASE FIRE 1FIRE GRE
SMOKE REPORT 6FIRE SMOKE
STRUCTURE FIRE 9FIRE STRUC
VEHICLE FIRE 6FIRE VEHI
FRAUD/FORGERY 25FRAUD
FUEL SPILL 1FUELSPILL
GAS LEAK 1GASLEA
HARRASSMENT/THREATS 50HARR
HEADACHE 4HEADACHE-EMD
HEART PROBLEMS - AICD 4HEART-EMD
HEMORRHAGE / LACERATION 16HEMORR-EMD
HOME INVASION 4HOMEINV
HIT & RUN PD 17HRPD
HIT & RUN PI 1HRPI
ILLEGAL DUMPING 7ILL-DUMP
INDECENT EXPOSURE 3INDEXPO
FIRE INSPECTION 14INSPECTION
INTOXICATED PERSON 11INTPERS
INVESTIGATE ----- AT 860INVE
IMPROPERLY PARKED VEHICLE 77IPV
JUVENILE PROBLEMS 53JUV
KIDNAPPING/FELONIOUS RESTRAINT 2KIDN
LARCENY IN PROGRESS 2LARCIP
LARCENY - ALREADY OCCURRED 158LARC
LIVESTOCK IN ROADWAY 3LIVEST
LOITERING COMPLAIN 6LOIT
LOST PROPERTY 6LOST
LOUD MUSIC 107LOUD
MEDICAL 13MEDICAL
MENTAL SUBJECT 85MEN
MISSING PERSON 6MISS
OPEN DOOR/WINDOW 15OPEN
OVERDOSE / POISONING (INGESTION) 6OVERDOSE-EMD
PROPERTY DAMAGE ALREADY OCCURRED 81PDAMG
PREGNANCY/CHILDBIRTH/MISCARRIAGE 6PREGNANT-EMD
PROWLER 23PROW
RAPE 1RAPE
RECOVERED/FOUND PROPERTY 18RECFPI
ROBBERY ARMED 3ROBARM
ROBBERY 2ROBBERY
RUNAWAY 5RUN
SHOPLIFTER 14SHOP
SHOTS FIRED 74SHOTS
SICK PERSON 101SICK-EMD
STABBING / GUNSHOT / PENETRATING TRAUMA 8STABBING-EMD
STOLEN VEHICLE IN PROGRESS 1STOLV-IP
STOLEN VEHICLE 8STOLV
STROKE (CVA) 14STROKE-EMD
SUBJECT IN CUSTODY 19SUBINCUS
SUICIDE / PSYCHIATRIC / ABNORMAL BEHAVIOR 2SUICIDE-EMD
CIVIL / CRIMINAL SUMMONS 112SUMMONS
SUSPICIOUS SUBJECT 62SUPSUB

2Page of 305/27/2014 10:55:13



 HENDERSON-VANCE CO 911
Number Of Calls Report by Complaint

Jurisdiction: First Date:

Last Date:

HEN-VAN 04/21/2014

05/20/2014

NumberComplaint

SURRENDER 15SURR
SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 79SUSVEH
TEST CALL 80TEST
VEHICLE STOP 277TRAFFIC STOP
TRANSPORT 1TRANSPORT
TRAUMATIC INJURY (SPECIFY IN NARRATIVE) 8TRAUMA-EMD
TREE DOWN 11TREEDWN
TRESPASSING SUSPECT 63TRES
UNAUTHORIZED USE VEHICLE 11UNAUTHVEH
UNCONCIOUS / FAINTING OR NEAR 24UNCONC-EMD
UNKNOWN PROBLEM (MAN DOWN) 8UNKNOWN-EMD
WARRANT 559WARRANT
WATER RELATED PROBLEM 8WATER
WRIT OF EXECUTION 8WRIT

Report Total: 5228

3Page of 305/27/2014 10:55:13



 HENDERSON-VANCE CO 911
Number Of Calls Report by Department (All Units)

Jurisdiction:

First Date:

Last Date:HEN-VAN

04/21/2014

05/20/2014

Department Number
1 155Data with no Department.
2 4data error, blank in Department
3 2AFTO
4 29BERT
5 43BVFD
6 24CVFD
7 8DOT
8 4DSS
9 6DVFD

10 3EM
11 534EMS
12 12EVFD
13 10FOR
14 1GAS
15 247HFD1
16 193HFD2
17 2496HPD
18 23HVFD
19 19KVFD
20 1PARK
21 6PE
22 1PROB
23 50SHP
24 5STRE
25 26TVFD
26 85VCAC
27 168VCFD
28 44VCR
29 2071VCSO
30 6WATE
31 27WVFD

Total: 5228

A call with multiple Departments assigned will be counted in the group total for each of these Departments, therefore such
calls will be counted more than once. For this reason, the total number of calls may not equal the sum of the group totals

1Page of 105/27/2014 10:48:39



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 1  

 

5 June 2014 

 

 

TO: The Honorable James D. “Pete” O’Geary and Members of the City Council 

 

FR: Ray Griffin, City Manager 

 

RE:   CAF:  14-62-A  

Conduct Budget Public Hearing and Consideration of Citizen Input; 

Consideration of Ordinance 14-34, Adoption of FY14-15 Budget, and 

Resolution 14-42, Adoption of May 2014 Classification and Pay Plan 
 

Council Goals and Objectives Addressed 
 

 KSO 8:  Provide Financial Resourcing:  To provide sufficient funds for municipal 

operations and capital outlay necessary to meet the needs of citizens, customers and 

mandates of regulatory authorities. 

o Action Plan 8-1:  Grow undesignated fund balance 

 

 KSO 4: Improve Housing Stock: To Improve the condition and expansion of the 

housing stock. 

o Action Plan 4-1:  Aggressive code enforcement 

 

 KSO 5: Reliable Infrastructure:  To provide reliable, dependable and environmentally 

compliant infrastructure systems. 

o Action Plan 5-2:  Expand the Kerr Lake Regional Water Treatment Facility 

o Action Plan 5-4:  Upgrade sewer plant 

o Action Plan 5-5:  2” Water line replacement   

 

 KSO 6: Retain Qualified Municipal Workforce: To provide a supportive and 

competitive workforce climate that facilitates and maintains a strong workforce 

capability and adequate staffing levels.  

o Action Plan 6-1:  Pay classification Study 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

 

Recommendation: 

 Conduct Budget Public Hearing and Consider Comments from the Public 

 Approve Ordinance 14-34, Adoption of FY14-15 Budget, and  

 Resolution 14-42, Adoption of May 2014 Classification and Pay Plan 

 

 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 2  

 

 

 

Executive Summary: 

 

Consensus Budget Achieved 

 

The FY14-15 Work Budget was presented to City Council during a Special Called 

Meeting on Monday, 19 May 2014.  Subsequent to the Budget’s presentation, City 

Council met in two budget work sessions on 20 and 22 May.  A consensus of Council 

was achieved at the 22 May budget work session.  A summary of the changes made to the 

Recommended Work Budget are provided below: 

 

 Regional Water Fund 

o The recommended 5% rate increase was reduced to 4%. 

 A reduction in the transfer to 78: Regional Capital Reserve Fund was 

made to compensate for the reduced revenues. 

 Water Fund 

o The recommended 5% rate increase was reduced to 3.5%. 

 Reductions in the 30-818: purchase for resale line item and transfer to 

79: Rate Stabilization Fund Capital Reserve Fund were made to 

compensate for the reduced revenues. 

 Sewer Fund 

o The recommended 3% rate increase was maintained at 3%.   

 There were no changes made to this fund. 

 General Fund 

o There were no recommended increases in the property tax and sanitation fee 

rates, and Council’s consensus on the Budget did not change this 

recommendation.  The only change made to the Fund is as follows: 

 Provide an $800 initial contribution to the Boys and Girls Club.  This 

was achieved by transferring $400 each from the 10-510: Police and 

10-530: Fire departments’ budgets.   

 All Other Funds 

o There were no changes made to the following funds’ recommended budgets:  

 11: Powell Bill, 40: Library Trust Fund; 50: LEO Trust Fund; 51: 

Elmwood Cemetery Trust Fund; 70: Capital Reserve Utilities Fund; 

72: Capital Reserve General Fund; and 73: Capital Reserve Economic 

Development Fund. 

 

Budget Ordinance and Fee Schedule 

 

The Budget Ordinance and its appended Fee Schedule have been prepared to reflect the 

Consensus Budget achieved by City Council on 22 May.  Included with the utility rate 

increases for retail customers, rates for bulk water and governmental customers have 

been adjusted according to the percentages of increase authorized by Council. 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 3  

 

Additionally, it is recommended two tweaks to the security deposit section of the fee 

schedule be amended as follows: 

 

 Reduce the out-of-city residential water-only deposit from $200 to $150.  

Experience has shown the $200 is well above the amount needed to secure the 

City’s interest. 

 

 Increase the commercial deposits from 2.5 times the average bill to 2.5 times 

average or $150, whichever is larger.  We are finding in some cases the City’s 

security interest is not being achieved.  The $150 minimum would ensure the 

City’s fiduciary interests are being met. 

 

May 2014 Classification and Pay Study 

 

Strong Council support of the Phase 1 implementation of the Classification and Pay 

Study was achieved during the presentation of the Study by Ms. Veazey, President of The 

MAPS Group as well as during the two budget work sessions.  Approval of Resolution 

14-42 will have the effect of putting the new Classification and Pay plan on the books, 

with implementation of Phase 1 of a five-year implementation plan. 

 

Main Street Program Concerns 

 

The Mayor, Members of Council and City Administration have been receiving calls and 

letters expressing concern about the de-funding of the Main Street Program.  These 

concerns are surely understandable and have created stress on those affected.   Several 

members of Council and several private citizens have asked what alternatives are there 

for restoring funding so the program can continue.  The cost to restore funding for the 

position is $53,000.  This figure, the amount reduced from the budget, is essentially for 

salary and personnel related costs and does not provide for any significant 

operational/programming funding. As with all things, there are options.  With each option 

comes a new set of pros and cons. 

 

The options to restoring funding for this program are several, including: 

 

1.  Increase Revenues: 

 

a. Increase property tax rate by $0.006, or 6/10 of one penny, or increasing 

the tax rate from $0.62 to $0.626; or 

 

b. Increase sanitation fee by $0.85 per month, or bringing the monthly fee to 

$29.85.  A $0.40 per month increase could be easily justified given the 

increase in the Waste Industries contract; or 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 4  

 

 

 

c. A combination of increasing both the property tax and sanitation fee.  

Both of these sources of revenues are recurring revenues and would be 

used to offset a recurring expense. 

 

d. Increase use of undesignated general fund balance, a non-recurring 

revenue source, from $0.00 to $53,000.  This goes against Policy of using 

this funding source to finance recurring expenses.  This alternative is not 

recommended. 

 

2. Living Within Our Means: 

 

a. This would mean changing budget expenditure priorities within the 

existing budget. It should be noted the General Fund is recommended at a 

level $104,000 less than the budget adopted on 1 July 2013.   

 

i. When adjusted for the inter-departmental transfer of one position, 

19 of 26 General Fund budget departments are at lower funding 

levels than they were allocated on 1 July 2013.   

 

ii. One is budgeted at the same level as 1 July 13 funding.   

 

iii. Six (6) departmental budgets are larger than 1 July 2013 levels.  

Their budgets are larger because of the following: 

 

1. Police and Fire are larger due to the purchase of vehicles; 

2. Sanitation is larger due to the increase cost for Waste 

Industries contract; 

3. Joint Programs is larger due to increases in costs for E-911 

and Tax Administration; 

4. Finance is larger due to two biennial audits not funded in 

FY13 coming due in FY14 and the addition of one-half 

year’s funding for un-freezing the assistant finance 

director’s position; 

5. Non-Departmental is larger due to funding for Phase 1 of 

the new Classification and Pay Plan. 

 

b.  The several areas of budget expansion not resultant from contractual 

obligations, such as increased costs for County services via the Joint-

Programs’ contracts, the Waste Industries Sanitation Services Contract, 

etc., are enumerated below.  Council could transfer funding in whole or 

part from these various expenditure accounts to provide funding for 

restoring the Main Street Program. 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 5  

 

i. $19,000:  Lease purchase for replacement of three police cars; 

ii. $15,000: Lease purchase for replacement of two inoperable fire 

vehicles; 

iii. $65,000:  Phase 1 funding for new Classification & Pay Plan; 

iv. $30,000:  Funding for ½ year for assistant finance director 

position. 

 

Sequence of Actions 

 

Subsequent to conducting the Budget Public Hearing and considering comments made by 

the public, City Council has several courses of action options: 

 

1. Subsequent to review and consideration of comments made by the public during 

the Budget Hearing, it may: 

 

a. Adopt the Budget Ordinance based on the Consensus Budget of 22 May, 

or 

 

b. Delay adoption of the Budget Ordinance and at the close of the Council 

Meeting, recess and reconvene on Tuesday, 10 June for further discussion 

to either confirm the Consensus Budget of 22 May or revise said Budget 

and form a new Consensus Budget for Adoption. 

 

i. If a new consensus Budget is developed subsequent to the Budget 

Hearing, for example, at the potential 10 June meeting, staff would 

revise the Budget accordingly and bring an amended Budget 

Ordinance reflecting the New Consensus Budget at the 23 June 

Council Meeting. 

 

ii. NC General Statutes require the adoption of a balanced budget not 

later than 30 June.  The FY14-15 Budget becomes effective on 1 

July. 

 

 

Enclosures:   

1. Ordinance 14-34 

2. Resolution 14-42 

3. CAF 14-62 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 6  

 

 

 

O R D I N A N C E  14—34  

 
APPROVAL OF 

THE FY 14-15 ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET, 

ESTABLISHING THE 2014 AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX RATE AND 

APPROVING THE ANNUAL FEE SCHEDULE 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to North Carolina General Statues 159-13, the State of North 

Carolina requires its local governments to operate on a 1 July – 30 June fiscal 

year basis; and 

 

WHEREAS, said State law further requires local governments adopt a balanced budget 

not later than 1 July; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Manager presented the FY 14-15 Recommended Budget to the City 

Council on Monday, 19 May 2014 and subsequent to the Budget Presentation, 

City Council met in several budget work sessions to discuss the budget and to 

make changes as it deemed appropriate and necessary for the public health, safety 

and welfare; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council heard comments from the public during its duly advertised 

Budget Hearing on Monday, 9 June 2013; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council, after receiving public comments throughout the budget 

review process and Budget Hearing, and deliberating the various budgetary 

issues, has achieved consensus on the FY 14-15 Budget. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Henderson City Council that it does 

hereby approve: 

 

 The FY 14-15 Budget; and 

 

 Establishes the 2014 Ad Valorem property tax rate; and 

 

 Increases the Regional Water rate; and 

 

 Increases the Water rate to its regular and governmental customers; and 

 

 Increases the  Sewer rate; and 

 

 Approves the Annual Fee Schedule;  

 

as set forth in the following sections: 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 7  

 

PART 1:  ADOPTION OF FY 14—15 BUDGET 
 

Section 1:  Total FY 14-15 Total Budget Summary 

 

Recommended Approved Requested Recommended Approved

10 General Operating 15,196,000$         15,196,000$         17,733,279$         15,196,000$         15,196,000$         

11 Powell Bill Operating 440,000$              440,000$              440,000$              440,000$              440,000$              

30 Water Enterprise 7,167,000$           7,126,000$           7,207,767$           7,167,000$           7,126,000$           

31 Sewer Enterprise 4,842,000$           4,842,000$           4,601,600$           4,842,000$           4,842,000$           

64 Regional Water Enterprise 4,319,000$           4,280,000$           4,582,200$           4,319,000$           4,280,000$           

40 Library Trust -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

50 LEO Pension Trust -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

51 Elmwood Cemetery Trust -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

-$                     

70 Capital Reserve Utilities 293,000$              293,000$              293,000$              293,000$              293,000$              

72 Capital Reserve General -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

73 Capital Reserve Economic Development 15,800$                15,800$                15,800$                15,800$                15,800$                

78 Capital Reserve Regional 3,842,000$           3,803,000$           3,934,653$           3,842,000$           3,803,000$           

79 Capital Reserve Rate Stabilization 5,036,400$           5,022,800$           5,036,400$           5,036,400$           5,022,800$           

Subtotal 41,151,200$         41,018,600$         43,844,699$         41,151,200$         41,018,600$         

FR 11 Powell Bill to 10 General 440,000$              440,000$              TO: 10 from 11 440,000$              440,000$              

FR 30 Water to 10 General 361,300$              361,300$              TO: 10 from 30 361,300$              361,300$              

FR 31 Sewer CA to 10 General 402,800$              402,800$              TO: 10 from 31 402,800$              402,800$              

FR 51 Elmwood to 10 General -$                      -$                     TO: 10 from 51 -$                     -$                     

FR 64 Regional CA to 10 General 225,000$              225,000$              TO 10 from 64 CA 225,000$              225,000$              

FR 31 Sewer CA to 30 Water 205,400$              205,400$              TO: 30 from 31 CA 205,400$              205,400$              

FR 64 Regional CA to 30 Water 80,000$                80,000$                TO: 30 from 64 CA 80,000$                80,000$                

FR: 64 Regional to 30 Water 16,000$                16,000$                TO: 30  from 64 16,000$                16,000$                

FR: 79 Rate Stabilization to 31 Sewer -$                      -$                     TO: 31 from 79 -$                     -$                     

FR: 78: CR Regional to 64 Water -$                      -$                     TO: 64 from 78 -$                     -$                     

FR: 31 Sewer to 70: CR Utilities 77,800$                77,800$                TO: 70 from 31 77,800$                77,800$                

FR: 30 Water to 70 CR Utilities 50,100$                50,100$                TO: 70 from 30 50,100$                50,100$                

FR: 10 General to 73 CR Econ Dev -$                      -$                     TO 73 from 10 -$                     -$                     

FR 64 Regional to 78 Regional Reserve 800,000$              761,000$              TO: 78 from 64 800,000$              761,000$              

FR: 30 Water to 79 CR Rates 1,003,400$           989,800$              TO: 79 from 30 1,003,400$           989,800$              

FR  31: Sewer Fund to 79 CRRates 436,000$              436,000$              TO: 79 from 31 436,000$              436,000$              

Total: Inter-Fund Transfers 4,097,800$           4,045,200$           4,097,800$           4,045,200$           

Revenue Summary Expenditures Summary

Operating Budgets' Total 41,151,200$         41,018,600$         41,151,200$         41,018,600$         

Less Inter-Fund Transfers' Total 4,097,800$           4,045,200$           4,097,800$           4,045,200$           

TOTAL FY 15 37,053,400$         36,973,400$         TOTAL FY 15 37,053,400$         36,973,400$         

Last Updated:  29 May 2014, rg

REVENUES

REVENUES EXPENDITURES

Less Inter-Fund Transfers--ExpendituresLess Inter-Fund Transfers--Revenues

Trust Funds

Capital Reserve Funds

Fund

Governmental Funds

Enterprise Funds

EXPENDITURES

FY 14-15 TOTAL COUNCIL APPROVED BUDGET SUMMARY

 
 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 8  

 

 

 

Section 2: 10: General Governmental Fund  
10 GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

Ad Valorem Taxes

10-100-400-400 Ad Valorem-All Prior Years 4,900$            4,900$              

10-100-400-308 Ad Valorem-2008 -$               -$                  

10-100-400-309 Ad Valorem-2009 8,000$            8,000$              

10-100-400-310 Ad Valorem-2010 15,000$          15,000$            

10-100-400-311 Ad Valorem-2011 30,000$          30,000$            

10-100-400-312 Ad Valorem-2012 60,000$          60,000$            

10-100-400-313 Ad Valorem-2013 150,000$        150,000$          

10-100-400-314 Ad Valorem-2014 5,700,000$     5,700,000$       

10-100-400-401 Debt Set-Off Ad Valorem -$               -$                  

10-100-400-450 Tax Penalties & Interest 65,000$          65,000$            

Subtotal-Ad Valorem Taxes All Years 6,032,900$     6,032,900$       

Other Local Taxes & Licenses

10-100-400-500 ABC Net Revenues 500$               500$                 

10-100-400-520 1% Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) 955,000$        955,000$          

10-100-400-521 Two 1/2% LOST 1,001,000$     1,001,000$       

10-100-400-530 1/4 % LOST Hold-Harmless 375,000$        375,000$          

10-100-400-535 Solid Waste Disposal Tax 6,000$            6,000$              

10-100-400-540 Business Privilege License (BPL) 211,000$        211,000$          

10-100-400-550 Motor Vehicle Licenses 300,000$        300,000$          

10-100-400-555 Vehicle Rental Tax 13,000$          13,000$            

Subtotal-Other Taxes & Licenses 2,861,500$     2,861,500$       

Inter-Governmental Unrestricted

10-100-400-570 Payment in Lieu of Tax: Vance Co PHA 1,500$            1,500$              

10-100-400-560 Vance County ABC Bottle Tax 5% 1,100$            1,100$              

10-100-411-010 State Beer and Wine Tax 60,000$          60,000$            

10-100-411-020 State Utility Franchise Tax 850,000$        850,000$          

Subtotal-Inter-Governmental Unrestricted 912,600$        912,600$          

Inter-Governmental Restricted

10-100-455-072 Bulletproof Vest Grant-Police -$               -$                  

10-100-455-800 NCDOT Mowing Contract 4,000$            4,000$              

Subtotal-Inter-Governmental Restricted 4,000$            4,000$              

Sales & Services

10-100-433-100 Garage Sales 783,500$        783,500$          

Subtotal-Garage Sales 783,500$        783,500$          

10-100-455-400 Refuse Collection 1,830,000$     1,830,000$       

10-100-455-402 Rubbish Pick-Up 3,000$            3,000$              

10-100-455-500 Bad Debt Recovery Sanitation 1,000$            1,000$              

10-100-455-501 Bad Debt Recovery-Debt Set-Off 1,000$            1,000$              

10-100-455-035 Sale of Leaf Bags 1,000$            1,000$              

10-100-455-200 Demolition & Lot Cleaning Fees Paid 1,000$            1,000$              

10-100-400-452 Demolition & Lot Liens Collected -$               -$                  

Subtotal-Sanitation Sales & Services 1,837,000$     1,837,000$       

10-100-433-200 Recreation Fees & Revenues 55,000$          55,000$            

10-100-433-201 Aycock-Aquatic Center Revenues 66,000$          66,000$            

10-100-433-300 Rental-Fox Pond Park 1,000$            1,000$              

10-100-477-020 Vance County-45% Operations 375,100$        375,100$          

10-100-477-040 Vance County Youth Services 164,000$        164,000$          

10-100-477-021 Vance County-45% Aycock Operations 127,000$        127,000$          

10-100-477-022 Vance County-50% Aycock Debt Service 153,700$        153,700$          

Subtotal-Recreation Program & Services 941,800$        941,800$          

10-100-455-300 Zoning & BOA Permits 15,000$          15,000$            

10-100-455-600 Cemetery Lot Sales & Services 7,000$            7,000$              

10-100-422-220 Rental-Police Training Center -$               -$                  

Subtotal-Miscellaneous Sales & Services 22,000$          22,000$            

Subtotal for All Sales and Services 3,584,300$     3,584,300$       

Subtotal All Categories for this Page 13,395,300$   13,395,300$     

FY15

Revenues

Operating Revenues

Garage Internal Service

Sanitation Sales & Services

Recreation Programs & Services

Miscellaneous Sales & Services

 
 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 9  

 

Section 2:  10:  General Governmental Fund (continued) 

 
10 GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

13,395,300$   13,395,300$     

Miscellaneous  

10-100-422-110 Court Cost Fees 6,000$            6,000$              

10-100-422-210 Parking Violations -$               -$                  

10-100-422-211 Fire Insperction Fee 15,000$          15,000$            

10-100-457-000 Sale of Assets & Material 8,000$            8,000$              

10-100-444-010 Investments 4,000$            4,000$              

10-100-455-010 Miscellaneous 8,600$            8,600$              

Subtotal-Miscellaneous 41,600$          41,600$            

Budgetary Appropriations

10-980-461-011 Transfer from: 11 Powell Bill Fund 440,000$        440,000$          

10-985-471-030 Transfer from 30: Water-Cost Allocation 361,300$        361,300$          

10-985-471-031 Transfer from 31: Sewer-Cost Allocation 402,800$        402,800$          

10-985-471-064 Transfer from 64: Regional-Cost Allocation 225,000$        225,000$          

Subtotal-Inter-Fund Transfers 1,429,100$     1,429,100$       

10-990-490-999 Fund Balance Appropriated -$               -$                  

10-995-490-999Asset Forfeiture Fund Balance Appropriated 325,000$        325,000$          

Subtotal-Fund Balance Appropriations 325,000$        325,000$          

Subtotal-Budgetary Appropriations 1,754,100$     1,754,100$       

Total-This Page 15,191,000$   15,191,000$     

Subtotal-Ad Valorem Taxes All Years 6,032,900$     6,032,900$       

Subtotal-Other Taxes & Licenses 2,861,500$     2,861,500$       

Subtotal-Inter-Governmental Unrestricted 912,600$        912,600$          

Subtotal-Inter-Governmental Restricted 4,000$            4,000$              

Subtotal-Sales & Services 3,584,300$     3,584,300$       

Subtotal-Miscellaneous 46,600$          46,600$            

Subtotal-Budgetary Appropriations 1,754,100$     1,754,100$       

Total Revenues 15,196,000$   15,196,000$     

FY15

Revenues (continued)

Total- All Categories  From Prior Page

Inter-Fund Transfers

Fund Balance Appropriations

Total Fund Revenue Summary

 
 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 10  

 

 

 

Section 2:  10:  General Governmental Fund (continued) 
10 GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

Departmental Expenditures

10-410 Governing Body 175,000$        175,000$          

10-414 City Attorney 69,000$          69,000$            

Subtotal-Legislative 244,000$        244,000$          

10-420 Administration 302,000$        302,000$          

10-425 Human Resources 202,000$        202,000$          

10-440 Finance 441,000$        441,000$          

10-450 Information Services 37,000$          37,000$            

Subtotal-Administrative 982,000$        982,000$          

10-423 Code Compliance 164,000$        164,000$          

10-495 Planning & Community Development 144,000$        144,000$          

10-496 Main Street-Downtown Development 10,000$          10,000$            

Subtotal-Planning & Community Development 318,000$        318,000$          

10-510 Police 4,050,000$     4,049,600$       

10-512 Police-Asset Forfeiture 325,000$        325,000$          

10-530 Fire 2,175,000$     2,174,600$       

Subtotal-Public Safety 6,550,000$     6,549,200$       

10-500 Public Buildings 73,000$          73,000$            

10-501 Bennett Perry House 500$               500$                 

10-545 Public Services Administration 140,000$        140,000$          

10-555 Garage 944,000$        944,000$          

10-560 Cemetery 76,000$          76,000$            

10-570 Street Maintenance 1,182,000$     1,182,000$       

10-580 Sanitation 921,000$        921,000$          

Subtotal-Public Services 3,336,500$     3,336,500$       

10-620 Recreation Services 891,000$        891,000$          

10-622 Youth Services 164,000$        164,000$          

10-623 Aycock/Aquatics Center 348,000$        348,000$          

Subtotal-Recreation & Parks 1,403,000$     1,403,000$       

-$               -$                  

10-650 City & County Shared Programs 976,000$        976,000$          

10-660 Non-Departmental 481,000$        481,000$          

10-670 Local Agencies 30,000$          30,800$            

10-680 Debt Service 875,500$        875,500$          

Subtotal-Non-Departmental 2,362,500$     2,363,300$       

Subtotal-All Departments 15,196,000$   15,196,000$     

Subtotal-Legislative 244,000$        244,000$          

Subtotal-Administrative 982,000$        982,000$          

Subtotal-Planning & Community Development 318,000$        318,000$          

Subtotal-Public Safety 6,550,000$     6,549,200$       

Subtotal-Public Services 3,336,500$     3,336,500$       

Subtotal-Recreation & Parks 1,403,000$     1,403,000$       

Subtotal-Non-Departmental 2,362,500$     2,363,300$       

Total Expenditures 15,196,000$   15,196,000$     

Total General Fund Revenues 15,196,000$   15,196,000$     

Total General Fund Expenditures 15,196,000$   15,196,000$     

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                  

FY15

Expenditures

Non-Departmental 

Total Fund Expenditure Summary

Legislative

Administrative

Planning & Community Development

Public Safety

Public Services

Recreation & Parks

 
 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 11  

 

Section 3:  11:  Powell Bill Governmental Fund 

 
11 POWELL BILL GOVERNMENTAL FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

11-110-411-120 Powell Bill Allocation 440,000$        440,000$          

Subtotal 440,000$        440,000$          

Miscellaneous Revenues

11-110-444-010 Investments -$               -$                  

Subtotal -$               -$                  

Budgetary Appropriations

11-990-490-999 Fund Balance Appropriated -$               -$                  

Subtotal -$               -$                  

Total Revenues 440,000$        440,000$          

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures

11-690-561-010 Powell Bill 440,000$        440,000$          

Total Expenditures 440,000$        440,000$          

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY15

Revenues

Inter-Governmental Restricted Revenues

 
 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 12  

 

 

 

Section 4:  30: Water Enterprise Fund 

 
30  WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

30-300-433-420 Account Set Up Fee 12,000$          12,000$            

30-300-433-430 Water Taps 35,000$          35,000$            

30-300-433-410 Water User Revenues 2,631,700$     2,590,700$       

30-300-433-416 Water Charges-Franklin County 2,800,000$     2,800,000$       

30-300-433-418 Water Reservation Fee-Granville 951,100$        951,100$          

30-300-433-421 Water Reservation Fee Vance 1A 9,100$            9,100$              

30-300-433-427 Water Reservaton Fee Vance 2A/B 43,700$          43,700$            

30-300-433-425 Water Charges-Kittrell WA 73,000$          73,000$            

30-300-433-426 Water Charges-Vance Co 1A 45,000$          45,000$            

30-300-433-427 Water Charges-Vance Co 2A&B -$               -$                  

30-300-433-450 Sprinkler/Hydrant Fees 100,000$        100,000$          

30-300-433-440 Late Fee Charges 71,000$          71,000$            

30-300-433-460 Reconnect Service Fee 20,000$          20,000$            

30-300-433-407 Returned Check Fee 4,000$            4,000$              

30-300-455-010 Miscellaneous 5,000$            5,000$              

30-300-455-500 Bad Debt Recovery 5,000$            5,000$              

30-300-455-501 Bad Debt Rec-Debt Set Off 5,000$            5,000$              

Subtotal 6,810,600$     6,769,600$       

Non-Operating Revenues

30-300-444-010 Investments 3,000$            3,000$              

30-300-433-470 Sale of Materials 2,000$            2,000$              

30-300-457-000 Sale of Assets -$               -$                  

30-300-455-025 Sprint PCS Agreement 25,000$          25,000$            

30-300-455-030 T-Mobile Agreement 25,000$          25,000$            

Subtotal 55,000$          55,000$            

Budgetary Appropriations

30-980-461-064 Transfer from 64: Regional Fund 16,000$          16,000$            

30-985-471-031 Transfrom 31: Sewer Cost Alloc 205,400$        205,400$          

30-985-471-064 Trans from 64 Regional Cost Alloc 80,000$          80,000$            

Subtotal 301,400$        301,400$          

Total Revenues 7,167,000$     7,126,000$       

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures

30-660 Non-Departmental 1,589,600$     1,575,600$       

30-680 Debt Service 618,800$        618,800$          

30-715 Public Services Administration 110,100$        110,100$          

30-720 Engineering 266,800$        266,800$          

30-725 Customer Service 524,600$        524,600$          

30-818 Water Distribution Operations 4,057,100$     4,030,100$       

Total Expenditures 7,167,000$     7,126,000$       

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY15

Revenues

Operating Revenues

 
 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 13  

 

Section 5:  31:  Sewer Enterprise Fund 

 
31 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

31-310-433-420 Account Set Up Fee 25,000$          25,000$            

31-310-433-435 Sewer Taps 5,000$            5,000$              

31-310-433-485 Sewer User Revenues 4,389,000$     4,389,000$       

31-310-433-480 Sewer Surcharges 16,000$          16,000$            

31-310-433-440 Late Fee Charges 165,000$        165,000$          

31-310-433-460 Reconnect Service Fee 51,000$          51,000$            

31-310-433-495 FOG Monitoring Inspection Fee 8,000$            8,000$              

31-310-433-485 Sewer Code Violations 5,000$            5,000$              

31-310-455-010 Miscellaneous 1,000$            1,000$              

31-310-455-500 Bad Debt Recovery 10,000$          10,000$            

31-310-455-501 Bad Debt Rec-Debt Set Off 10,400$          10,400$            

Subtotal 4,685,400$     4,685,400$       

Non-Operating Revenues

31-310-444-010 Investments 1,000$            1,000$              

31-310-461-230 Vance Co DS NVHS Sewer 77,800$          77,800$            

31-310-477-052 Vance Co DS Ruin Ck Sewer 77,800$          77,800$            

Subtotal 156,600$        156,600$          

Budgetary Appropriations

31-980-461-079 Transfer from: 79 Rate Stabilization -$               -$                  

Subtotal -$               -$                  

Total Revenues 4,842,000$     4,842,000$       

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures

31-660 Non-Departmental 1,298,700$     1,298,700$       

31-680 Debt Service 705,500$        705,500$          

31-822 Water Reclamation Facility 2,212,300$     2,212,300$       

31-828 Sewer Collection Operations 431,300$        431,300$          

31-829 Sewer I & I Operations 194,200$        194,200$          

Total Expenditures 4,842,000$     4,842,000$       

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY15

Revenues

Operating Revenues

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 14  

 

 

 

Section 6:  64:  Regional Water Enterprise Fund 

 
64 REGIONAL WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

64-640-433-415 Sale of Water 4,309,000$     4,270,000$       

Subtotal 4,309,000$     4,270,000$       

Non-Operating Revenues

64-640-444-010 Investment Income 3,000$            3,000$              

64-640-455-010 Miscellaneous 7,000$            7,000$              

Subtotal 10,000$          10,000$            

Budgetary Appropriations

64-640-461-078 Trans from 78: Capital Reserve -$               -$                  

64-990-490-999 Fund Balance Appropriation -$               -$                  

Subtotal -$               -$                  

Total Revenues 4,319,000$     4,280,000$       

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures

64-660 Non-Departmental 1,233,700$     1,194,700$       

64-680 Debt Service 765,500$        765,500$          

64-900 Regional Water Plant 2,319,800$     2,319,800$       

Total Expenditures 4,319,000$     4,280,000$       

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

Operating Revenues

Revenues

FY15

 
 

Section 7:  40: Public Library Trust Fund 

 
40 PUBLIC LIBRARY TRUST FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

Budgetary Appropriations

40-400-461-020 Transfer from 10: General Fund -$               -$                  

Subtotal -$               -$                  

Total Revenues -$               -$                  

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures

40-850 Library -$               -$                  

Total Expenditures -$               -$                  

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY15

Revenues

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 15  

 

Section 8:  50:  Law Enforcement Officers’ Retirement Trust Fund 

 
50 LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' RETIREMENT TRUST FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

Budgetary Appropriations

50-550-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriation -$               -$                  

Subtotal -$               -$                  

Total Revenues -$               -$                  

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures

50-860 Non-Departmental -$               -$                  

Total Expenditures -$               -$                  

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY15

Revenues

 
 

 

Section 9:  51:  Elmwood Cemetery Trust Fund 

 
51 ELMWOOD CEMETERY TRUST FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

Budgetary Appropriations

51-480-444-010 Investments -$               -$                  

Subtotal -$               -$                  

Total Revenues -$               -$                  

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures

51-855 Cemetery -$               -$                  

Total Expenditures -$               -$                  

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY15

Revenues

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 16  

 

 

 

Section 10:  70:  Utilities Capital Reserve Fund 

 
70 UTILITIES CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

70-851-444-010 Investments 56$                 56$                   

70-801-444-010 Investments 100$               100$                 

Subtotal 156$               156$                 

Budgetary Appropriations

70-801-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriated 55,600$          55,600$            

70-801-461-030 Trans from 30: Water Fund 50,100$          50,100$            

70-851-461-031 Trans from 31: Sewer Fund 77,800$          77,800$            

70-700-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriated 109,344$        109,344$          

Subtotal 292,844$        292,844$          

Total Revenues 293,000$        293,000$          

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures

70-801-509-850 Water Reserve 105,800$        105,800$          

70-851-509-850 Sewer Reserve 187,200$        187,200$          

Total Expenditures 293,000$        293,000$          

Last Updated: 26 March 2014, rg Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY15

Revenues

Miscellaneous Revenues

 
 

 

Section 11:  72:  General Capital Reserve Fund 

 
72 GENERAL CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

72-722-444-010 Investments -$               -$                  

Subtotal -$               -$                  

Total Revenues -$               -$                  

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures

72-875-509-800 Capital Reserve -$               -$                  

Total Expenditures -$               -$                  

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY15

Revenues

Miscellaneous Revenues

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 17  

 

Section 12:  73:  Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund 

 
73 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

73-990-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriated 15,800$          15,800$            

73-980-461-010 Transfer from 10: General Fund -$               -$                  

Subtotal 15,800$          15,800$            

Total Revenues 15,800$          15,800$            

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures

73-660-509-850 Capital Reserve 15,800$          15,800$            

Total Expenditures 15,800$          15,800$            

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY15

Revenues

Budgetary Appropriations

 
 

 

Section 13:  78:  Regional Water Capital Reserve Fund 

 
78 REGIONAL WATER CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

Corps of Engineers 78-911-461-064 Transfer from Regional Fund 64 5,000$            5,000$              

Corps of Engineers 78-911-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriation 54,000$          54,000$            

Corps of Engineers 78-911-444-010 Investment Income -$               -$                  

Subtotal 59,000$          59,000$            

20 MGD 78-922-461-064 Transfer from Regional Fund 64 795,000$        756,000$          

20 MGD 78-922-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriation 2,763,000$     2,763,000$       

20 MGD 78-922-444-010 Investment Income -$               -$                  

Subtotal 3,558,000$     3,519,000$       

Regional CR 78-865-461-064 Transfer from Regional Fund 64 -$               -$                  

Regional CR 78-865-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriation 225,000$        225,000$          

Regional CR 78-865-444-010 Investment Income -$               -$                  

Subtotal 225,000$        225,000$          

Total Revenues 3,842,000$     3,803,000$       

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures

78-911-509-850 Corp of Engineers Reserve 59,000$          59,000$            

78-922-509-850 20 MGD Reserve 3,558,000$     3,519,000$       

78-865-509-850 Regional Capital Reserve 225,000$        225,000$          

Total Expenditures 3,842,000$     3,803,000$       

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY15

Revenues

Revenues by Project

 
 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 18  

 

 

 

Section 14:  79:  Rate Stabilization Capital Reserve Fund 

 
79 RATE STABILIZATION CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

Water Plant 79-641-461-030 Transfer from 30: Water Fund 1,003,400$     989,800$          

Water Plant 79-641-444-010 Investments 12,000$          12,000$            

Water Plant 79-641-433-430 Vance Tap Fee Ph 2A&2B -$               -$                  

Water Plant 79-641-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriation 3,046,000$     3,046,000$       

Subtotal 4,061,400$     4,047,800$       

HWRF 79-652-461-031 Transfer from 31: Sewer Fund 436,000$        436,000$          

HWRF 79-652-444-010 Investments 1,000$            1,000$              

79-652-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriation 538,000$        538,000$          

Subtotal 975,000$        975,000$          

Total Revenues 5,036,400$     5,022,800$       

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures

Water Plant 79-641-535-750 20 MGD Rate Stabilization 4,061,400$     4,047,800$       

HWRF 79-652-535-750 HWRF Rate Stabilization 975,000$        975,000$          

Total Expenditures 5,036,400$     5,022,800$       

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY15

Revenues

Revenues by Project

 
 

PART 2:  ESTABLISHING THE FY 14—15 PROPERTY TAX RATE 
 

Section 15:  Ad Valorem Property Tax Rate Established 

 

There is hereby levied an Ad Valorem property tax rate of $0.62 on each one 

hundred dollars ($100) valuation of taxable property, both real and personal, 

as listed for taxes as of 1 January 2014 for the purpose of raising the revenue 

set forth in the 10: General Fund budget estimates in order to finance its 

authorized appropriations necessary for the proper running of the government 

and delivery of its services to citizens and customers.  The 2014 Ad Valorem 

property tax revenue is based on an estimated overall valuation of 

$990,000,000 at a collection rate of 93.5%. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 19  

 

 

PART 3: AUTHORIZING INCREASES IN FEES AND RATES 

 
Section 16:  Regional Water Rate Increased 

 

The Regional Water Rate shall be increased by 4% on all customers for all 

bills rendered on or after 1 July 2014 as reflected in the following Table, and 

said rates shall be included in the Annual Fee Schedule.   

 

Rate Tier Per 1M Gallons

Fixed Rate 2,008.00$             

Used Rate 1,284.00$             

Regional Potable Water Rate

M = Million  
 
Section 17:  Water Rate Increased 

 

The City Water Rate shall be increased by 3.5% on all customers for all bills 

rendered on or after 1 July 2014 as reflected in the following Table, and said 

rates shall be included in the Annual Fee Schedule.   

 

 

Location
Minimum Charge    

0 to 499 CF
Plus

500 to 4,000 CF     

per 100 CF

>  4,000 CF          

per 100 CF

In-City 10.42$                      Plus 2.36$                  1.78$                     

Out-of-City 26.06$                      Plus 5.90$                  4.45$                     

Location Minimum Charge Plus
0 to 100,000 CF    

per 100 CF

> 100,000 CF      

per 100 CF

In-City 10.42$                      Plus 1.34$                  1.07$                     

Out-of-City 26.06$                      Plus 3.30$                  2.66$                     

Location
Minimum Charge    

0 to 500 Gallons
Plus

> 500 Gallons 

per One Gallon

In-City 8.24$                          Plus 0.007$                  

Out-of-City 14.27$                        Plus 0.010$                  

Bulk Water Rate

Water Rates FY14-15

CF = Cubic Feet; > = Greater Than

Non-Large Water Quantity Customers <100,000 CF                                        

Average Monthly Use

Large Water Quantity Customers >100,000 CF                                             

Average Monthly Use

 
 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 20  

 

 

 
Section 18:  Governmental Water  and Sewer Sales Contracts’ Rates Increased 

 

 18-1:  Kittrell Water Association:  Pursuant to the Water Sales Agreement, the 

rate shall be increased by 3.5%, effective 1 July 2014; and 

 18-2:  Franklin County:  Pursuant to the Water Sales Agreement, the rate shall be 

increased by 4%, effective 1 July 2014; and 

 18-3:  Granville County:  Pursuant to the Water and Sewer Sales Agreement, the 

rates shall be increased as follows:  Water shall be increased by 3.5%, effective 1 

July 2014, and Sewer shall be increased by 3%, effective 1 July 2014; and 

 18-4:  Vance County Phase 1A:  Pursuant to the Water Sales Agreement, the rate 

shall be increased by 3.5%, effective1 April 2015; and 

 18-5:  Vance County Phases 2A&2B:  Pursuant to the Water Sales Agreement, 

the rate shall be increased by 3.5%, effective 1 April 2015. 

 

Section 19:  Sewer Rate Increased 

 

The Sewer Rate shall be increased by 3% on all customers for all bills 

rendered on or after 1 July 2014 as reflected in the following Table, and said 

rates shall be included in the Annual Fee Schedule.   

 

Location
Minimum 

Charge
Plus

0 - 10,000 CF 

per 100 CF

Over 10,000 CF 

per 100 CF

In-City 13.74$       Plus 4.89$             3.50$               

Out-of-City 34.34$       Plus 12.24$           8.80$               

Sewer Rates FY14-15

CF = Cubic Feet  
 

PART 4:  SPECIAL AUTHORIZATIONS 

 
Section 20:  Special Authorizations 

 

The City Manager shall be authorized to re-allocate departmental 

appropriations among the various objects of expenditures within any budget 

department as he deems appropriate and necessary.  Additionally, he shall be 

authorized to re-allocate departmental appropriations among other 

departments within the same fund via an intra-fund transfer as he deems 

appropriate and necessary.  Notation of such appropriations shall be made to 

the City Council on the next financial report.  All intra-fund transfers must 

also be approved in advance by the Finance Director. 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 21  

 

 
Section 21:  Restrictions 

 

 The inter-fund transfer of funds shall be made only with the prior 

consent of City Council via a formal Budget Ordinance Amendment. 

 

 Contingency funds shall only be appropriated with the prior consent of 

City Council via a formal Budget Ordinance Amendment. 

 

 Funds may only be appropriated from the Capital Reserve funds 70: 

Utilities Capital Reserve Fund; 72: General Capital Reserve Fund; 73: 

Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund; 78: Regional Water 

Capital Reserve Fund; and 79:  Rate Stabilization Capital Reserve 

Fund; with the prior consent of the City Council via a formal Budget 

Ordinance Amendment. 

 
Section 22:  Capital Project and Grant Project Funds 
 

 The City Manager may recommend to the City Council the establishment of any 

new capital project and or grant project, or recommend amendments to existing 

capital project and/or grant project via a formal Budget Ordinance Amendment.  

 

 Capital projects and grant projects are considered to be open for the life of the 

project, or grant, and shall be reported to City Council in the same manner in 

which regular financial reports are provided. 

 

 Once a capital and/or grant project is authorized by City Council, the City 

Manager may treat said project as though it were any other operating fund 

provided if such actions are consistent with project and/or grant restrictions and 

guidelines.  

 

Section 23:  Utilization of Budget and Budget Ordinance 

 

This Ordinance, 14-34, adopts the FY14-15 Budget and said Budget shall be the basis of 

the financial plan for the City of Henderson for the period beginning 1 July 2014 and 

ending 30 June 2015. The City Manager shall administer guidance and direction to the 

Department Directors and/or other duly authorized staff to implement their appropriate 

portion of the Budget.  Copies of the Budget Ordinance and its appropriate detail shall be 

provided to the Finance Director and all Department Directors. The Finance Director 

shall establish records consistent with the Budget and its authorizing Ordinance and in  



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 22  

 

 

 

compliance with the North Carolina General Statutes and rules and regulations as may 

exist or be promulgated in the future by the North Carolina Local Government 

Commission. 

 

PART 5:  FEE SCHEDULE AFFIRMED, AMENDED AND ADOPTED 
 

Section 24:  Fee Schedule Affirmed, Amended and Adopted  

 

The Annual Fee Schedule incorporates the rates and fees associated with the various 

charges for services and penalties for violations of City Codes.  The Annual Fee Schedule 

is more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Ordinance and is hereby reaffirmed and 

adopted as part of this Ordinance. 

 

PART 6:  APPROVAL OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLANS 
 

Section 25:  Utilities Multi-Year Capital Improvements Plan 

 

The Utilities Multi-Year Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) for the period 2012 – 2021, 

and initially approved on 13 June 2011 via Resolution 11-59 is hereby reaffirmed and 

readopted as the City of Henderson’s multi-year capital improvements plan for its 

Regional Water, Water and Sewer systems.  Said CIP is on permanent file in the Office 

of the City Clerk and is incorporated herein as part of this Ordinance by reference. 

 

Section 26:  General Fund Multi-Year Capital Improvements Plan  

 

The General Fund Multi-Year Capital Improvements Plan (Plan) for the period 2014-

2018 is hereby adopted as the City of Henderson’s multi-year general improvements 

plan.  Said Plan is on permanent file in the Office of the City Clerk and is incorporated 

herein as part of this Ordinance by reference.  

 

PART 7:  ADOPTION OF BUDGET AND RELATED 

                 AUTHORIZING INSTRUMENTS 
 

Section 27:  Effective Dates 

 

All sections of this Ordinance shall become effective on 1 July 2014, except for Sections 

18-1 and 18-2, which shall become effective 1 April 2015. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 23  

 

Section 28:  Adoption 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 14-34, upon motion of Council Member **** and second by 

Council Member *****, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the 

following votes and was APPROVED on this the **
h
  day of June  2014:  YES:  *****. 

NO: *****.   ABSTAIN:  *****.   ABSENT:  ***** .          

  

___________________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 

 

Reference:  Minute Book 43, p. ***  

 

 

 

 
 __________ 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA - CITY OF HENDERSON 
 

I, Esther McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, 

do hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 14-34  adopted by 

the Henderson City Council in Regular Session on **** June 2014. This Ordinance is 

recorded in Ordinance Book 9, p.****. 

 

Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ***
th

 day of June 2014. 

 

 

_________________________ 

Esther McCrackin 

City Clerk 

City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 

 

 

Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 

                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 

 

 

Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 

A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 24  

 

 

 

Annual Fee Schedule 

FY 14-15 
Cemetery

1
 

 Grave Plot $750.00 

  

Engineering 

 Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control Permit  

  Plan Review Fee (.50 - .999 Acres) $75.00 

  Plan Review Fee (1- 3 acres) $100.00 

 Plan Review Fee (more than 3 Acres plus $20.00 per Acre) $125.00  

Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control Permit  

  Permit Inspection Fee (.50 - .999 Acres) $125.00 

 Permit Inspection Fee (1 – 3 Acres) $225.00 

  Permit Inspection Fee (more than 3 Acres plus $25.00 per Acre) $325.00  

 Stormwater Permit Review Fee $400.00 

 Maps $1.00 to $20.00 

 Petition to Close Street $900.00 

 

Finance 

 Late Fee (One Time Waiver within a rolling 12 month period with Good Standing History) $12.00 

 Privilege Licenses   (See Privilege Licenses)  

 Reconnection Fee $13.00 

 Returned Check Fees $25.00 

 Security Deposits (see below)     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                 
1
 City stopped opening/closing graves in 2011  

Water and Sewer Security Deposits’ Schedule 
Approved Ordinance 13-10 March 11, 2013 

Residential In-City Current R-Tier 1 Deposit R-Tier 2 Deposit 

 Water, Sewer & Sanitation  $150.00 2.5 times average monthly bill 

 Water & Sewer Only (for those 
living in apartment complexes 
providing commercial green 
boxes) 

 $150.00 2.5 times average monthly bill 

 Water or Sewer & Sanitation  $150.00 2.5 times average monthly bill 

Residential Out-of-City    

 Water & Sewer  $200.00 2.5 times average monthly bill 

 Water Only  $150.00 2.5 times average monthly bill 

 Sewer Only  $200.00 2.5 times average monthly bill 

 R-Tier 1 Deposit is the deposit required by any new residential customer establishing an account and not able to 
provide a satisfactory letter of good payment history from his/her most recent water/sewer utility provider.  
Additionally, any existing residential customer as of the effective date of this Ordinance (1 April 2013) whose 
service is subject to disconnection because of non-payment will be required to increase his/her security deposit to 
the R-Tier 1 Deposit rate in order to re-establish service. 
 

Ordinance 14-34 

Attachment A 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 25  

 

Fire 

 Fire Reports $1.00 

 Fire Code Violation Citations 

  Approved Fire Evacuation Plan Required and Posted $50.00 

  Street Address not Posted  $50.00 

  Street Address not Visible  $50.00 

  Key Boxes  $50.00 

  Breach in Fire Wall/Fire Stops  $50.00 

  Fire/Exit Door Inoperative $200.00 

  Fire Alarm Needs Testing $50.00 

  Sprinkler or Fire Alarm Inoperable $200.00 

  Sprinkler/Standpipe not Complying with Code $50.00 

  Sprinkler Heads Blocked/Covered (immediate) $500.00 

  Standpipe System not Complying with Code $50.00 
  Portable Fire Extinguisher $50.00 

  Fire Alarm and Detection Systems $50.00 

  Overcrowding (immediate) $500.00 

  Maximum Occupancy Load Certificate not Posted $50.00 

  Storage in or on Fire Escape (immediate) $500.00 

  Blocked Stairwells or Stairways $500.00   Blocked Means or Egress $500.00 

  No Required Exit Directional Signs $50.00 

  Exit Illuminated and Markings $50.00 

  Locked Exit Door (immediate) $500.00 

  Exit or Egress Door Needs Repair $50.00 
  Fire Exit or Aisle Blocked $500.00 

  Spray Booth Not Complying to Code $50.00 

  All Other Code Violations $50.00 

 State Mandated Fire Inspections 

  Initial Inspection 

   Up to 50,000 sf $55.00 

   50,001 to 500,000 sf $105.00 

   Greater than 500,000 sf $120.00 

  Re-Inspections 

   1st Re-inspection $0.00 

   2nd Re-inspection $55.00 

   3rd Re-inspection $110.00 

   4th Re-inspection $225.00  

Commercial/Non-Profit & Industrial In-City 

 Based on Total Consumption Current CNI-Tier Deposit 

 Water, Sewer & Sanitation (for downtown 
businesses not able to use commercial green 

box services) 
 

2.5 times average monthly bill, or 
$150, whichever is larger 

    

 
Water & Sewer Only  

2.5 times average monthly bill, or 
$150, whichever is larger 

Commercial/Non-Profit & Industrial Out-of-City  

 Based on Total Consumption   

 
Water & Sewer  

2.5 times average monthly bill, or 
$150, whichever is larger 

 
Water Only  

2.5 times average monthly bill, or 
$150, whichever is larger 

 CNI-Tier Deposit is the deposit required by any new commercial, non-profit or industrial customer applying for 
service with the City and cannot provide a satisfactory letter of good payment from his/her most recent 
water/sewer utility provider.  Existing customers whose service is subject to disconnection due to non-payment will 
be required to increase his/her security deposits to 2.5 times their average monthly bill in order to re-establish 
service.” 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 26  

 

 

 

Planning 

 Rezoning Application 

  Zoning Map Amendment to Residential District $350.00 plus $50 per acre or part thereof 

  Zoning Map Amendment – Other $350.00 plus $100.00 per acre or part thereof 

 Review by Technical Review Committee $200.00 

 Sign Permit  

  0-50 sq. ft $25.00  

  51 – 100 sq. ft $50.00 

  101 – 200 sq. ft $75.00 

  201 sq ft. and larger $100.00 

 Subdivision Plat Approval 

  Major $250.00 plus $10.00 per lot 

  Minor $150.00  

  Minor Residential $100.00 

  Exempt $50.00 

 Special Use Permit $350.00 

 Text Amendment 

  Change affecting only one subsection of Ordinance $100.00 

  Other $150.00 

 Variances $350.00 

 Zoning Permit 

  Residential $100.00 

  Commercial $100.00 

  Name Change/Change of Ownership $100.00 

  Home Occupation Permit $100.00 

  Certificate of Zoning Compliance $50.00 

 Zoning Ordinance $25.00 

 Subdivision Regulations $25.00 

 Exempt Plat $60.00 

 

Police 

 Handicapped/Fire Lane Parking $75.00 

 Fire Hydrant, Loading Zone, Blocking Driveway, No  

  Parking Zone, Parking on Wrong Side of Street, Parking on  

  Sidewalk, Blocking Sidewalk/Crosswalk, Double Parking $20.00 

 Overtime Parking, Parking too Close to Corner, Other $8.00 

 

Privilege Fees 

Code/Category                                               Fee 

1 Advertisement  $35.00 

2  Amusements (Entertainments, Dances, Traveling, Banquet Room Rental) $25.00 

3  Adult Entertainment Sales (Annual Fee) $800.00  

4  Antique Furniture $50.00 

5  Auto Service Station $12.50  

6  Automobile Dealer (New & Used) $25.00  

7  Bakery Products $50.00 

8  Balloons, Novelties, Souvenirs $10.00 

 

 

 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 27  

 

Privilege Fees (Con’t) 
9  Barber Shops (Per Chair) $2.50 

10  Beauty Shops (Per Chair) $2.50 

11  Beer Off Premises $5.00 

12  Beer On Premises $15.00 

13  Bicycle Dealer $25.00  

14  Billiard Tables $25.00  

15  Book Store $20.00  

16  Bowling Alleys (Per Lane) $10.00  

17  Brick Dealers and Manufacturers $20.00  

18  Brokers & Commission Merchants  $50.00 

19  Building Materials $50.00  

20  Cabinet & Carpenter Shops (1 Emp) $20.00  

21  Cabinet & Carpenter Shops (2 Or More Emp) $50.00  

22  Car Wash $12.50 

23  Carnival Companies 300.00  

24  Chain Stores $50.00  

25  Check Cashing Business $100.00  

26  Cigarette, Cigar, Tobacco $4.00 

27  Circus & Animal Shows (Per Day) $25.00 

28  Clothing Stores $50.00  

29  Cold Storage & Freezer Locker $100.00  

20  Collection and Claim Agencies $50.00  

31  Confectionery & Fruit Stands $30.00  

32  Contractor – Electrical $50.00  

33  Contractor – General $10.00 

34  Contractor – Heating / Air $50.00 

35  Contractor – Plumbing $50.00 

36  Contractor – Sprinkler System $100.00 

37  Contractor – Wallpaper Hanging $20.00 

38  Contractor -  Roofing $50.00 

39  Contractor – Painting $10.00 

40  Cotton Warehouse $100.00 

41  Creameries or Dairies $50.00  

42  Day Cares $50.00 

43  Dealer of Firearms $50.00 

44  Dealer of Other Weapons $200.00 

45  Drugstores $3.00  

46  Dry Cleaners $50.00  

47  Electric Company $100.00  

48  Electronic Gaming Operations – (Per Terminal) $1,000.00 

49  Electronic Gaming Operations – Annual Fee $2,000.00 

50  Employment Agencies $100.00 

51  Express Companies $100.00  

52  Feed or Grain Stores $50.00  

53  Fertilizer Dealers $50.00  

54  Gas Company $100.00 

55  Gas, Benzene, Lube, Oil & Grease $100.00  

56  Grocery Stores $30.00  

57  Hardware Stores $50.00  

 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 28  

 

 

 

Privilege Fees (Con’t)  

Code/Category                               Fee 

58  Harvesting & Agricultural Machine $50.00  

59  Health Facilities, Spas, Gyms, etc. $50.00 

60  Hotels Per Room ($25.00 Minimum) $1.00 

61  Ice Cream Mfg, & Dealer – Retail $2.50  

62  Ice Cream Mfg. & Dealer – Wholesale $25.00  

63  Ice Dealers $50.00  

64  Itinerant Merchants & Salesman $100.00  

65  Jewelry Repair $20.00  

66  Jewelry Stores $50.00  

67  Juke Box (Each) $5.00  

68  Junk Dealers $75.00  

69  Knitting Mills $50.00  

70  Laundries/Launderettes $30.00  

71  Lawn Care & Mowing $50.00 

72  Loan Agencies $100.00  

73  Locksmiths $50.00 

74  Lunch Stands $5.00  

75  Manufacturers $10.00  

76  Meat Retailers $50.00  

77  Meat Wholesale  $100.00  

78  Merry-Go-Round, Etc. (Arcade Games) $50.00  

79  Metal & Machine Shop $50.00  

80  Mills, Corn, Flour or Feed $60.00  

81  Miscellaneous $50.00 

82  Monument Erecting & Sales $80.00 

83  Motorcycle/ATV/Scooter Dealer $12.50  

84  Movie Theaters $200.00 

85  Musical Instrument Sales $10.00  

86  Nail Salon (per chair) $2.50 

87  Newspaper Sales $50.00  

88  Office Supplies & Servicing $50.00  

89  Operators of Vending Machines $20.00  

90  Outdoor Theaters $100.00  

91  Pawnbroker $100.00  

92  Peddler (Cart or Vehicle) $25.00  

93  Peddler (on foot) $10.00 

94  Photo Engravers $20.00  

95  Piano Repairers & Tuners $5.00  

96  Printing Establishments $20.00  

97  Rags, Hides, Wastepaper Dealers $20.00  

98  Repair Shop $20.00 

99  Restaurants (0-4 Seats) $25.00  

100  Restaurants (5 or More Seats) $42.50  

101  Retail Merchants $50.00  

102  Secondhand Dealers $40.00 

103  Security Dealers $100.00  

104  Service Merchant $50.00 

105  Shoe Shop $20.00 

106  Sporting Goods $50.00 

107  Storage Warehouse/ Mini Storage $100.00  



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 29  

 

Privilege Fees (Con’t) 

Code/Category    Fee                                                                                                                                     

108  Sundries $4.00 

109  Tailors $30.00  

110  Tanning Salon (Per Unit) $5.00  

111  Tattoo or Body Piercing (Per Emp) $100.00 

112  Taxicab (Per Vehicle) $30.00 

113  Telegraph Companies $50.00 

114  Tobacco Leaf Dealers $50.00  

115  Tobacco Warehouses $50.00  

116  Undertakers & Coffin Retailers $50.00  

117  Upholstery Shops $20.00  

118  Video Games (Each) $5.00  

119  Video Rental $25.00  

120  Wholesale Auto, Equipment/Supplies $37.50 

 121  Wholesale Dealers $100.00  

122  Wine On Premises $15.00  

123  Wine Off Premises $10.00  

124  Wood & Coal Dealer – Retail $50.00 

125  Wood & Coal Dealer – Wholesale $150.00 

126  Wood Dealers $20.00  

127  Wrestling & Boxing $100.00 

128  Fish & Oyster Dealer – Retail $50.00  

129  Florist $30.00  

 

Regional Water 

 Bacteria Analysis (Contractors) $50.00 

 Bacteria Analysis (Partners) $35.00 

 Potable Water (Used Rate) $2,008.00 

 Potable Water (Fixed Rate) $1,284.00 

 

Sanitation 

 Sanitation Charge – Monthly      

   1 Pickup per week per dwelling (includes one 96 gallon roll-out) $29.00 

   Additional 96 gallon roll-out container $3.87 

  2 Pickups per week per business $52.00 

  3 Pickups per week per business $78.00 

  4 Pickups per week per business $104.00 

  5 Pickups per week per business $130.00 

 Roll-out Container Replacement Fee $75.00 

 Large Trash Collection Fee $75.00 per hr (min. $75.00) 

 Appliance Collection Fee $15.00 per item 

 Commercial Recycle Monthly (ABC License only)  

  Weekly pickup $30.00 

 Construction Materials $350.00 per hr (min. $350.00)  

 Landfill Fee (Business Customers only) $5.50 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 30  

 

 

 

Sewer Collection 

 Sewer Rates
2
 

  10,000 cubic ft or less (inside city) $13.74 minimum plus $4.89 per 100 cu. ft., plus 

For the next utilization tier 

  Over 10,000 cubic ft (inside city) $3.50 per 100 cu. ft. 

 

  10,000 cubic ft or less (outside city) $34.34 minimum plus $12.24 per 100 cu. ft., plus 

For the next utilization tier 

  Over 10,000 cubic ft (outside city) $8.80 per cu. ft. 

 Sewer Taps 

  4” Sewer Tap $1,000 

  6” Sewer Tap (within manhole) $1,200 

  Above 6” Sewer Tap Actual cost of labor, equipment &  

    material plus 10% 

 Capacity Usage Fee $0.80/gallon 

    (gallons determined by type of establishment) 

 Rentals 

  Jet Vac Machine $300.00 per hour 

 

Sewer Collection I&I 

 Rentals 

  TV Camera Truck $200.00 per hour 

 

Street 

  Street Cuts     

  Asphalt Street (20’0” wide) $150.00 

  Concrete Base Street (more than 4”) $350.00 

  Concrete Base Street (less than 4”) $320.00 

  Unpaved Street $100.00 

 Sidewalk Cuts 

  Concrete Sidewalk (except Garnett St. from Spring St. to Church St.) $100.00 

  Garnett Street (from Church St. to Spring St.) $150.00 

  Curb and Gutter Cut (3 ft. minimum charge)  $15.00/ft  

 Encroachment Fee $20.00 

 

Water Distribution 

 Water Rates 

  0 – 499 cubic ft. (minimum fee – inside city) $10.42, plus 

  500 – 4,000 cubic ft. (additional fee - inside city) $2.36 per 100 cubic ft., plus 

  Consumption exceeding 1
st
 4,000 cubic ft. (additional fee - inside city) $1.78 per 100 cubic ft. 

 

  0 – 499 cubic ft. (minimum fee - outside city) $26.06, plus 

  500 – 4,000 cubic ft. (additional fee - outside city) $5.90 per 100 cubic ft., plus 

  Consumption exceeding 1
st
 4,000 cubic ft. (additional fee - outside city) $4.45 per 100 cubic ft. 

  

 Large Quantity Water Rates 

  First 100,000 cubic ft. (inside city) minimum of $10.42 plus $1.34 per 100 cubic ft., plus 

  Consumption exceeding 100,000 cubic ft. (inside city) $1.07 per 100 cubic ft. 

  First 100,000 cubic ft. (outside city) minimum of $26.06 plus $3.30 per 100 cubic ft., plus 

  Consumption exceeding 100,000 cubic ft. (outside city) $2.66 per 100 cubic ft. 

                                                 
2
 CF = Cubic Feet of water consumed or sewer metered through a sewer measuring device. 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 31  

 

  

 Water Taps 

  ¾” Water Tap $1,235.00 

  1” Water Tap $1,340.00 

  1” Water Tap w/ two ¾” Branch Meters $1,590.00 

  Above 1” Taps Actual cost of labor, equipment & materials plus 10% 

 

 Bulk Water  

  Inside Rate $8.24 service connection (includes first 500 gallons) 

     .007/gallons for any amount over 500 

  Outside Rate $14.27 service connection (includes first 500 gallons) 

     .010/gallon for any amount over 500 

 Capacity Usage Fee $0.52/gallon (gallons are determined by  

    type of establishment) 

 Set Meter Fee  

   ¾” Taps already in place $300.00 

 1” Taps already in place $400.00 

 Fire Protection Sprinkler Fee based on sq. footage 

 Fire Hydrant Meter Deposit Fee (95% refundable if returned in good condition) $1,000.00 

 
 Fire Hydrant – Category A 

  Inside Rate - charge for floor space w/only a private fire line & fire hydrants(s) - no inside sprinkler 

   Per 10,000 sq. feet - Minimum (A1) $2.93 

   300,000 – 1,000,000 sq. feet (A1 + A2) $1.61 

   1,000,000 sq. feet and above (A1 + A2 + A3) $0.70 

  Outside Rate - charge for floor space w/only a private fire line & fire hydrants(s) - no inside 

sprinkler 

   Per 10,000 sq. feet - Minimum (B1) $5.98 

   300,000 – 1,000,000 sq. feet (B1 +B2) $3.24 

   1,000,000 sq. feet and above (B1 + B2 + B3) $2.27 

 Fire Hydrant – Category B 

  Inside Rate - charge for floor space protected w/ fire line, fire hydrant(s) and inside sprinkler 

   Per 10,000 sq. feet - Minimum (A1) $5.36 

   300,000 – 1,000,000 sq. feet (A1 + A2) $2.23 

   1,000,000 sq. feet and above (A1 + A2 + A3) $1.16 

 Outside Rate - charge for floor space protected w/ fire line, fire hydrant(s) and inside sprinkler    Per 10,000 sq. feet - Minimum (B1) $10.95 

   300,000 – 1,000,000 sq. feet (B1 + B2) $4.45 

   1,000,000 sq. feet and above (B1 + B2 + B3) $2.23 

 Fire Hydrant – Category C 

  Inside Rate - charge for floor space w/ fire hydrant(s) and inside sprinkler 

   Per 10,000 sq. feet - Minimum (A1) $8.29 

   300,000 – 1,000,000 sq. feet (A1 + A2) $3.84 

   1,000,000 sq. feet and above (A1 + A2 + A3) $1.81 

  Outside Rate - charge for floor space w/ fire hydrant(s) and inside sprinkler 

  Per 10,000 sq. feet - Minimum (B1) $16.93 

   300,000 – 1,000,000 sq. feet (B1 + B2) $7.71 

   1,000,000 sq. feet and above (B1 + B2 + B3) $4.49 

 Fire Hydrant – Subdivision outside of City limits (to be charged per lot when service is made) $1.76 

 

Water Distribution/Sewer Collection 

 Utility Reconnection Fee $13.00 

 Account Set-up Fee $20.00 

 Late Payment Penalty $12.00 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 32  

 

 

 Meter Tampering Fee $200.00 

 Rental Fees (Add Personnel/Supervision/Materials fees below to rental fee) 

  Pickup Trucks (3/4 and 1 Ton) $25.00 per hour 

  Backhoe $60.00 per hour 

  Dump Truck $40.00 per hour 

  Tamp. Concrete Saw $20.00 per hour 

  Air Compressor $20.00 per hour 

  Personnel Employee wage plus 10% 

  Supervision Charge $100.00 per hour 

  Materials Material Cost plus 10% 

 

Water Reclamation 

 Sewer Surcharges 

  Biochemical Oxygen Demand $0.1941 lb. 

  Chemical Oxygen Demand $0.0968 lb. 

  Total Suspended Solids $0.0989 lb. 

  Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen $1.4845 lb.   Total Phosphorus $2.8697 lb. 

 Sampling Fee $9.06 to $62.63 

 Priority Pollutant Scan – Sampling Fees $1,661.04 

 Mercury Clean Sampling Fee $377.52 

 Compliance Inspection – Pretreatment $754.98 

 Toxicity: Mini Chronic/Full Range $490.73 - $1,094.79 

 Permit Fee for Discharge (based on gallons per day) $305.95 – $758.49 

 Permit Fee for Discharge of Groundwater Remediation Project $605.52 

 FOG Compliance Inspection and Monitoring $7.64 per mo. 

 FOG Permit Fee $153.00 

 

Recreation  

  

 Registration Fees – Youth  

  Youth Athletics Registration Fee (County Resident) 

   Football, Volleyball, Soccer & Basketball $25.00 

  Youth Athletics Registration Fee (Non-Resident) 

   Football, Volleyball, Soccer & Basketball $45.00 

  Babe Ruth Baseball & Softball $30.00 

  All Star $20.00 

 

 Youth Sponsorship Fees  

  T-Ball League Baseball $550.00 

  Rookie League Baseball $750.00 

  Cal Ripken League Minor Baseball  $350.00 

  Cal Ripken League Major Baseball $375.00 

  Babe Ruth League Baseball $400.00 

  Babe Ruth League 8-Under Softball $750.00 

  Babe Ruth League 10-Under Softball $350.00 

  Babe Ruth League 12-Under Softball $350.00 

  Babe Ruth League 16-Under Softball $350.00 

  Youth Basketball, Soccer & Volleyball $250.00 

 

 Recreation Insurance $10.00 

 

 Registration Fees - Adult  

  Team Registration Fee (Non-County Resident – add $10.00 per person to fees below) 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 33  

 

   Industrial League Basketball, Softball $420.00 

   Open League Basketball $420.00 

   Women’s Open Softball $300.00 

   Men’s Open Softball $420.00 

 

 Rentals (See Rentals – For- Profit or Rentals – Non-Profit also) 

  Batting Cage per hour (County) $10.00 

  Batting Cage per hour (Non-County) $15.00 

  Aycock Ballfield per field per hour  (County) $10.00 

  Aycock Ballfield per field – lighted per hour (County) $20.00 

  All other Ballfields per field per hour (County) $10.00 

  All other Ballfields per field – lighted per hour (County) $15.00 

  Aycock Ballfield per field per hour (Non-County) $20.00 

  Aycock Ballfield per field – lighted per hour (Non-County) $40.00 

  All other Ballfields per field per hour (Non-County) $20.00 

  All other Ballfields per field – lighted per hour (Non-County) $30.00 

  Ballfield Weekend (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (County) $200.00 

  Ballfield Weekend (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (Non-County) $350.00 

 

 Rentals – Non-Profit 

  Aycock Ballfield per field per hour  (County) $10.00 

  Aycock Ballfield per field – lighted per hour (County) $20.00 

  Aycock Ballfield  one day / all four fields (County) $200.00 

  All other Ballfields per field per hour (County) $10.00 

  All other Ballfields per field – lighted per hour (County) $15.00 

  Ballfield Weekend (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (County) $500.00 

  Lights per field per hour (County) $20.00 

  Old Aycock Gym per hour (County) $30.00 

  Aycock Ballfield per field per hour (Non-County) $20.00 

  Aycock Ballfield per field – lighted per hour (Non-County) $40.00 

  Aycock Ballfield one day / all four fields (Non-County) $350.00 

  All other Ballfields per field per hour (Non-County) $20.00 

 

 Rentals – Non-Profit (Con’t) 

  All other Ballfields per field – lighted per hour (Non-County) $30.00 

  Ballfield Weekend (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (Non-County) $750.00 

  Lights per field per hour (Non-County) $30.00 

  Old Aycock Gym per hour (Non-County) $45.00 

 

 Rentals – For Profit 

  Aycock Ballfield – per field per hour (County) $20.00 

  All other Ballfields per hour (County) $15.00 

  Aycock Ballfield – per field – lighted per hour (County) $30.00 

  All other Ballfields – lighted per hour (County) $20.00  

  Aycock one day / all four fields (County) $300.00 

  Old Aycock Gym per hour - 2 hour minimum (County) $50.00 

  Aycock one day / all four fields (Non-County) $500.00  

  Aycock Weekend / all four fields (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (County). $650.00 

  Aycock Ballfield per field per hour (Non-County) $30.00 

  All other Ballfields per hour (Non-County) $25.00 

  Aycock Ballfield – per field – lighted per hour (Non-County) $40.00 

  All other Ballfields – lighted per hour (Non-County) $30.00 

  Aycock Weekend / all four fields (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (Non- County) $800.00 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 34  

 

 

  Old Aycock Gym per hour – 2 hour 

minimum (Non-County) $75.00 

  Lights per field per hour  $25.00 

 

 Additional Services 

  Drag/Mark fields between each game per field (County) $20.00 

  Drag/Mark fields after 2 games per field (County) $15.00 

  Drag/Mark fields halfway through each day per field (County) $10.00 

  Supply ice water in coolers w/cups per dugout per game (County) $10.00 

  Drag/Mark fields between each game per field (Non-County) $30.00 

  Drag/Mark fields after 2 games per field (Non-County) $25.00 

  Drag/Mark fields halfway through each day per field (Non-County) $20.00 

  Supply ice water in coolers w/cups per dugout per game (Non-County) $15.00 

 

 Henderson Rec Players Tickets $7.00 

 

 Special Events (Athletic) 

  District Tournament Daily Pass for Students $2.00 

  District Tournament Daily Pass for Adults $4.00 

  District Tournament Pass for entire Tournament $10.00 

  State Tournament Daily Pass for Students $2.00 

  State Tournament Daily Pass for Adults $5.00 

  State Tournament Pass for Entire Tournament $15.00 

  Athletic Event Daily Pass $3.00 

  Athletic Event Tournament Pass $6.00 

 

 Special Events (Non-Athletic) not to exceed $8.00 

 

 Aycock Center 

  

  Rental 

   Aquatics –  

   Pool Non-Profit - County (per hour) $70.00 

   Pool Non-Profit – Non-County (per hour)  $75.00 

   Pool For-Profit – County (per hour) $125.00 

   Pool For Profit – Non-County (per hour) $175.00 

   Swim Teams & Clubs – Private County (per lane, per hour) $6.00 

   Swim Teams & Clubs – Private Non-County (per lane, per hour) $12.00 

   Swim Teams & Clubs – County (per lane/per hour) $0.00 

   Swim Teams & Clubs – Non-County (per lane, per hour) $9.00 

   Swim Lessons  $5.00 

   Water Aerobics (per class – 5 per week) $2.00 

 

  Gymnasium 

   Aycock Recreation Complex Non-Profit per hour – County $70.00 

   Aycock Recreation Complex Non-Profit per hour – Non-County $85.00 

   Aycock Recreation Complex - Non-Profit Private Team - County (per practice/game) $22.00 

   Aycock Recreation Complex - Non-Profit Private Team – Non-County (per practice/game) N/A 

   

   Aycock Recreation Complex For- Profit per hour – County $100.00 

   Aycock Recreation Complex For-Profit per hour – Non-County $150.00 

   Multi-purpose Room Non-Profit per hour – County $70.00 

   Multi-purpose Room Non-Profit per hour – Non-County $75.00 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 35  

 

   Multi-purpose Room For-Profit per hour – County $125.00 

   Multi-purpose Room For-Profit per hour – Non-County $175.00 

 

  Fees 

   Aycock Recreation Center  

 
   Resident – Daily 

    Adult Single Admission $5.00 

    Teen 18 and under $2.00 

    Senior 55 and over $2.00 

   Resident – Monthly 

    Adult Single Admission $30.00 

    18 and under $25.00 

    Senior 55 and over $25.00 

    Non-Resident – Daily  

    Adult Single Admission $10.00 

    18 and under $5.00 

    Senior 55 and over $5.00 

   Non-Resident – Monthly 

    Adult Single Admission $50.00 

    18 and Under $45.00 

    Senior 55 and Over $45.00 

   Resident Family Pass – Monthly 

    Family Pass $35.00 

    Seniors 55 and Over $25.00 

   Non-Resident Family Pass – Monthly 

    Family $65.00 

    Seniors 55 and Over $50.00 

   City/County/State Employee – Monthly 

    Family Pass $17.00 

    Adult $15.00 

    Senior 55 and Over $12.00 

  

Classes/Programs 

   Preschool per class $3.00 

   Walking Program per month (Adult/Senior) $15.00 

   Swim Group $2.00 

 

  Camps 

   Summer Day Camp – per week (8-11 year olds) $30.00 

   Swim Camp $10.00 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 36  

 

 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 

14-42 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING  

THE MAY 2014 POSITION AND CLASSIFICATION & PAY PLAN 

FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSON 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted its Annual Strategic Planning Retreat (Retreat) 

on 19 and 20 February 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one (1) Core Value and one (1) Key Strategic 

Objective as follows:  Core Value 8: Values Employees:  We value our employees 

and the contributions they make to the City and to the citizens and customers of 

our community; and Key Strategic Objective 6: Develop and Maintain a Qualified 

Municipal Workforce,  To provide a supportive and competitive workforce 

climate that facilitates and maintains a strong workforce capability and capacity 

and adequate staffing levels; Action Plan 6-1, Pay Classification Study; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to North Carolina Statues and the Code of the City of Henderson, 

Section 2-23,  the City of Henderson is an employment “At Will” organization; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, a formal, comprehensive Classification and Pay Plan was last conducted for 

the City in 1993, and therefore out-of-date and no longer competitive with peer 

communities; and 

 

WHEREAS, funding was appropriated by the City Council in the FY14 Budget for 

conducting an up-to-date Classification and Pay Study (Study); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City utilized The MAPS Group through a contract with the North 

Carolina League of Municipalities to conduct the Study; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Study was presented to the City Council at its regular meeting held on 

12 May 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Study includes an overall Personnel Policy review and update; however, 

said Personnel Policy amendments will be presented to Council later this summer 

for approval once they have been completely formatted; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Recommended FY14-15 Budget includes funding for Phase 1 of a Five 

(5) Year implementation plan to adopt and utilize the Position Classification and 

Pay Plan recommended by The MAPS Group; and 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 37  

 

 

WHEREAS, during its budget work sessions, the City Council has voiced strong support 

for the adoption of the recommended May 2014 Position Classification and Pay 

Plan and Phase 1 implementation of same as part of its 22 May 2014 Consensus 

Budget. 

 

NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL 

THAT IT DOES HEREBY REVOKE the Classification and Pay Plan currently 

in use AND APPROVES the May 2014 Classification and Pay Plan for the City 

of Henderson performed by The MAPS Group,   said complete Classification and 

Pay Plan (Plan) being on permanent file in the Office of the City Clerk and in the 

City’s Official Records Vault; however, a more complete summary of said Plan is 

provided as Attachment A to this Resolution. 

 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL 

THAT the City Manager and his designees are authorized to implement the May 

2014 Position Classification and Pay Plan in a manner consistent with the 

Personnel Policy, Position Classification and Pay Plan recommendations and 

within budgetary appropriations. 

 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL 

THAT this Resolution shall become effective on 1 July 2014. 

  

The foregoing Resolution, introduced by Councilmember **** and seconded by 

Councilmember ***** on this the **** day of June 2014, and having been submitted to a 

roll call vote, was approved by the following votes: YES:  NO:  ABSTAIN:  ABSENT: 
___________________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

Approved to Legal Form: 

 

________________________________ 

John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 

 
Reference:  Minute Book 43, p ** 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 38  

 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 39  

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 40  

 

 
 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 41  

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 42  

 

 
 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 43  

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 44  

 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 45  

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 46  

 

 
 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 47  

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 48  

 

 
 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 49  

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 50  

 

 

 

19 May 2014 

 

TO: The Honorable James D. “Pete” O’Geary and Members of the City Council 

 

FR: Ray Griffin, City Manager 

 

RE:   CAF:  14—62  

 Presentation and Consideration of the FY 14-15 Work Budget 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

 

In accordance with the Henderson City Charter and the Statutes of the State of 

North Carolina, the FY 14—15 Work Budget is herewith submitted to the City Council 

for its review, deliberation, amendments and adjustments as deemed appropriate, and 

adoption prior to 1 July.  The City Administration looks forward to working with the 

Mayor and members of City Council on the Budget during the next several weeks, and 

helping it achieve a spending plan which addresses the needs and aspirations of both the 

community and municipal organization. 

 

OVERVIEW 

 

 I am honored to work with a progressive, forward thinking Council and 

organization.  The Strategic Plan continues to help focus the priorities of the City in order 

to address critical issues and opportunities.  The challenges facing the City are legion as 

are the opportunities for growth and prosperity.  While, during difficult times, it is easier 

to see the “glass as half-empty,” it is critical for City and community leadership to work 

hard towards focusing on the “glass as half-full” mind-set,  and to help focus on 

achieving the objectives and goals of the Strategic Plan.  

 

 The annual budget is arguably the single most important policy document that the 

City Council will deliberate and adopt in any given fiscal year.  The second most 

important policy document is the annual Strategic Plan.  When aligned, both combine to 

form a powerful public policy focus in providing guidance and focus for the community 

and City forward as it addresses critical Key Strategic Objectives and operational needs 

and initiatives.  To that end, the Work Budget has considered the Strategic Plan as a 

major guide in developing the budget and identifying critical gaps in funding.  

 

While all aspects of the budget help to support the Strategic Plan in one form or 

another, I would like to highlight several Strategic Initiatives vis-à-vis the Recommended 

Budget: 

 

1. KSO 4: Improve Housing Stock:  Minimal funding of $48,300 is provided to 

continue demolition of dilapidated, abandoned structures.  This will allow for 

demolition and disposal of about 9 structures. 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 51  

 

 

 

2. KSO 5: Reliable Infrastructure:  Significant funding in the amount of $2,383,300 

for continued contributions to the water and sewer plants’ capital reserve plans is 

provided, as appropriate, in the Water, Sewer and Regional Water funds.   

 

3. KSO 6: Retain Qualified Municipal Workforce: Initial funding of about $117,000 

is provided to begin Phase 1 of a 5-Year financing plan to implement the new 

Classification and Pay Study’s recommendations as a means to begin addressing 

the City’s 22.67% average compensation lag in the marketplace. 

 

 State law requires localities adopt and operate within a balanced budget at all 

times. To that end, revenues have been projected in a conservative manner and 

expenditures have been developed from a very constrained perspective.  Recurring 

expenses have not been ‘balanced’ by using non-recurring revenue sources, such as 

undesignated fund balance.  Unlike the Federal government,  the operating budget is not 

capitalized. Many justified and warranted initiatives and needs, both capital and 

operating, have not been recommended for funding due to very limited resources. Thus, a 

relatively austere, albeit balanced budget has been produced for Council’s review, 

consideration and adoption as it deems appropriate. 

  

The Department Directors were requested to develop conservative, constrained 

operating budgets for FY15.  I was very impressed with the manner in which their 

budgets were developed and requests for funding were indeed constrained given the 

significant amount of need existing for incremental replacement of the fleet and 

equipment, building maintenance, information technology updating, staff expansion and 

compensation, and budgetary needs in day-to-day operating expenses.  Unfortunately, 

natural growth revenues are not keeping up the budgetary needs of the City, thus the ever 

widening gap between available resources and critical un-met needs. 

 

TOTAL BUDGET 

 

The total City budget is comprised of four (4) primary, operating funds and 

numerous smaller, specialty funds.  The primary funds include General, Water, 

Wastewater and Regional Water System.  The smaller supporting funds include Powell 

Bill and the Capital Reserve funds.  Many of the smaller funds are transferred to or from 

the four primary funds and thus become inter-fund transfers. 

 

The total recommended budget, adjusted for inter-fund transfers, is $37,053,200. 

The total budget is balanced with serious belt tightening efforts, utility rate increases in 

the Water, Sewer and Regional Water funds; however, there is no recommended increase 

in the property tax and sanitation fee.  The reader is directed to review the individual 

Budget Summary sections for each fund for additional information. The estimated 

impacts of these recommended increases are described in the following table: 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 52  

 

 

 

FY14 FY15
Monthly 

Increase

Annual 

Increase

Inside City 

Property Tax: No 

Increase
0.62$            0.62$             NA NA

Sanitation Fee : No 

Increase
29.00$           29.00$           NA NA

Water Rate increase of 

5% based on customer 

using 800 cubic feet of 

water per month.

13.70$           14.39$           0.69$                    8.28$                

Sewer Rate  increase of 

3% based on customer 

using 800 cubic feet of 

water per month

34.15$           35.80$           1.65$                    19.80$               

2.34$              28.08$               

Outside City

Water Rate increase of 

5% based on customer 

using 800 cubic feet of 

water per month.

41.84$           43.08$           1.24$                    14.88$               

Sewer Rate  increase of 

3% based on customer 

using 800 cubic feet of 

water per month

104.61$         107.77$         3.16$                    37.92$               

4.40$              52.80$               

Total Impacts

Total Impacts

Impacts on Residential Customers

FY15 Recommended Budget

Notes:  1) 800 cubic feet of water = 5,984 gallons of water.  1 cubic foot 

of water = 7.4805 gallons of water. 5 May 2014, rg  
 

GENERAL FUND 

 

The General Fund is arguably the most difficult fund to balance because it is the 

workhorse fund of municipal operations. It is the least able to pay for services it must 

provide due to the manner in which general fund revenues are legislatively structured and 

authorized. It is heavily dependent on the archaic property tax, sanitation fee, State Inter-

Governmental Revenues such as Sales Taxes, Utility Franchise Taxes and Powell Bill, as 

well as Inter-Fund transfers from the enterprise funds for cost allocation.  The 

recommended General Fund budget is $15,196,000.   This is $104,000 less than the FY14 

approved budget beginning 1 July 2013. 

 

Without a doubt, the FY15 General Fund budget does not begin to meet either the 

current or future business needs of the municipal organization and the services it must 

provide.  Even in the best of times, a municipal budget cannot possibly meet all of the 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 53  

 

needs and expectations of its citizens and/or departments.  A budget crafted in the midst 

of continuing austerity surely cannot meet such needs and desires.  

 

The City’s General Fund budget has trailed the inflation rate from 2003-2009; 

however, in the post Great Recession year of FY09, the gap between what budget growth 

would be if it kept up with inflation has seriously lagged.  This gap, as evidenced by 

information presented in Figure 7.3-10 E14c, General Fund Base Budget Year FY03 as 

Basis for Continuous Growth Based on CPI, copied below. Put simply, the General 

Fund’s inability to reasonably keep up with inflation, as was the case prior to FY09 is 

resulting in less dollars for critical issues such as infrastructure maintenance via street 

resurfacing and storm drainage, vehicle and equipment replacement in a timely manner, 

competitive compensation for employees and expansion projects that might add to the 

quality of life, such as recreation, downtown economic development and community 

appearance. 

 

 $12,500

 $13,500

 $14,500

 $15,500

 $16,500

 $17,500

 $18,500

 $19,500

03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

in
 M

ill
io

n
s 

o
f 

D
o

lla
rs

The General Fund  has not kept pace with inflation, except for the Great Recession year 
of FY09.  The gap  between keeping up with inflation has widened significantly since 

FY09, thus severely restricting funding for services.

General Fund Base Budget Year FY03 
as Basis for Continuous Growth Based on CPI

Fig. 7.3-10 E14c
3 May 2014

Base Budget Actual Base Adjusted by CPI

 
 

General Fund Revenues 

 

The current year property tax, both real and personal, is the single largest revenue 

source for the fund and comprises 38% of the total projected revenues.  The sales tax, an 

extremely volatile revenue source which is totally dependent on the strength of the 

economy comprises 15% of the fund’s budget and the Sanitation Fee, comprises 12%.  

Thus, 65% of the fund’s revenue sources come from only three major sources.  Of these 

three sources, only two are controlled by City Council—property taxes and sanitation fee, 

and the other source, sales taxes, is under the control of the State.  

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 54  

 

 

Current Year 
Property Tax,  

$5,700,000 , 38%

Sales Taxes,  
$2,331,000 , 15%

Inter-governmental 
(Federal & State),  
$1,356,600 , 9%

Sanitation Fee,  
$1,830,000 , 12%

Police Asset 
Forfeiture,  

$325,000 , 2%

Transfers In: Cost 
Allocation,  

$989,100 , 7%

Undesignated Fund 
Balance,  $- , 0%

From Vance County-
Recreation,  

$819,800 , 5%

All Other Revenues ,  
$1,844,500 , 12%

General Fund Major Revenue Sources
FY15 Recommended Budget

Fig. 7.3-10 R 15
14 May 2014

54

56

58

60

62

64

66

68

FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

. Revaluation .

T
ax

 R
at

e 
in

 c
en

ts

The FY14 property tax is 62 cents per $100 valuation of real and personal property.  The FY15 Tax 

rate is not recommended for increase.  

Property Tax Rate Trend Analysis
FY15 Recommended Budget

Fig. 7.3-10   R2
29 April 2014

Approved by Council Recommended by Manager Current Rate

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 The tax rate has been fairly stable over the past number of years.  The rate was 

reduced in FY08 year from 67 cents to 56.6 cents as a result of reevaluation.  The rate 

increased 2 cents in FY10 and 3.5 cents in FY14.  No increase is recommended for FY15.  

A penny on the tax rate is worth about $91,000. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 55  

 

 $60,000

 $65,000

 $70,000

 $75,000

 $80,000

 $85,000

 $90,000

 $95,000

FY99 FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

Reval . Loss of
Industry

. Reval . MPMC
Public

.

Reval = State required octennial revaluation of property. MPMC Public = Maria Parham 
Medical Center converted from a non-profit to a public for-profit entity in 2012, thus going on 

the property tax roles for the first time in FY13.  

Current Year Property Tax--Value of Penny Tax
Fig. 7.3-10 R1e

29 April 2014

Actual Estimated

 
 

 The 2014 property tax revenues are estimated to be $5,700,000.  This is slightly 

higher than the $5,677,900 budgeted for FY14.  Again, there is no recommended increase 

in the property tax rate for FY15. 

 

 $4,600,000

 $4,800,000

 $5,000,000

 $5,200,000

 $5,400,000

 $5,600,000

 $5,800,000

FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

Estimates for current year tax collections appear to be higher than budget 
estimate due to the new Tax and Tag prgram for motor vehicles. This revenue 

comprises 38% of the Fund's revenues.

Current Year Property Tax--Annual
Fig. 7.3-10 R3c

25 April 2014

Actual Budget Mid-Year Projection

 
 

It is instructive to note that the current year property tax does not even come close 

to financing basic public safety services.  The following graph reveals the recommended 

property tax rate of $0.62 cents will provide for 38% of the General Fund’s revenues, yet  



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 56  

 

 

 

public safety operating expenses require 47% of total fund expenditures.  There is a 

common misunderstanding among property tax payers that the property tax pays for all 

city services, when indeed it does not even generate enough revenue to pay for police, 

fire and emergency E-911 services. 

 

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

 $8,000,000

Public Safety Current Year Property Tax Revenues @
62 cents

Current Year Property Tax revenues do not even pay for the costs to pay for 
Police, Fire and E911 operations and capital.

Public Safety Costs v. Current Year Property Tax Revenues
Fig. 7.3-10 E2

30 April 2014

Police, $4,375M

Fire, $2,175M

E911, $565,100

$5,700 M

Total = $7,115M

 
 

The second largest revenue producer for the City’s General Fund is the local 

option sales tax.  This critical revenue source is extremely volatile and has not yet 

recovered to its pre-Recession levels.  Indeed, sales tax revenues are projected to decline 

due to the State phasing out its Hold-Harmless sales tax payments.  It is estimated this 

will cost the City $50,000 next year.  Natural growth in sales tax collections for the first 

eight months of FY14 is essentially flat, with collections just about $11,000 over budget 

estimate. Henderson and Vance County also find themselves competing for disposable 

income spending with the newer and more varied commercial retail centers in the 

Raleigh-Durham-Chapel Hill areas.  The FY15 Budget reflects a modest reduction with a 

revenue estimate of $2,331,000, down from $2,375,000 in FY14. 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 57  

 

$2,100,000

$2,150,000

$2,200,000

$2,250,000

$2,300,000

$2,350,000

$2,400,000

$2,450,000

$2,500,000

$2,550,000

$2,600,000

04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

Pre-Recession Recessionary Period Post Recession

Sales Taxes comprise the second largest revenue source in the Fund, comprising 
15% of all Fund revenues.

Sales Tax Receipts--Annual

Fig. 7.3-10 R4c

25 April 2014

Actual Budget Mid-Year Projection

 
 

The third largest revenue producer for the City’s General Fund is the sanitation 

fee. Each one dollar ($1.00) of the sanitation fee yields approximately $60,000 in 

revenues.  The current rate is $29.00 per month.  No increase is recommended in FY15. 

 

 $1,550,000

 $1,600,000

 $1,650,000

 $1,700,000

 $1,750,000

 $1,800,000

 $1,850,000

FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

The Sanitation Fee, currently at $29 per month, comprises 12% of Fund revenues and is the third 
largest revenue source.

Sanitation Fee-Annual
Fig. 7.3-10 R5c

30 April 2014

Actual Budget Mid-Year FY14 Projection

 
 

Often times City Administration is asked why the Sanitation Fee is so high.  The 

fee is used to support household collection of solid waste, now via the Waste Industries 

contract, curbside collection of yard debris, bulk debris, recycling and Fall leaf collection.  

It also supports the cost for any capital equipment needed to support the Sanitation 

services. Additionally, it has been a conscious decision of Council for many years to 

increase the sanitation fee in order to provide operating revenues in lieu of a property tax 

increase.  Consequently, a significant part of the monthly fee is used to support general 

services.  The property tax equivalent of the sanitation fee revenues of $1,830,000 is 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 58  

 

 

$0.20 cents.  Consequently, if the 

City did not levy sanitation fee, property taxes would have to be $0.82 cents instead of 

$0.62 cents. 

 

$29.00

$0.62 cents

$0.00

$0.82cents

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Sanitation Fee Property Tax Sanitation Fee Property Tax

With Fee and Property Tax With No Fee and Only Property Tax

D
o
ll

ar
s 

fo
r 

F
ee

 a
n
d
 

C
en

ts
 f

o
r 

P
ro

p
et

y
 T

ax

It would take an increase of 19.5 cents on the property tax rate to eliminate the monthly sanitation 

fee.

Comparison of Property Tax With and Without Sanitation Fee

Fig. 7.3-10 R5d
3 May 2014

 
 

 

Powell Bill funds, the State’s distribution of the gasoline sales tax to localities, is 

based on a locality’s lane miles and population.  The State gas tax revenues are dependent 

on increasing state-wide gasoline sales. Fuel efficiency in motor vehicles and the 

Recession have impacted gas sales and thus the amount of Powell Bill revenues which 

can be distributed to localities.  When constrained State gas tax revenues are combined 

with Henderson’s continued population decline and static road mileage growth, one 

begins to understand why this important revenue source is not growing in the City’s 

Budget.  In other words, the City’s allocation of the Powell Bill distributions is 

decreasing while cities and towns with growing populations and lane miles are 

increasing. Henderson’s share of Powell Bill Revenues have not recovered to pre-

Recession levels. 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 59  

 

 $420,000

 $440,000

 $460,000

 $480,000

 $500,000

 $520,000

 $540,000

 $560,000

 $580,000

03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
(M

o
re

 i
s 

B
et

te
r)

Powell Bill funding remains well below pre-Recession levels. Henderson's population is 
decreasing and no local road mileage is being added to the street system. 

Revenues:  Powell Bill Allocation

Fig. 7.3-11 R1
18 April 2014

Powell Bill Actual Projected Powell Bill

 
 

Undesignated Fund Balance 

 

The City’s undesignated fund balance is critical for two fundamental reasons.  First, it 

serves as a rainy day fund to provide one-time appropriations to assist with grant matches 

and one-time capital needs.  Secondly, and perhaps most importantly, it serves to provide 

enough cash in the bank for cash flow purposes during the fiscal year.   

 

The NC Local Government Commission (LGC) requires that localities maintain at 

least an 8% fund balance.  In 2005, Henderson’s undesignated fund balance decreased 

from $4.5M, or 41.3% in FY00 to $22,268, or 0.0016% in FY06. City Council, in 2006, 

adopted a fund balance growth policy in response to a LGC letter citing the City for 

falling underneath the acceptable threshold.   At the end of FY08, the fund balance had 

recovered to 13.8%, or $2.1M. According to the FY13 Audit, the unassigned 

(undesignated) fund balance had grown to $2,966,287, or 22.3% of budget.  The goal is 

to achieve 30% of budget in unassigned funds. No unassigned fund balance is 

recommended for appropriation in FY15.   

 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 60  

 

 

 

General Fund Expenditures 

 

The General Fund expenditures, on the other hand, are seriously limited from 

many years of constrained allocations resulting in insufficient funding for capital outlay 

and equipment, adequate staffing levels and compensation, and program expansion in 

needed areas including recreation services, library operating hours, more aggressive code 

enforcement, information technology and planning.   

 

 $11,500

 $12,000

 $12,500

 $13,000

 $13,500

 $14,000

 $14,500

 $15,000

 $15,500

03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 15

Approved Budget as  of 1 July CMR Council

$12,859 

$13,161 

$13,401 

$13,796 

$14,171 

$14,918 

$15,344 

$14,414 $14,477 
$14,599 

$14,884 

$15,300 
$15,196 

in
 m

ill
io

n
s 

o
f 

d
o

lla
rs

General Fund Expenditure Trend Analysis
Fig. 7.3-10 E14

1 May 2014

 

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

 $4,500,000

 $5,000,000

98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

The fund balance has attained approximately 20% of budget, well above the State's minimum 
requirement of 8%, but still not at the 30% target. Growth in the fund blance has been remarkable 

given its $22,268  level in FY05.

Unassigned General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance--Annual
Fig. 7.3-10 R19

30 April 2014

Actual Projected LGC Threshold-8% Target-30%



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 61  

 

There are no major new initiatives in the operations and very limited capital 

expenditures for the General Fund during FY15.  Of the 26 General Fund budget 

sections: 

 

 18 are budgeted for less money than allocated on 1 July 2013 for the FY14 

Budget.  These budget sections are:   

o 1) City Clerk & Governing Body, 2) City Attorney, 3) Administration, 

4) Code Compliance, 5) Debt Service, 6) Planning and Community 

Development, 7) Downtown Development, 8) Asset Forfeiture, 9) 

Information Technology, 10) Bennett Perry House, 11) Public Services 

Administration, 12) Garage, 13) Cemetery, 14) Streets, 15) Parks & 

Recreation, 16) Youth Services, 17) Aycock Recreation Center, and  

18) Local Agencies. 

 

 One (1) is budgeted for more money than allocated on 1 July 2013 for the 

FY14 Budget, but that is because of the transfer of the receptionist position 

from Administration to Human Resources.  If the transfer of the position from 

Administration had not been made, the Human Resources budget as well as 

the Administration would both be less than 1 July 2013 levels.  Thus 19 of 

the 26 budget sections are budgeted at less than was allocated by City 

Council for the 1 July 2013 FY14 Budget.  This budget section is: 

o 19) Human Resources. 

 

 One (1) is budgeted for exactly the same allocation as 1 July 2013 funding 
for the FY14 Budget.  This budget section is: 

o Public Buildings. 

 

 Six (6) are budgeted more money than was allocated on 1 July 2013 for 

the FY14 Budget.  These budget sections are: 

o  Finance—funding was provided for unfreezing the Assistant Finance 

Director position and funding two actuarial studies required by law on 

an every-other-year basis, therefore such funding was not provided in 

the FY14 Budget. 

o Police—funding was provided for the purchase of three (3) vehicles, 

otherwise, the operating budget is less than appropriated on 1 July 

2013. 

o Fire—funding was provided for the purchase of two (2) vehicles, 

otherwise, the operating budget is less than appropriated on 1 July 

2013. 

o Sanitation—the annual increase in the cost for household sanitation 

services has increased, thus making the budget larger than last year.  

o Non-Departmental—funding was provided for Phase 1 of the 

Classification and Pay Study implementation, otherwise this budget 

would have been less than FY14 levels. 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 62  

 

 

 

 

o Joint Programs—this is larger than last year due to increased funding 

for tax and E-911 services.  The City is bound by contract to pay the 

County for its share of these ‘contracted’ services. 

 

It is often said local government must also tighten its belt when financial times are 

difficult.  No one would disagree with this sentiment; however, one must realize the City 

of Henderson has been tightening its belt since the late 1990s as this protracted and 

exasperating period of austerity continues. The total workforce has been reduced by 

about 42 positions since FY01, and spending in the fund has seriously lagged inflation 

since FY09, thus eliminating flexibility within departmental operations and funding for 

needed capital expenses and employee compensation.  Despite these reductions in 

spending and/or holding the line on other expenses, the City faces increases in the items it 

procures in order to provide services.  For example, increased costs for materials and 

supplies, increased costs for asphalt and concrete, chemicals, electricity, fluctuations in 

the prices of motor fuels and natural gas, etc.; all serve to impact the bottom line. 

 

While the General Fund operating budgets are very tight, there are several areas 

of impact which should be mentioned as follows: 

 

 Street resurfacing budget is only $40,000.   

 Storm drainage improvements budget is only $35,000. 

 Public buildings’ maintenance is basically zero.  There is no funding for 

the Bennett Perry House, Old National Bank Building, Old City 

Hall/Police Station attached to and part of the historic Fire Station on 

Garnett and Young Streets.  Additionally, there are no funds for the 

painting of City Hall’s now faded mansard roof and interior walls which 

are now showing six (6) years of wear and tear. It is probably time for the 

City to have a discussion on the efficacy of keeping the Bennett Perry 

House and the significant cost issues surrounding its renovation vis-à-vis 

priority for other municipal buildings. 

 Demolition funding for abandoned structures and codes compliance is 

funded at $48,300, well below any figure that could meaningfully reduce 

the backlog of 14 structures already condemned for demolition and with 

an estimated cost of $90,500.  Additionally, 15 more units will be brought 

before Council by Fall, adding another $70,000 funding gap.  Beyond 

these 29 structures, 260 lie in wait for the condemnation process to begin.  

It is estimated the cost to remove all 289 abandoned structures would be 

about $1,250,500.  

 Reduction-in-Force of two (2) full-time and four (4) part-time positions as 

follows: 

o Main Street Director, full-time—essentially closing out this 

operation except for the $10,000 annual contribution to the DDC.  



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 63  

 

Human Resources will work with this individual to find 

employment elsewhere within the City. 

o Police Office Assistant, full-time—civilian position which is 

currently vacant. 

o Four (4) School Crossing Guards.   

 Classification and Pay Plan-Phase 1 Implementation, $65,000, is 

recommended. 

 

While the aforereferenced budget data are sobering, there are a couple of bright 

spots in terms of expenditures and revenues. 

 

 Health insurance premiums will be reduced between 6% and 10%, thus adding 

some relief to the budget balancing. Negotiations with Blue Cross/Blue Shield 

are on-going. 

 The State’s Tax and Tag program is generating about $150,000 to $200,000 

more property tax revenues than received last year.  This accrued to the 

budget balancing and eliminated the need to use any of the undesignated fund 

balance. 

 

REGIONAL WATER FUND 

 

 The Regional Water Fund provides resources for the operations at the Kerr Lake 

Regional Water Treatment Facility.  Constructed in the early 1970s, this facility provides 

water to Henderson, Warren County and Oxford.  Henderson is the majority owner and 

managing partner, 60%, with Warren County and Oxford each having a 20% interest.  

The current capacity of the facility is 10 MGD; however, plans are underway to expand 

the facility to 20 MGD.  Funding for consulting engineers was provided in FY09 to assist 

the City in pursuing the expansion of its Inter-basin Transfer (IBT) of water from 10 

MGD to 20 MGD.  It is expected this project will be “put-to-bid” in late 2015 or early 

2016. 

 

 The regional partners sell water at retail to their own customers and other 

governmental entities.  Henderson currently sells water to the Kittrell Water Association, 

Franklin County as well as residential, business and industrial customers.  Additionally, 

the City has water sales contracts with Vance County and Granville County. 

 

 Regional water sales have decreased over the past 18 months, and this trend is 

expected to continue.  It is expected water volume sales will decrease another 4.1% in 

FY15 over FY14 levels.  Overall, water sales are expected to drop by 9.6% since FY12.  

This, of course, means lower revenues for the Regional Water Plant and capital reserves. 

 

 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 64  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 2,100.000

 2,150.000

 2,200.000

 2,250.000

 2,300.000

 2,350.000

FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

M
ill

io
n

 G
al

lo
n

s 
p

er
 Y

ea
r

Total water volume sales have decreased for the second year in a row, and are predicted to decline during 
FY15.  Overall, water volume sales are down about 9.6% since the last high year of FY12.

KLRWS: Total Water Volume Sold by Year
Fig. 7.3-64 R3c

Last Updated: 30 March 2014

Actual FY14 Mid-Year Projection Budget

 
 

 Given the reduction in sales of water and in order to meet its operational needs 

and provide adequate funding for capital reserves established for the planned expansion 

of the facility, the Regional Water Fund must increase its water rates by 5%, effective 1 

July 2014.   Each percent increase results in about $39,000. This will result in an 

additional $195,000 in revenues that will continue to provide for needed capital reserves. 

 

Water rate increases can be expected annually until sufficient funds are provided 

for the water plant’s expansion project.  A trend analysis of rate increases is provided in 

the following chart: 

 

0

3

6

9

12

15

05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

P
er

ce
n

t 
o

f 
In

cr
ea

se

The FY15 rate is recommended for 5% increase and is needed to offset 

significantly reduced water sales to the three Regional Partners.

Regional Water Consumption Rate Increases

Fig. 7.3-64 R15
30 March 2014

Approved Increases

Projected Increases

 
 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 65  

 

The Regional Water System Fund is estimated to be $4,319,000 as compared to 

$4,430,000 approved for FY14.  99% of its revenues are generated from the sale of water 

to Henderson, Oxford and Warren County.  18% of its expenditures are dedicated for 

debt service and 19% for capital reserve.  Personnel expenses make up 16% of total 

budget. 

WATER FUND 

 

 The Water Fund provides for the distribution of potable water to the City’s 8,800 

customers and its three governmental customers of Kittrell Water Association, Franklin 

County and Vance County.  Vance County Phase 1A is now on-line and it is expected 

Phases 2A&B will be on-line in the third or fourth quarter of FY15.  The Water Fund is 

estimated to be $7,167,000.   

 

78% of Water Fund revenues are derived from the sale of water to retail 

customers and wholesale governmental customers of Kittrell Water Association and 

Franklin County.  Water reservation fees from Granville and Vance counties make up 

14% of revenues.  Water sales are down, and is part of the overall driver for the reduced 

water sales from the Regional Water Plant.  Warren County and Oxford also report 

reduced sales.  At current levels, it appears total sales may be about $42,000 less than 

budgeted in FY14. 

 

 $2,450,000

 $2,470,000

 $2,490,000

 $2,510,000

 $2,530,000

 $2,550,000

 $2,570,000

 $2,590,000

 $2,610,000

 $2,630,000

 $2,650,000

FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

Water sales have decreased, thus resulting in less than budgeted revenues in 
FY13 and FY14.  The increase in revenues is based on the 5% rate increase.

Water Fund Revenues: Water Sales-Annual
Fig. 7.3-30 R1c

13 April 2014

Actual Budget Mid-Year FY 14 Projection

 
 

In order to absorb the 5% water rate increase from the Kerr Lake Regional Water 

Treatment Facility, pay for one-half of the costs for unfreezing the Public Utilities 

Director position and reduced consumption, it is recommended that the water rate be 

increased by 5%, effective with the first billing cycle in July.  Each percent increases 

yields about $27,000 from the City’s general rate customers.  The impact on a residential 

customer using 5,000 gallons per month would be $0.69 and $1.71 for inside and outside  



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 66  

 

 

 

customers; respectively. A time trend analysis of water rate increases is provided in the 

following graph: 

 

 

 

 

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

P
er

ce
n

t 
o

f 
In

cr
ea

se

It is recommended rates increase by 5% to cover the 5% Regional Water rate increase  and  

part of the salary for the Public Services Director.

Water User Rate Increases

Fig. 7.3-30 R15
22 April 2014

Actual Increases Projected Increases

 
 

SEWER FUND 

 

Revenues 

 

 The Sewer Fund provides for the collection of sanitary waste and treatment for 

the City’s 6,990 customers.  The Sewer Fund is expected to be $4,842,000 in FY15. 91% 

of the fund’s revenues are derived from the sewer user fee.  Revenues are estimated to be 

lower in FY14 than budgeted by about $66,000 due to reduction in water sales.   

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 67  

 

 $3,800,000

 $3,900,000

 $4,000,000

 $4,100,000

 $4,200,000

 $4,300,000

 $4,400,000

FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

The large increase in FY13 is due to a 9% rate increase.  Figures for FY14 and FY15 are 
budget estimates.  A 1% increase was approved in FY14 and  a 3% rate increase is 

recommended for FY15. This revenue sources provides 90.9% of total fund revenues.

Sewer Fund Revenues:  Consumer Bills--Annual
Fig. 7.31-R1c

Last Updated: 17 April 2014

Actual Budget FY14 Mid-Year Projection

 
  

It is recommended that the sewer rate increase by 3% in order to provide for 

increased operational costs and paying for one-half of the costs to unfreeze the Public 

Utilities Director position.  Each percent generates $37,000.  

 

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11

08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

P
er

ce
n

t 
o

f 
In

cr
ea

se

The recommended rate increase for FY15 is 3%.  Refer to Fig. 7.3-31 R15a for comparable 

rates' analysis. The 9% increase in FY13 was to jump-start the sewer plant rate 

stabilization reserve fund.

Sewer User Rate Increases
Fig. 7.3-31: R15
29 March 2014

Actual Requested

 
 

Expenditures 

 

 The Sewer Fund is divided into three budgetary sections as follows:  1) 

Henderson Water Reclamation Facility (sewer plant); 2) sanitary sewer collection system 

maintenance and construction; and 3) Inflow & Infiltration (I & I).  The major capital 

initiative is the reservation of $436,000 for sewer plant improvements’ rate stabilization 

reserve. 

  



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 68  

 

 

EMPLOYEES 

 

 The single most important asset that the City has is its workforce.  In the City 

Council’s recently adopted Strategic Plan, Key Strategic Objective 6 acknowledges the 

value of the employees and the need to address several critical workforce related issues 

including competitive pay, cost of living adjustment and retention of qualified 

employees.   

 

Staff Capacity and Staff Capability Issues 

 

 Historically speaking, the City has slipped significantly in pay competitiveness 

over the previous decade.  The prolonged budgetary crisis that has existed since 2001 and 

now, the current Recession have caused resources to be diverted to other operational 

needs and to avoid increasing the tax rate.  The budgets have, in part, been balanced by 

not funding up to 19 positions and not keeping the pay/classification system up-to-date.  

The last pay and classification study commissioned by the City was in 1992. 

 

 The end result of this practice has been to reduce staff capacity to perform work.  

The long-term outcomes of this include staff burnout, reduced effectiveness in the 

performance of work and things falling between the cracks.  Many FLSA exempt 

employees are working in excess of 60 to 70 hours per week.  They are paid for 40 hours  

 

per week.  Many FLSA non-exempt employees are working significant hours of overtime 

in order to keep up with work demands.  This results in a high compensatory time ratio to 

hours worked.  Neither is sustainable over a long period of time. 

 

The recently completed 2014 Classification and Pay Study, received by Council during 

its 12 May 2014 meeting, has determined, on average, the City’s workforce is paid about 

22.67% less than peer cities and towns.  The cost to fully implement the Study’s 

recommendations would exceed $1.4M; consequently, a minimal amount of funding has 

been set aside in the budget to begin Phase 1 of a five-year implementation plan.  Thus, 

about $117,000 has been budgeted across the four operating funds in order to start 

addressing this issue. 

  

DEBT SERVICE 
 

 All debt is allocated to and expended from the operating budgets.  Debt includes 

General Obligation Bonds, Revenue Bonds, Certificates of Participation (COPS) and 

lease purchases for vehicles and equipment.  There are no plans to issue bonds or COPS 

during FY15. Total debt has been reduced from $30,126,051 in FY08 to $15,162,440 at 

the end of FY13.   

 

State law limits the legal debt margin to 8% of net assessed value of real estate within 

the corporate limits.  The City is well below this margin and its total debt is trending 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 69  

 

downward. The City’s legal debt margin has increased from $59,435,698 in FY04 to 

$79,101,708 in FY13.   

 

 Long term debt is not expected to increase until FY15 when the sewer plant project 

becomes due. There are no plans to add to the general fund debt in the foreseeable future.  

Additionally, the debt on Aycock Recreation Center will be paid off in FY16. A good 

deal of information on this subject matter is provided in the Debt Service Fund sections 

of each of the operating funds.  As the overall debt limit has decreased, so too has the per 

capita debt.  It has reduced from a high of $2,500 in FY04 to a low of $990 in FY13.  

This is estimated to increase to $1,831 when the sewer plant debt is due. 

 $-

 $500

 $1,000

 $1,500

 $2,000

 $2,500

 $3,000

FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

D
e

b
t 

P
e

r 
C

a
p

it
a

(L
e

s
s
 i
s
 B

e
tt

e
r)

Per capita debt has been decreasing since FY04; however, this metric will increase in late 

FY15 when the debt for the sewer plant is booked after construction has been completed. 

Per Capita Debt

Fig. 7.39F
12 May 2014

Per Capita Debt Projected

 
 

 

 

BUDGET REVIEW PROCESS 

 

 The Budgetary Review process begins its legislative phase this evening with the 

presentation of the Budget to the Mayor and City Council.  The budgets are increasingly 

difficult to balance at the staff level and to review and approve at the Council level.  The 

continuing Period of Austerity that began in the late 1990s continues to this day.     

 

I am very proud of the City’s work force and the good work they provide to the 

City and its residents each day.  I am very proud of the hard work given to the budgetary 

process this year by the department directors and their good spirit in doing so while, at 

the same time, knowing many needed initiatives and funding streams for operations are 

not being met. 

 

IN CLOSING 

 

 The preparation of a City budget is a prodigious task requiring great teamwork.  

Many individuals spent countless hours, many after hours and weekends, to develop and 

bring this budget together.  I would like to thank all of the Department Directors and their 

staff for their hard work in preparing very conservative and constrained budget.   

 

 

 



 

FY 14-15 BUDGET 

CONSENSUS BUDGET MESSAGE 

CAF 14-62-A: 9 June 2014 Council Meeting: 

FY 14-15 Consensus Budget Message 

BM: Page 70  

 

 

 

I would like to recognize and thank Executive Assistant Patricia Pearson for her 

excellent work in helping edit and produce the Work Budget book.  This document would 

not have been possible without her. 

 

I would like to thank Finance Director Kathy Brafford, Assistant City Manager 

Frank Frazier and City Clerk McCrackin for the many, many hours they worked in 

helping me prepare the budget and the many hours the Department Directors and their 

staff spent in preparing and working with me in the development balancing of the budget.   

 

Finally, I would like to thank the City Council for its approval of the Strategic 

Plan and providing guidance and direction to the Staff as it began to develop the budget.   

 

The staff and I look forward to working with the City Council over the next 

several Budget Work Sessions. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

A. Ray Griffin, Jr. 

City Manager 
 

 


	#17 RM 9 June 2014
	May 12 Reg
	19 May Special Called
	Budget Meeting #1
	Budget Meeting #2
	CAF 14-06-A  Authorizing HWRF Project  Change Order #4 . R 14-17-A, O14-26-A
	CAF 14-17-A Change Order #1 for David Avenue Sewer line project  R 14-11-A
	CAF 14-71 Sandy Creek Improvements Project R 14-45
	CAF 14-26-A 2 inch watermain project expansion  R 14-19-A
	CAF 14-67 Handicapped Parking on Winder and Wyche Street O 14-17
	CAF 14-68 Committee appointments R 14-43
	CAF 14-70  Outside watering sewer credit R 14-44
	CAF 14-66 Tax rel-ref Apr  2014
	Meetings and Event Calendar
	April 21 Thru May 20 2014
	April 21 thru May 20 2014 part 1
	April 21 thru May 20 2014 part 2
	April 21 thru May 20 2014 part 3


